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BOARD’S REPORT  
 

 
Dear Members,  
 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their Fifteenth report and Audited Accounts for the 

year ended 31st March, 2025. 
 

1. Financial Results / Financial Highlights: 
 
 

Particulars 
FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 

Rs. in Cr. Rs. in Cr. 

Profit / (Loss) Before Depreciation, 
exceptional items & Tax  

(323.07) (245.74) 

Less: Depreciation, amortization, 
impairment and obsolescence 

302.84 309.30 

Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items 
and tax 

(625.91) (555.04) 

Add: Exceptional Items - - 

Profit / (Loss) before tax (625.91) (555.04) 

Less: Provision for tax (0.03) - 

Profit / (Loss) after Tax (625.88) (555.04) 

Add: Other Comprehensive Income (0.27) 0.05 

Total Comprehensive Income (626.15) (554.99) 

Balance available for disposal (which the 
Directors appropriate as follows) 

- - 

Debenture Redemption Reserve 2.82 2.82 

 
 
2. State of Company Affairs: 

 

The revenue from operations and other income for the financial year under review was 

at Rs.1108.54 crore as against Rs.1399.31 crore for the previous financial year 

registering an decrease of 21%. The loss before and after tax was at Rs. 625.88 crore 

for the financial year under review as against loss before and after tax of Rs.555.04 

crore for the previous financial year registering an increase of 13%. 

 

4



 
 

 
 

 

The Company operates in two Business segments viz. Fare Collection Rights (Metro 

Rail System) and Others, which includes revenue from operation of the Company’s 

operational Transit Oriented Development (TOD) assets, advertising, retail activities at 

stations, rentals of optic fibre cables, right of way for telecom towers, etc. Revenue from 

Metro Rail System and others for the financial year ended 31st March 2025 was 

Rs.627.11crore (including construction revenue of Rs.4.12 crore) and Rs.485.55 crore 

respectively. 

 
During the year there was steady rise in passenger journeys as the metro rail system 

offers advantage to commuters in terms of safety, reliability, and reduction in travel 

time. As a next level upgrade of its ticketing system, the Company is working towards 

introducing the Open-loop Ticketing System (OTS) in FY26. This will enhance 

commuter convenience by aiding digital payments. The Company undertook various 

initiatives during the year to further boost the ridership viz. last mile connectivity, 

promotional schemes, extending operating hours during festivals, setting up helpdesk 

kiosks at major IT parks, etc.  

 

Highest ever ridership of 5.63 lakhs was recorded during the year with more than 5 

lakhs ridership for seventy days during the year recording a growth rate of 25% over 

the previous year. 

 

Your Company has proudly commemorated 50 Crore passenger journeys since its 

inception. The Company also successfully completed three Green Channel 

transportation to various hospitals in record time. 

 

Due to effective control over operating costs and optimum utilization of our rolling stock, 

our operating ratio ranks one of the best amongst all metros in India. Periodic Over-

hauling (POH) for 14 trains was completed during the year and the POH is in progress 

for remaining trains. 

 

In its TOD business, the Company successfully completed transfer of its two business 

undertakings. This transaction enabled upfront cash flow to the Company to partially 

meet its fund requirements and reduce its interest-bearing liabilities. Station retail 

occupancy levels and the Advertisement areas also witnessed several new contracts 

including for station naming rights from large corporates. 
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With a view to increasing the use of green energy, the Company has replaced 12% of 

its grid power requirements for Metro operations with captive solar power of 11.0 MWp. 

The solar panels have been installed over the rooftop of Metro stations and in the depot 

areas.  Another 1 MWp of solar capacity is expected to be commissioned during FY 

2025-26. Further, the Company has created 155 rainwater harvesting pits at various 

stations & depots, in which approximately 60 million liters of water can be harvested 

per year.  

 

The Company won a special recognition award by UITP (Union Internationale des 

Transports Publics that translates to International Association of Public Transport), 

which is amongst the three other prestigious awards received by the Company during 

the year.  

 

Your Company also received the prestigious Golden Peacock Occupational Health & 

Safety Award (GPOHSA), 2024. All 57 stations of Hyderabad Metro Rail are Indian 

Green Building Council (IGBC) Platinum rated. Your Company is the first metro in India 

to achieve this feat. 

 

Indian Metro (I-Metro) Organization, an accredited body created by Ministry of Housing 

& Urban Affairs (MoHUA) has all metro organisations of India as its member. I-Metro 

publishes a comparison of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) every year for preceding 

year. Your Company has emerged as the top performer for FY 2024-25 in respect of 

major and significant KPIs released by the organsiation. 

 

3. Capital & Finance:  
 

The Non-convertible Debentures (NCDs) and Commercial Papers (CPs) of the 

Company are listed with BSE Limited. As on 31st March 2025, the Company’s 

outstanding senior non-convertible debentures and unsecured non-convertible 

debentures were Rs.8,616 crore and Rs.49.10 crore respectively, and the outstanding 

amount of commercial papers was Rs.3,600 crore.  

 

During the year, the Company raised from time to time a total of Rs.16864 crore via 

issue of Listed Commercial Papers to effectuate the commercial paper rollovers. Year 

end outstanding commercial papers stood at Rs.3,600 crore only.  
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The Company has received ratings from CRISIL Limited and India Ratings and 

Research Private Limited for NCDs and CPs for the financial year 2024-25. Both 

agencies have assigned AAA(CE) ratings to the NCDs and A1+ ratings to the CPs. 

 
The Company has not defaulted on payment of any dues to the financial lenders. 

 

4. Capital Expenditure: 
   

As at March 31, 2025 the gross fixed assets comprising of Property, Plant and 

Equipment, Investment Property and Intangible Assets (including assets under 

development) was at Rs.17,355.19crore and the net fixed assets at Rs.15,620.46 

crore. The total additions to Property and Plant and Equipment, Investment Property 

and Intangible Assets during the year amounted to Rs.48.58crore.  
   
5. Amount to be carried to general reserve: 

 

The Company has not transferred any amount from profit and loss to general reserve 

during the financial year under review. 

 

6. Deposits: 
 

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted deposits from the public 

falling within the ambit of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed 

thereunder. The requisite return for FY 2024-25 with respect to amount(s) not 

considered as deposits has been filed on 26th June 2024. 
 

7. Depository System: 
 

 As on March 31, 2025, 99.99% of the Company’s total paid up capital representing 

7,41,29,99,999 equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up are in dematerialized form.  

 The Company has filed the Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report, for FY 2024-

25 on half yearly basis with Registrar of Companies, Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 
 

 
8. Subsidiary/Associate/Joint Venture Companies: 

 
The Company does not have any subsidiary/associate/ Joint Venture Companies as 

on the date of this report. 
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9. Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with related parties:   
 

Pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 

(‘SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015’), the Company has formulated a Related Party 

Transactions Policy for entering into related party transactions. During the year under 

review, the policy was reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Board and 

amendments were made to the policy keeping in view the amended SEBI(LODR) 

requirements. The updated Related Party Transactions Policy has been uploaded on 

the Company’s website www.ltmetro.in   

 

All the related party transactions entered into during FY 2024-25 were in the ordinary 

course of business and at arm’s length.  The Audit Committee/ board has approved the 

related party transactions for the FY2024-25 and the estimated related party 

transactions for the FY 2025-26 as required under the provisions of Section 177 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 23 of the SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015. 

 

A Statement containing details of all material transactions/ contracts/ arrangements is 

forming part of the financial statements under related party disclosures (note 25.7 of 

the financial statements). 

 

The Company entered into a related party transaction with Larsen & Toubro Limited, 

holding company of your Company seeking corporate guarantee from Larsen & Toubro 

Limited in favour of the debenture trustee of the Debentures for the repayment of 

amounts outstanding in respect of the Debentures proposed to be issued by the 

Company of an aggregate principal amount on INR 2872 Crore. The transaction is in 

the ordinary course of business and at Arms’ length basis. The said transaction is a 

related party transaction as per the provisions of the law and was approved by means 

of ordinary resolution at the Extra-ordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on 6th March 

2025.  

 

There are no related party transactions that at present have a conflict of interest 
with the Company. 

 

10. Dividend: 
 

In the absence of distributable profits, your Board of Directors do not recommend any 

dividend on its equity shares. 
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11. Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 

company, between the end of the financial year and the date of the report:  

 
There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 

company between the end of the financial year and the date of this report. 

 

12. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings 

and Outgo 
 

Information as required to be given under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is provided in 

Annexure I forming part of this Report. 

 

13. Risk Management Policy:  

 

Risk Management Committee: The Board of Directors of the Company has 

constituted a Risk Management Committee comprising of Mr. Sujit Varma (Independent 

Director) as Chairperson of the Committee and Mr. D K Sen (Non-executive Director), 

Mr. KVB Reddy (Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Sudhir Chiplunkar 

(Chief Operating Officer- Rail System) and Mr. AVRS Sharma (Chief Financial Officer) 

as its members.  

 

The Company has formulated a risk management policy and has in place a mechanism 

to inform the Board Members about risk assessment, including cyber security and ESG 

risks and minimization initiatives undertaken. It also periodically reviews the risks to 

ensure that executive management mitigates risks by means of a properly designed 

framework.  

 

The details of the Risk Management Committee and its meetings are given in 

Annexure II – Report on Corporate Governance forming part of this Report. 
 
 

14. Corporate Social Responsibility: 

 

There are no CSR Obligations on the Company. In view of the notification issued by 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the CSR Committee of the Board was dissolved on 23rd 
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April 2021 and the CSR Committee will be formed and constituted as and when the 

CSR threshold requirements are triggered.  

 

15. Details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel appointed / resigned during 

the year: 

 

 Mr. R Shankar Raman (DIN: 00019798), Non-executive Director of the 

Company who retired by rotation and being eligible was re-appointed in the 

Annual General Meeting held on 1st July 2024. 

 Mr. D K Sen (DIN- 03554707), Non-executive Director of the Company who 

retired by rotation and being eligible was re-appointed in the Annual General 

Meeting held on 1st July 2024. 

 Mr. A V Prasad (DIN- 01054227) was appointed as a Non-Executive 

Independent Director of the Company with effect from 11th January 2025 for a 

term of five years. Mr. A Venu Prasad was a distinguished career bureaucrat  

in the Indian Administrative Service (IAS). He holds a significant experience of 

over three decades in leadership and administrative control in governance, 

energy, infrastructure and public service. The appointment of Mr. A V Prasad 

was duly approved by the shareholders in extra-ordinary general meeting held 

on 24th February 2025. 

  Mr. Ajit Rangnekar has ceased to be an Independent Director with effect from 

15th February 2025 after successful completion of his second term as an 

Independent Director of the Company.  

 Mr. Shrikant Joshi, Non-executive Director of the Company has stepped down 

due to other work commitments with effect from 15th February 2025. 

 
The Board places on record its appreciation towards valuable contribution made by 

Mr. Ajit Rangnekar and Mr. Shrikant Joshi during their association with the 

Company. 

 
Directors liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting: 
 

 Mr. Sekharipuram Narayanan Subrahmanyan (DIN: 02255382), Non-executive 

Director of the Company, shall retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General 

Meeting and being eligible offered himself for re-appointment. 

 Mr. R Shankar Raman (DIN: 00019798), Non-executive Director of the 

Company, shall retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and 
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being eligible offered himself for re-appointment. 
 
Re-appointment of Independent Director: 
 

 The Board of Directors in the Board meeting held on 21st April 2025 approved 

the re-appointment of Mrs. Vijayalakshmi Rajaram Iyer (DIN- 05242960), Non-

executive Independent Director (Woman category) for the second term of five 

years with effect from 12th May 2025, subject to the approval of shareholders. 
 
The terms and conditions of appointment/re-appointment of the Independent 

Directors are in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015 and are available on the website of the Company 

www.ltmetro.in.   

 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee had considered the appointment / re-

appointment of the aforesaid Independent Directors after evaluating the skills, 

knowledge and experience required on the Board as per the approved skill matrix.

  

The Board opines that all the Independent Directors on the Board possess integrity, 

necessary expertise and experience for performing their functions diligently. 

 
Re-appointment of the Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer: 
 

 The Board of Directors in the Board meeting held on 21st April 2025 approved 

the re-appointment of Mr. KVB Reddy as Managing Director & Chief Executive 

Officer with effect from 1st August 2025 till 30th June 2026 at the existing 

remuneration and other terms and conditions, subject to the approval of 

shareholders. 

  

16. Number of Meetings of the Board of Directors: 

 

The meetings of the Board are held at regular intervals. Additional Meetings of the 

Board of Directors are held when necessary. During the year under review, five 

meetings of the Board of Directors were held on 17th April 2024, 11th July 2024, 11th 

October 2024, 10th January 2025 and 6th March 2025. 

 

The Agenda of the meeting is circulated to the Directors in advance. Minutes of the 

Meetings of the Board of Directors are circulated amongst the Members of the Board 
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for their approval.  

 

The details of the Board meetings held during the year are provided in Annexure II – 

Report on Corporate Governance forming part of this report. 
 

17. Audit Committee:  

 
The Company had constituted an Audit Committee in terms of the requirements of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder, Regulation 18 of the SEBI 

Listing Regulations 2015 and Regulation 62F of SEBI Listing Regulations 

(Amendment), 2025. 

 
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee provides an overview of its roles and 

responsibilities which are in line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with the rules made thereunder and Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations 2015 

and Regulation 62F of the amended SEBI regulation, 2025. 
 

The members of the Audit Committee are Mr. M R Prasanna (Chairperson), Mr. Sujit 

Kumar Varma and Mr. R Shankar Raman. The Chairperson of the Committee is an 

Independent Director of the Company.  

 

The details relating to the Audit Committee are provided in Annexure II – Report on 

Corporate Governance forming part of this report. 

 

18. Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy: 

 
The Whistle Blower Policy of the Company meets the requirement of the Vigil 

Mechanism framework under the Companies Act, 2013, Regulation 22 of SEBI Listing 

Regulations 2015 and Regulation 62J of SEBI Listing Regulations (Amendment), 2025. 

 This policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who 

complain under the mechanism. The Audit Committee oversees the functioning of the 

Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism framework.  

 

Members can view the details of the whistle blower policy of the Company on its 

website www.ltmetro.in   
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19. Nomination & Remuneration Committee: 

 
The Company has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 

adopted the NRC policy in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with the rules made thereunder, Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations 2015 and Regulation 62G of SEBI Listing Regulations (Amendment), 

2025. 

 

The current members of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee are Mrs. 

Vijayalakshmi R Iyer (Chairperson), Mr. Mysore Rangacharya Prasanna and Mr. Dip 

Sen Kishore. The Chairperson of the Committee is an Independent Director of the 

Company.  
 

The details relating to the Committee are provided in Annexure II – Report on 

Corporate Governance forming part of this report. 
 
 

20. Company’s Policy on Director Appointment and Remuneration: 

 

The Committee has formulated a policy on director's appointment and remuneration 

including recommendation of remuneration of the key managerial personnel and senior 

management personnel and the criteria for determining qualifications, positive 

attributes and independence of a director. The Nomination and Remuneration Policy is 

provided as Annexure III forming part of this report and is also disclosed on the 

Company’s website at www.ltmetro.in 

 

The Company has formulated a policy on Board Diversity. 

 

The Company has also disclosed on its website www.ltmetro.in details of the 

familiarization programs formulated to educate the independent directors regarding 

their roles, rights and responsibilities in the Company and the nature of the industry in 

which the Company operates, the business model of the Company, etc. 

 

21. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee:  

 
The Board of Directors of the Company had constituted a Stakeholders’ Relationship 

Committee having terms of reference in accordance with the requirements of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder, Regulation 20 of the SEBI 
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LODR Regulations 2015 and Regulation 62H of SEBI Listing Regulations 

(Amendment), 2025. 

 

The current members of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee are Mrs. Deepa 

Gopalan Wadhwa (Chairperson), Mr. A V Prasad and Mr. KVB Reddy. The Chairperson 

of the Committee is an Independent Director of the Company.  

 

The details relating to the Committee meetings are provided in Annexure II – Report 

on Corporate Governance forming part of this report. 

 

22. Declaration of Independence: 
 

The Company has received declaration of Independence from all the Independent 

Directors as stipulated under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Regulation 25(8) of SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015 confirming that he/she is not 

disqualified from being appointed/re-appointed/continuing as an Independent Director 

as per the criteria laid down in section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015. The Independent Directors have 

complied with the Code for Independent Directors prescribed in Schedule IV to the 

Companies Act, 2013. 
 

The Independent Directors of the Company have registered themselves on the 

Independent Director’s databank maintained by Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs 

(IICA). All the Independent Directors of the Company are exempted from passing 

proficiency self-assessment test. 
 

23. Internal Financial Controls: 

 

The Company has designed and implemented a process driven framework for Internal 

Financial Controls (‘IFC’) within the meaning of the explanation to Section 134(5)(e) of 

the Companies Act, 2013. For the year ended March 31, 2025 the Board is of the 

opinion that the Company has sound IFC commensurate with the nature and size of its 

business operations and the same are operating effectively and no material 

weaknesses exist. The Company has a process in place to monitor the framework  and 

identify gaps, if any, and implement new and / or improved controls wherever  such 

gaps would have a material effect on the Company’s operations. 
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24. Directors Responsibility Statement: 

 

Your Board of Directors of the Company confirms: 

 

a) In the preparation of Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards have 

been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if 

any; 

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them 

consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 

at the end of the financial year and of the loss of the Company for that period; 

c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of 

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud 

and other irregularities; 

d) The Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis and 

e) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the 

provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and were 

operating effectively. 

 

25. Performance Evaluation of the Board, its Committees and Directors: 
 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down the manner in which 

formal annual evaluation of the performance of the Board, Committees, Chairman and 

individual directors has to be made. 

 

It includes online filling of questionnaires by all the directors for evaluation of the Board 

and its Committees, Board composition and its structure, Board effectiveness, Board 

functioning, information availability, adequacy of discussions, etc. These questionaries’ 

also cover specific criteria and the grounds on which all directors in their individual 

capacity would be evaluated. The Chairperson of NRC analyses the reports on the 

questionnaire to arrive at an unbiased conclusion. 

 

The inputs given by all the directors were discussed in the meeting of the Independent 

Directors held in accordance with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Regulation 25(3) of SEBI Listing Regulations 2014 on 4th March 2025.  
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The performance evaluation inputs of the Board, Committees, Chairman and Directors 

and the areas of improvement including the actions taken on basis of the previous 

year’s assessment were also reviewed by the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee and the Board. 
 

26. Compliance with Secretarial Standards on Board Meetings and General 

Meetings:  

 

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India on Board Meetings and General Meetings.  
 

27. Protection of Women at Workplace:  
 

The Company is committed to providing a safe and inclusive workplace free from 

sexual harassment. The Company believes in providing a mechanism for addressing 

complaints of sexual harassment by any employee, without the fear of reprisals in any 

form or manner. 

 

The parent company Larsen & Toubro Limited (L&T) has formulated a policy on 

‘Protection of Women at Workplace’ as per the provisions of Sexual Harassment of 

Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 which is 

applicable to all group companies located in India. This has been widely disseminated.  
 

The Company has complied with the requirement of Internal Committee (IC) as 

stipulated under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 consisting of four members. 
 

No complaints were received by the IC during Financial Year 2024-25. 

 

Awareness workshops / training programs are conducted across the Company, specific 

programs have been created on the digital platform to sensitize employees to uphold 

the dignity of their colleagues at workplace and create awareness on prevention of 

sexual harassment. 
 
 

28. Auditor’s Report: 
 

The Auditor’s report to the shareholders does not contain any qualification, observation 

or comment or remark(s) which has/have an adverse effect on the functioning of the 

Company. 
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29. Auditor: 

 

The Auditors, M/s M Bhaskara Rao & Co. (Firm registration number 000459S) were 

appointed as Statutory Auditor for a period of five continuous years i.e., from the 

conclusion of the eleventh Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the sixteenth 

Annual General Meeting of the Company.  

 

The Audit Committee reviews the independence and objectivity of the Auditors and the 

effectiveness of the Audit process. 

 
 

For the financial year 2024-25, the total fees paid by the Company to the Auditors and 

their network firms, for the services availed from them is Rs.8.50 lakhs + GST. 
 
 

30. Secretarial Audit Report: 

 

The Secretarial Audit Report issued by M/s. Kota & Associates, Practicing Company 

Secretary is attached as Annexure IV to the Annual Report.  
 

The Secretarial Auditors report to the shareholders does not contain any qualification 

or reservation which has any material adverse effect on the functioning of the 

Company. 
 

31. Secretarial Auditors: 

 

In light of the provisions of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors in its 

meeting held on 21st April 2025 appointed M/s Kota & Associates, (Firm registration 

number S2015TL297300) the Secretarial Auditors for a period of 5 consecutive years 

from the FY 2025-26 till the conclusion of FY 2029-30, subject to the approval of the 

shareholders. Necessary resolution seeking approval of the shareholders in this regard 

has been placed at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

 

A proposal for their appointment from the FY 2025-26 till the conclusion of FY 2029-30 

has been included in the Notice of the ensuing AGM. 

 

The Audit Committee reviews the independence and objectivity of the Secretarial 

Auditors and the effectiveness of the Audit process. 
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M/s Kota & Associates has submitted the Peer Review Certificate dated 28th February 

2022 issued to them by Institute of Companies Secretaries of India (ICSI) and 

confirmed that they have not incurred any disqualifications. Your directors recommend 

the appointment of approval of the members. 

 

32. Details of Significant & Material Orders Passed by the Regulators or Courts or 

Tribunals:  

 

During the year under review, there were no material and significant orders passed by 

the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and the 

Company’s operations in future. 

 

33. Annual Return:  
 

As per the provisions of section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Return 

of the Company for the financial year 2024-25 is available on our website at Annual 

Return. 
 

34. Designated person for furnishing information and extending co-operation to 

ROC in respect of beneficial interest in shares of the company: 

 

Mr. Chandrachud D Paliwal, Head- Legal & Company Secretary, was appointed by the 

Board as designated person, for furnishing information and extending co-operation to 

ROC in respect of beneficial interest in shares of the Company to ensure compliance 

with MCA notification . 

 

35. Environment, Social And Governance (ESG)/ Business Responsibility & 

Sustainability 
 

Though the ESG provisions are not applicable, yet your Company has aligned itself 

with the overall L&T group’s vision for ESG to promote an eco-friendly growth and 

promote a culture of sustainability and innovation.  

Your Company is the largest metro project in the world in a PPP model i.e. Private 

Public Partnership model. The salient features of Hyderabad Metro Rail include:  

 Green eco-friendly mode of travel – reduces carbon emission and pollution, both from 

technology and mass transport perspectives 
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 Regenerative braking technology and modal shift from high emission road transport 

 Faster, safer, and comfortable air-conditioned travel with reduced travel time 

 Seamless commuting with ultra-modern coaches 

 Connects major offices with an average daily ridership of 4.43 lakhs commuters. 

Commitment to sustainability:  

A. Environment dimension: 

Your Company is committed to achieve L&T’s overall goal of Carbon Neutrality by 2040 

and Water Neutrality by 2035. All its 57 stations and two (2) depots have Rainwater 

harvesting pits with a total count of 155 nos. to recharge the water table. With more 

than 1000+ saplings planted at the depots & dividers in between stations. Your 

Company has been promoting green cover through its focused plantation drives. It is 

also committed to regenerate 40% of its traction energy through regenerative braking, 

which results in 30,890 CO2e savings. With its 11 MWp Captive Solar Power Plant in 

2 Depots & on 41 Station Rooftops where more than 12% of energy requirement is met 

from solar capability. All 57 stations of Hyderabad Metro Rail are Indian Green Building 

Council  (IGBC) Platinum certified.  

In FY2024-25, a glimpse into the activities channelized by your Company to stay 

committed to Environment is give below:  

 Approx. 38 million litres of fuel saved. 

 Approx. 109 million Kgs of CO2 emission saved. 

 Total 12.8 million units are generated through solar plant viz. 12% of total power 

consumption. 

 Total 45 million units of energy regenerated by regenerative braking system of 

Rolling Stock viz. approx. 40% of total traction power consumption. 

 

B. Social dimension: 

Your Company stands committed to its Sustainability through various Employee 

Welfare & Healthcare initiatives, Social Welfare programs and Diversity, Equity, and 

Inclusion interventions. The organization ensures that all its employees undergo 

Annual Health checks and various free health care programs / camps are also 

organised not only for employees but also for metro commuters in collaboration with 

reputed hospitals.  

The metro also transported live organ as an emergency that still stands as a testament 

to its commitment for social welfare. The stations have all facilities such as ramps, lifts, 
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crutches etc. for differently abled people. The tactile pathways available in all stations 

helps the needy to navigate easily in stations.  

In view of strengthening the organization’s commitment to enhance the DEI, wellness 

rooms have been earmarked at the office premises, with ergonomic chairs & sanitary 

product vending machine in place, your Company ensures the women colleagues are 

given the facilities and safe and secure work environment to function well while at 

workplace.  

 

C. Governance dimension: 

With prescribed policies in place, your Company is guided by the strong work ethics 

and governance. It is governed by the Board of Directors, and at the unit level, 

governed by the Core Group Committee led by the MD & CEO and by Subject Matter 

Experts (SMEs).  

 

Future ESG plans: Way Forward:  

The ESG provisions are not yet applicable to the Company. However, your Company 

plans to increase contribution of Solar Energy from current 10% of total energy 

requirement. Also, it will start working on new areas such as Circular Economy, 

Sustainable Supply Chain Management, Biodiversity protection etc. 

 
 

36. Other Disclosures: 

 

A Report on Corporate Governance along with a certificate obtained from the Practicing 

Company Secretary confirming compliance, is provided in Annexure II forming part of 

this Report.  
 

The Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud committed against the 

Company by its officers or employees as specified under Section 143(12) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 
 

MSME:  
 

The Company has registered itself on Trade Receivables Discounting System Platform 

. The Company complies with the requirement of submitting half yearly returns to the 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs as per the statutory timelines. 
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([). L&T Metro Rail r ==== 
'\I) Hyderabad 

Corporate Insolvency Resolution process initiated under the Insolvency and 

Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC): 

The Company has neither filed any application nor any proceeding is pending against 

the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 201 6, during FY 2024-25. 

37. Debenture Trustees: 

M/s SBICAP Trustee Company Limited, having their office at 202, Marker Tower, 'E' , 

Cuffe Parade, Colaba, Mumbai - 400005 are the Debenture Trustee for Tranche I, II 

and Ill Unsecured Debentures amounting to Rs.49.19 crore. 

Axis Trustee Services Limited, having their office at The Ruby, 2nd Floor, SW 29, 

Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar West, Maharashtra- 400028 are the Debenture Trustee 

for Senior, Listed, Rated, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures amounting to 

Rs.8,616 crore. 

38. Acknowledgement 

Your Directors take this opportunity to thank the Government of Telangana, 

Government of India, Customers, Supply Chain Partners, Employees, Banks, Central 

and State Government Authorities, Regulatory Authorities, Bombay Stock Exchange, 

Debenture Trustees and all the various stakeholders for their continued co-operation 

and support to the Company. 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date : 21.04.2025 

For and on behalf of the Board 

&~ ~ 
Managing Director & Director 

Chief Executive Officer (DIN:01414254) 
(DIN:01683467) 



 
 

 
 

 

ANNEXURE I 
 
INFORMATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 134(3)(m) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, REGARDING CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, 
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO.  
 
Conservation of Energy 
 
The operations of the Company are energy-intensive and energy conservation is a priority for 
the Company. Appropriate methodologies have been implemented for effective energy 
utilization. Further, the rolling stock and lifts have inbuilt energy regeneration technology and 
effective methodologies have been adopted to achieve reduction in energy consumption. 
Various steps are being taken for conservation of energy on a continuous basis. 
 
Rainwater harvesting pits are created at stations & depots. Total 155 rainwater harvesting pits 
are available at depots & stations of the Company. About 60 million liters of water is harvested 
per year. The Company’s depots are water and power surplus. 
 
Solar Energy 
 
The Company has replaced 12% of its grid power requirements for Metro operations with 
captive solar power of 11.0 MWp. The solar panels have been installed over the rooftop of 32 
Metro stations and in the 2 depot areas.  
 
Technology Absorption, Adaption and Innovation 
 
There was no Technology Absorption during the year. 
 
Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo 
 
During the year under review, the foreign exchange earning was NIL and outgo was Rs.12.18 
crore. 
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ANNEXURE II TO THE BOARD REPORT 

 

A. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Corporate Governance is a set of principles, processes and systems which govern a company. 

Corporate Governance enables an organization to perform efficiently and ethically generate 

long term wealth and create value for all its stakeholders. The Company has always worked 

towards building trust with investors, employees, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders 

based on the principles of good corporate governance. 

 

B. COMPANY’S CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY 

The Company’s essential character revolves around values based on transparency, integrity, 

professionalism and accountability. At the highest level, the Company continuously endeavors 

to improve upon these aspects on an ongoing basis and adopts innovative approaches for 

leveraging resources, converting opportunities into achievements through proper 

empowerment and motivation, fostering a healthy growth and development of human 

resources to take the Company forward. 

 

C. THE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE 

The Corporate Governance structure of the Company comprises of the Board of Directors, 

various committees of the Board and the Senior Management. 

 

The Directors of the Company are in a fiduciary position, empowered to oversee the 

management functions with a view to ensuring its effectiveness and enhancement of 

securityholder value. The Board also provides strategic direction, reviews and approves 

management’s business objectives, plans and oversees risk management including review of 

financials, quarterly/yearly performance, revenue and capital budget, etc. 

 

The Non-Executive Directors / Independent directors play a critical role in enhancing balance 

to the Board processes with their independent judgment on issues of performance, resources, 

standards of conduct, safety, etc., besides providing the Board with valuable inputs. 

 

The Committees constituted by the Board provide focused attention and in-depth attention to 

certain specific matters in accordance with the terms of reference of the respective Committee. 

The details of the various Board Committees and their roles and functions are provided in 

subsequent paragraphs of this report. 
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The Senior Management Personnel contribute to the strategic management of the Company’s 

businesses within Board approved direction and framework. They assume overall 

responsibility for strategic management of business and functions including its governance 

processes and top management effectiveness. The Chief Executive Officer & MD is fully 

accountable to the Board for the Company’s business development, operational excellence, 

business results, leadership development and other related responsibilities. 

 

The governance structure, besides ensuring greater management accountability and 

credibility, facilitates performance discipline and development of business leaders, leading to 

increased public confidence.    

 

Following officers comprise of the senior management of the Company besides Mr. KVB 

Reddy, Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer of the Company: 

1. Mr. Sudhir Chiplunkar, Chief Operating Officer- Rail Systems 

2. Mr. P Ravishankar, Vice-President & Head–TOD, Project Planning, Control and 

Contracts 

3. Mr. Murali Varadarajan, Chief Strategy Officer 

4. Mr. Chandrachud Paliwal, Head- Legal & Company Secretary 

5. Mr. AVRS Sharma, Chief Financial Officer  

6. Mr. Sudipto Mandal, Head- Human Resource  

 

D. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

Composition of the Board: 

The Company’s policy is to have an appropriate mix of Executive, Non-Executive and 

Independent Directors. As on 31st March 2025, the Board comprised the Non-Executive 

Chairman, the Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer, 2 Non-Executive Directors, 1 

Nominee Director (representing Government of Telangana State) and 5 Independent 

Directors, including two Women Independent Directors. The composition of the Board, as on 

31st March 2025, is in conformity with the provisions of the law. 

 

Meetings of the Board: 

The meetings of the Board are generally held via video conferencing facility or at the 

Registered Office of the Company at Hyderabad Metro Rail Administrative Building, Uppal 
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Main Road, Nagole, Hyderabad – 500039. The meetings of the Board have been held at 

regular intervals with a time gap of not more than 120 days between two consecutive 

Meetings. During the year under review, 5 meetings were held on 17th April 2024, 11th July 

2024, 11th October 2024, 10th January 2025 and 6th March 2025. 

 

The Independent Directors met on 4th March 2025 and on 19th April 2025 to discuss, inter-alia, 

the performance evaluation of the Board as a whole and assess the quality, quantity and 

timeliness of flow of information between the management and the Board of Directors that is 

necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.  

 

The Company Secretary prepares the agenda and the explanatory notes, in consultation with 

the Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer and circulates the same in advance to the 

Directors. Every Director is free to suggest inclusion of items on the agenda. The Board meets 

at least once every quarter, inter alia, to review the quarterly results. Additional meetings are 

held, whenever necessary. Majority of the meetings were conducted with video conference 

facility during the year. Presentations are made on business operations to the Board. Senior 

management personnel are invited to provide additional inputs for the items being discussed 

by the Board of Directors as and when necessary. The respective Chairman of the Board 

Committees apprise the Board Members of the important issues and discussions in the 

Committee Meetings. Minutes of Committee meetings are also circulated to the Board. 

 

The composition, details of the Board of Directors as on 31st March 2025 and their attendance 

at the Meetings during the year and at the last Annual General Meeting along with the skills/ 

expertise/ competencies of the Board of Directors as identified by the Board of Directors in the 

context of Company’s business are as under: 

 

Name of 

Director 

Category Meetings 

held 

during the 

year 

No. of 

Board 

Meetings 

attended 

Attendance 

at last AGM 

Skills/ Expertise/ 

Competencies 

Mr. S N 

Subrahmanyan 

DIN: 02255382 

Chairman 

(Non-

Executive 

Director) 

5 2 No Leadership, 

Strategy, 

Governance, 

Corporate 

Finance, Audit, 
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Risk 

Management, 

Regulatory 

Affairs, Legal, 

Business 

Development, 

International 

Exposure and 

Global 

Experience. 

Mr. K V B 

Reddy 

DIN: 01683467 

Managing 

Director & 

Chief 

Executive 

Officer 

5 5 Yes Leadership, 

Strategy, 

Governance, 

Legal, Project 

Execution, 

Regulatory 

Affairs, Business 

Development, 

Finance and Risk 

Management. 

Mr. R Shankar 

Raman 

DIN: 00019798 

Non-

Executive 

Director 

5 5 No Leadership, 

Strategy, 

Governance, 

Accounting & 

Audit, Financial 

Reporting, 

Corporate 

Finance, 

Treasury and 

Risk 

Management. 

Mr. M R 

Prasanna 

DIN: 00010264 

Independent 

Director 

5 4 Yes Leadership, 

Strategy, Audit, 

Risk 

Management, 

Legal, 
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Administration, 

Dispute 

Resolution and 

Regulatory 

Affairs. 

Mr. NVS Reddy 

DIN: 01414254 

Nominee 

Director 

5 5 Yes Leadership, 

Strategy, Project 

Planning, Project 

Management, 

Governance, 

Administration 

and Regulatory 

Affairs. 

Mrs. 

Vijayalakshmi 

Iyer 

DIN: 05242960 

Independent 

Director 

5 5 No Leadership, 

Governance, 

Finance, Audit, 

Risk 

Management, 

Treasury, Credit, 

Retail Banking, 

Banking 

Operations, 

International 

Exposure and 

Global 

Experience. 

Mr. Sujit Varma 

DIN: 09075212 

Independent 

Director 

5 5 Yes Leadership, 

Strategy, 

Governance, 

Corporate 

Finance, Risk 

Management, 

Treasury, Credit, 

Banking 

Operations, 

International 
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Exposure and 

Global 

Experience. 

Mr. D K Sen 

DIN: 03554707 

Non-

Executive 

Director 

5 5 No Leadership, 

Strategy, 

Construction, 

Designing, 

Business 

Development, 

International 

Exposure and 

Global 

Experience. 

Mrs. Deepa 

Gopalan 

Wadhwa 

DIN: 07862942 

Independent 

Director 

5 5 Yes Leadership, 

Strategy, 

Corporate 

Governance, 

Environmentally 

Sustainable 

Development, 

Investments, 

Energy Security 

and International 

Relations. 

Mr. Arabandi 

Venu Prasad 

DIN: 01054227 

Independent 

Director 

5 1 

(Mr. Prasad 

was 

appointed 

as 

Independent 

Director 

w.e.f. 

11.01.2025)  

NA Leadership, 

Strategy, 

Administration 

and Regulatory 

Affairs, 

Infrastructure, 

Energy,  Project 

Planning, Project 

Management, 

Governance. 

 

None of the above Directors are related inter se. 
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None of the Directors hold the office of director in more than the permissible number of 

companies under the Companies Act, 2013 or Regulation 17A of the SEBI LODR Regulations. 

 

None of the Directors hold shares or convertible securities of the Company.  

  

As on 31st March 2025, the number of other Directorships & Memberships / Chairpersonships 

of Committees of the Board of Directors along with the names of the listed entities (equity 

listed) wherein the Director holds directorships are as follows: 

 

Name of 

Director 

No. of 

Directorship 

in public 

limited 

Companies 

No. of 

Committee 

Membership* 

No. of 

Committee 

Chairmans

hip* 

Names of other 

equity Listed 

entities where 

he/she holds 

Directorship 

Category of 

Directorship 

Mr. S N 

Subrahmanyan 

DIN: 02255382 

7 0 0 Larsen & 

Toubro Ltd. 

Chairman & 

MD 

L&T 

Technology 

Services Ltd. 

Non-executive 

Chairman 

LTIMindtree 

Ltd. 

 

 

Non-executive  

Chairman 

L&T Finance 

Ltd. 

Non-executive 

Chairman 

Mr. K V B 

Reddy 

DIN: 01683467 

1 0 0 Nil Nil 

Mr. R Shankar 

Raman 

DIN: 00019798 

7 2 0 Larsen & 

Toubro Ltd. 

Whole Time 

Director & Chief 

Financial 

Officer 

L&T Finance 

Ltd. 

 

Non-executive 

Director 
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LTIMindtree 

Ltd. 

Non-executive 

Director 

Mrs. 

Vijayalakshmi 

Iyer 

DIN: 05242960 

9 5 3 Glenmark 

Pharmaceutical

s Ltd. 

Independent 

Director 

Aditya Birla 

Capital Ltd. 

Independent 

Director 

CG Power And 

Industrial 

Solutions Ltd. 

Independent 

Director 

Computer Age 

Management 

Services Ltd. 

Independent 

Director 

 

ICICI Securities 

Ltd. 

Independent 

Director 

Mr. NVS Reddy 

DIN: 01414254 

4 0 0 Nil Nil 

Mr. M R 

Prasanna 

DIN: 00010264 

1 0 0 Nil Nil 

Mr. Sujit Varma 

DIN: 09075212 

7 2 3 Uflex Limited 

 

Independent 

Director 

Prime 

Securities Ltd. 

Non-executive 

Non-

Independent 

Director 

Waaree 

Energies Ltd. 

Independent 

Director 

Mr. D K Sen 

DIN: 03554707 

4 0 0 Nil Nil 

Mrs. Deepa 

Gopalan 

Wadhwa 

8 7 0 J K Cement 

Ltd. 

 

Independent 

Director 
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DIN: 07862942 J K Paper Ltd. 

 

Independent 

Director 

Bengal & 

Assam 

Company Ltd. 

Independent 

Director 

NDR Auto 

Components 

Ltd. 

Independent 

Director 

Artemis 

Medicare 

Services Ltd. 

Independent 

Director 

Sapphire Foods 

India Ltd. 

Independent 

Director 

Mr. Arabandi 

Venu Prasad 

DIN: 01054227 

1 1 0 PTC India Ltd. Independent 

Director 

Notes:  
 

Company Directorships includes directorships in all public limited companies and excludes private limited 
companies, foreign companies and Section 8 companies and HVDLE.  
 

*Only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee are considered as per the requirement of 
Regulation 26 of the SEBI LODR Regulations. 
 
 

E. BOARD COMMITTEES 

 

The Board currently has four Committees: 1) Audit Committee, 2) Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee, 3) Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee and 4) Risk Management 

Committee. The terms of reference of the Board Committees are in compliance with the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI LODR Regulations and are also reviewed by 

the Board from time to time. The Board is responsible for constituting, assigning and co-opting 

the members of the Committees. The role and composition of these Committees, including 

the number of meetings held during the financial year and the related attendance are provided 

below. 

 

1. AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

Terms of reference 
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1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its 

financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and 

credible. 

2. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment, terms of appointment 

and, if required, the replacement or removal of the statutory auditor and the fixation of 

audit fees. 

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the 

Statutory Auditors, other than for certification of certain statements as may be required 

by the Company. 

4. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of cost 

auditors of the Company. 

5. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and 

scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern. 

6. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and the audit report 

before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to: 

i. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement in the 

Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

ii. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same. 

iii. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of 

judgment by management. 

iv. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit 

findings. 

v. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial 

statements. 

vi. Disclosure of any related party transactions. 

vii. Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report. 

7. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission 

to the Board for approval. 

8. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, 

adequacy of the internal control systems. 

9. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on. 

10. Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer after assessing the qualifications, 

experience and background, etc. of the candidate. 
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11. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into 

matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control 

systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board. 

12. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to, debenture holders, 

shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors. 

13. To review the functioning of the whistle blower/vigil mechanism. 

14. Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and 

effectiveness of audit process; 

15. Approval or any subsequent material modification of transactions of the Company with 

related parties; 

16. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

17. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary; 

18. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

19. Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters. The 

statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document 

/ prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the 

utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate 

recommendations to the board to take up steps in this matter; and 

20. Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving 

merger, demerger, amalgamation etc. on the Company. 

 

Composition 

As on date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises of two Independent Directors and 

one Non-executive Director. 

 

During the year under review, four Audit Committee meetings were held on 17th April 2024, 

10th July 2024, 10th October 2024 and 9th January 2025. 

 

The attendance of Members at the Audit Committee Meetings was as follows: 

 

Name Category No. of meetings 

held during the year 

No. of meetings 

attended 

Mr. M R Prasanna Independent Director 4 4 

Mr. Ajit Rangnekar* Independent Director 4 4 
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Mr. Sujit Varma Independent Director 4 4 

Mr. R Shankar Raman Non-Executive 

Director 

4 4 

*Mr. Ajit Rangnekar ceased to be the member of the Audit Committee by virtue of his completion of second tenure 
as an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 15th February 2025. 
 

Mr. M R Prasanna, Independent Director of the Company is the Chairperson of the Audit 

Committee.  

 

The Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company 

are permanent invitees to the Meetings of the Audit Committee. The Company Secretary is 

the Secretary to the Committee. 

 

For the financial year 2024-25, the total fees paid by the Company to the Auditors and their 

network firms, for the services availed from them is Rs.8.50 lakhs + GST. 

 

2. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

 

Terms of reference 

(a). Identify persons who are qualified to become Director and persons who may be 

appointed in KMPs in accordance with the criteria laid down by the Committee. 

(b). To formulate the criteria for determining the qualifications, positive attributes and 

independence of a director. 

(c). To formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors, Chairman, Board and the 

Board Committees. 

(d). Recommend to the Board, appointment and removal of Director and KMP. 

(e). The Chairperson of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or, in his absence, 

any other member of the Committee authorised by him, shall be present at the General 

meetings of the Company, to answer the shareholders queries, if any. 

(f). The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall set up a mechanism, if required, to 

carry out its functions and is further authorized to delegate any / all of its powers to any 

of the Directors and /or Officers of the Company, as deemed necessary for proper and 

expeditious execution. 

(g). Evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis 

of such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of an 
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independent director. The person recommended shall have the capabilities identified in 

such description. 

(h). Devise a policy on Diversity of Board of Directors. 

(i). Recommend extension or continuation of the term of appointment of the independent 

director on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors. 

 

Composition: 

As on the date of this report, the Committee comprises of 2 Independent Directors and 1 

Non-Executive Director. 

 

Meetings: 

 

During the year ended 31st March 2025, five meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee were held on 15th April 2024, 10th July 2024, 15th October 2024, 9th January 

2025 and 24th February 2025 

 

The attendance of Members at the Meetings was as follows: 

 

Name Category No. of meetings held 

during the year 

No. of meetings 

attended  

Mr. Ajit Rangnekar* 

(from 01.04.2024 – 

15.02.2025) 

Independent Director 5 4 

Mr. M R Prasanna Independent Director 5 4 

Mr. Shrikant Joshi** 

(from 01.04.2024 – 

15.02.2025) 

Non-Executive Director 5 4 

Mrs. Vijayalakshmi 

R Iyer  

(from 06.03.2025 

onwards) 

Independent Director 5 1 

Mr. D K Sen 

(from 06.03.2025 

onwards) 

Non-Executive Director 5 1 
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* Mr. Ajit Rangnekar, ceased to be an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 15th 

February 2025 on completion of his tenure and consequently ceased to be the Chairperson 

of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) with effect from the said date. Mrs. 

Vijayalakshmi Iyer has been appointed as the Chairperson of the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee with effect from 6th March 2025. 

 

** Mr. Shrikant Joshi ceased to be the Director of the Company w.e.f. 15th February 2025 

and consequently ceased to be a member of the NRC with effect from the said date. Mr. D 

K Sen has been appointed as the member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

with effect from 6th March 2025. 

 

The Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Committee. 

 

Remuneration Policy: 

 

The remuneration of the Board members is based on the Company’s size, its economic & 

financial position, industrial trends, compensation paid by the peer companies, etc. 

Compensation reflects each Board member’s responsibility and performance.  

 

The remuneration of the MD & CEO of the Company was approved by the shareholders of 

the Company vide special resolution in extra-ordinary general meeting held on 11th October 

2023. 

The Independent Directors and Nominee Director are paid remuneration by way of sitting 

fees. The Company paid sitting fees @ Rs.50,000/- per meeting of the Board to Independent 

Directors and Nominee Director and Rs.25,000/- per meeting for Audit Committee, 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee and Risk 

Management Committee meetings to the Independent Directors.  

 

As required by the provisions of Regulation 62 of the SEBI LODR Regulations, the criteria 

for payment to Independent Directors and Nominee Director is made available on the 

investor page of our company website www.ltmetro.in  
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 Performance Evaluation Criteria for Independent Directors: 

 

The performance evaluation questionnaire covers qualitative/ subjective criteria’s with 

respect to the structure, effectiveness of the Board and Committees, strategic 

decision making, functioning of the Board and Committees, Committee composition, 

information availability, adequate participation, etc. It also contains specific criteria for 

evaluating the Chairman and individual Directors. A consolidated system driven 

reports on the performance evaluation are given to the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee Chairperson for briefing in the Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

meeting and to the Board.  This is done through a software platform. 

 

 Details of remuneration paid to the Directors for the year ended 31st March 2025: 

 

The Company does not pay any remuneration to its Non-executive non-Independent 

Directors. The details of remuneration paid to the Directors for the financial year 

2024-25 is as follows: 

 

Names 

Sitting 

Fees for 

Board 

Meeting 

Sitting Fees 

for 

Committee 

Meeting 

 

Salary 

Total for 

FY 2023-

24 (Rs.) 

Mr. Ajit Rangnekar 2,00,000 2,00,000 0 4,00,000 

Mr. M R Prasanna 2,00,000 1,75,000 0 3,75,000 

Mrs. Vijayalakshmi 

Iyer 
2,50,000 25,000 0 2,75,000 

Mr. NVS Reddy 2,50,000 0 0 2,50,000 

Mr. Sujit Varma 2,50,000 2,00,000 0 4,50,000 

Mrs. Deepa 

Wadhwa 
2,50,000 25,000 0 2,25,000 

Mr. KVB Reddy* 0 0 495,01,052 495,01,052 

 

* Shareholders of the Company in extra-ordinary general meeting held on 11th October 

2023 approved the appointment of Mr. KVB Reddy, MD & CEO of the Company till 31st 

July 2025. Notice period is 3 months. His aforesaid remuneration includes bonus 

37



 
 

 
 

 

(Rs.45,00,000/- p.a.), retention pay (Rs.1 crore p.a.) and medical expenses, 

Company’s contribution to provident fund and gratuity as per the rules of the Company. 

He is also provided with car and driver for official use and communication facilities for 

Company’s business. 

 

The Board of Directors in the Board meeting held on 21st April 2025 approved the re-

appointment of Mr. KVB Reddy as Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer with 

effect from 1st August 2025 till 30th June 2026 at the existing remuneration and other 

existing terms and conditions, subject to the approval of shareholders. 

 

3. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

 

Terms of Reference: 

1. Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the Company. 

2. Review of various measures taken for timely payment of interest on debentures 

and redemption amount of debentures. 

3. Review of measures taken by the Company for timely dispatch of annual report, 

notices and other information requested by the security holders. 
   

Composition: 

As on 31st March 2025 as well as on the date this report, the Committee comprises of two 

Independent Directors and one Executive Director of the Company. 

Name Category No. of meetings 

held during the year 

No. of meetings 

attended 

Ms. Deepa Gopalan 

Wadhwa 

Independent Director 1 1 

Mr. A Venu Prasad 

 

Independent Director 1 1 

Mr. KVB Reddy MD & CEO 1 1 

 

Meetings: 

One meeting of the Committee was held during FY 2024-25 on 13th February 2025. 

 

Mrs. Deepa Wadhwa, Independent Director of the Company is the Chairperson of the 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee.  
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Number of Requests / Complaints: 

During the year, the Company did not receive any investor grievances. 

 

Mr. Chandrachud Paliwal, Head- Legal & Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer 

of the Company. 

 

4. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 

     Terms of Reference: 

1. To formulate a detailed risk management policy which shall include: 

a) A framework for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced by 

the Company, in particular, financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability 

(particularly, ESG related risks), information, or any other risk as may be 

determined by the Committee. 

b) Measures for risk mitigation including systems and processes for internal control 

of identified risks. 

c) Business continuity plan. 

2. Ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor 

and evaluate risks associated with the business of the Company. 

3. Monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including evaluating 

the adequacy of risk management systems. 

4. Keep the Board of Directors informed about the nature and content of its discussions, 

recommendations and actions to be taken. 

5. Evaluate risks related to cyber security and ensure appropriate measures are taken to 

mitigate these risks. 

6. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer. 

 

Composition: 

As on 31st March 2025 as well as on the date this report, the Committee comprises of one 

Independent Director (Chairperson), one Executive Director, one Non-Executive Director 

(Non-Independent category), Chief Operating Officer–Rail System and Chief Financial Officer 

of the Company. 
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Name Category No. of meetings 

held during the year 

No. of meetings 

attended 

Mr. Sujit Varma Independent Director 4 4 

Mr. Dip Kishore Sen  Non-executive 

Director 

4 4 

Mr. KVB Reddy MD & CEO 4 3 

Mr. Sudhir Chiplunkar COO (Rail System) 4 4 

Mr. AVRS Sharma CFO 4 4 

 

Mr. Sujit Varma, Independent Director of the Company is the Chairperson of the Risk 

Management Committee.  

 

Mr. R Govindan, Executive Vice President - Corporate Finance, Larsen & Toubro Ltd. is the 

permanent invitee of the Risk Management Committee. 

 

Meetings: 

During the year ended 31st March 2025, four Committee meetings were held on 26th June 

2024, 30th Sept. 2024, 30th Dec. 2024 and 29th March 2025. 

 

Mr. Chandrachud Paliwal, Head- Legal & Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the 

Company. 

 

F. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 

 

The Annual General Meetings (AGM) / Extra-ordinary General Meetings (EGM) of the 

Company held during last three financial years were as under: 

 

Financial Year Date Venue  Time 

2024-25 

EGM 

6th March 2025 Via videoconferencing 

medium 

9:30 AM 

2024-25 

EGM 

24th February 2025 Via videoconferencing 

medium 

11:30 AM 

2024-25 

AGM 

1st July 2024 Via videoconferencing 

medium 

5:00 PM 
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2023-24 

EGM 

27th November 2023 Via videoconferencing 

medium 

12:30 PM 

2023-24 

EGM 

11th October 2023 Via videoconferencing 

medium 

11:30 AM 

2023-24 

EGM 

16th August 2023 Via videoconferencing 

medium 

11:00 AM 

2023-24 

AGM 

21st June 2023 At the registered office 

address of the Company 

5:00 PM 

2023-24 

EGM 

26th April 2023 At the registered office 

address of the Company 

11:26 AM 

2022-23 

EGM 

27th March 2023 At the registered office 

address of the Company 

8:20 PM 

 

The following Special Resolutions were passed by the Members during the General Meetings: 

 

Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 6th March 2025: 

 Issuance of Non-Convertible Debentures on Private Placement basis for an amount not 

exceeding Rs.2,872 crore 

 

Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 24th February 2025: 

 Transfer of the two units of the TOD Business Undertaking of the Company as a going 

concern. 

 Fixing of overall borrowing limits of the Company to INR.19,072 crore. 

 Creation of security within the overall borrowing limit of INR.19,072 crore. 

 Appointment of Mr. A Venu Prasad (DIN: 01054227) as an Independent Director of the 

Company for a period of five years with effect from 11th January 2025. 

 

Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 11th October 2023: 

 Increase in Variable Pay (PLR) To Mr. KVB Reddy, MD & CEO of the Company for FY 

2022-23. 

 Fixing of Variable Pay (PLR) For FY2023-24 and Increase in Special Pay with effect 

from 1st July 2023 to Mr. KVB Reddy, MD & CEO of the Company. 

 Reappointment of Mr. K V B Reddy as Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer 

of the Company with effect from 24th January 2024 to 31st July 2025. 
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Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 16th August 2023: 

 Approval for the consummation of the proposed sale of the Raidurg business 

undertaking of the Company (“Concessionaire”) as a going concern. 

 

Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 27th March 2023: 

 Approval for appointment of Ms. Deepa Gopalan Wadhwa as an Independent Director 

of the Company for a period of five years with effect from 27th March 2023. 

 Alteration in the Articles of Association of the Company by modifying article “Calls on 

Shares”. 

 Approval for appointment of Mr. Sujit Varma as an Independent Director of the 

Company for a period of five years with effect from 25th April 2022 as per the 

requirements of SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015. 

 

Resolution(s) passed through Postal Ballot: 

No postal ballot was conducted during FY 2024-25. There is no immediate proposal for 

passing any resolution through postal ballot. 

 

G. OTHER INFORMATION 

 
a) Directors’ Familiarization Program: 

All our directors are aware and are also updated as and when required, of their role, 

responsibilities & liabilities. The Director’s Familiarization Program during the year was 

held on 29th March 2025. 

 

Presentations are made regularly to the Board/ Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

(NRC)/ Audit Committee (AC)/ Risk Management Committee (RMC) (minutes of AC, 

NRC, Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee and RMC are circulated to the Board), 

where Directors get an opportunity to interact with senior management. Presentations, 

inter alia, cover business strategies, management structure & development, quarterly 

and annual results, budgets, review of internal audit, risk management framework, etc. 

 

Independent Directors have the freedom to interact with the Company’s Management. 

Interactions happen during Board/ Committee meetings, when senior company 

personnel are asked to make presentations to the Board.  
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The details of the familiarisation programmes imparted to Independent Directors is also 

available on the Company’s website https://www.ltmetro.in/investors/corporate-

governance/. 

 

b) Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy: 

The Vigil Mechanism Policy of the Company meets the requirement of the Vigil 

Mechanism framework under the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of SEBI 

LODR Regulations 2015. This policy provides for adequate safeguards against 

victimization of persons who complain under the mechanism and provides for direct 

access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee of the Company 

oversees the functioning of the Whistle Blower Policy. 

 

Members can view the details of the whistle blower policy of the Company on its website 

https://www.ltmetro.in/investors/corporate-governance/. 

 

c) Code of Conduct:  

The Company has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board members and senior 

management personnel. The Code of Conduct is available on the website of the 

Company https://www.ltmetro.in/investors/corporate-governance/. The declaration of 

the Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer is given below: 

 

To the Shareholders of L&T Metro Rail (Hyderabad) Limited 

 

Sub: Compliance with Code of Conduct 

 

I hereby declare that all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have 

affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct as adopted by the Board of Directors and 

Senior Management Personnel. 

 

KVB Reddy 

MD & CEO 

Date: 21.04.2025 

Place: Hyderabad 
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H. DISCLOSURES 

i. During the year, there were no transactions of material nature with the Directors or the 

Management or their relatives or any other related party that had potential conflict with 

the interests of the Company. 

ii. Details of all related party transactions form a part of the accounts as required under 

IND AS 24 and the same are given in Notes forming part of the financial statements. 

iii. The Company has followed all relevant Accounting Standards notified by the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 while preparing the Financial 

Statements. 

iv. There were no instances of non-compliance, penalties, strictures imposed on the 

Company by the Stock Exchanges on any matter related to the capital markets, during 

the last three years except for the following: 

1. BSE levied a penalty of Rs.5,000/- plus tax for delayed submission of intimation 

about Board Meeting due to technical glitch. 

2. The company was levied with a fine of Rs.57,000/- plus applicable tax under 

Reg.52(7) for non-submission of statement indicating the utilization of issue 

proceeds/material deviation in the use of proceeds vide their mail dated 

27.09.2022. The utilization of issue proceeds was completed on the very first 

day of receipt of issue proceeds and hence there was no amount pending for 

utilization and also, there was no deviation in the use of proceeds.  

3. The BSE imposed fines under Reg.60(2) – one day delay (BSE non-working 

day in between) in the notice period for Record date intimation during FY 2021-

22 amounting to Rs.60,000/- plus tax vide their email dated 28.09.2022.  

4. The Company received an email dated 28.09.2022 from BSE levying a fine of 

Rs.2000/- plus tax under Reg.57(1) – (Non-disclosure of information related to 

payment obligations). The receipt of payment confirmation from State Bank of 

India regarding credit of interest payment to the debenture holders was delayed 

by one day and hence, intimation to the Stock Exchange under this Regulation 

got delayed accordingly.  

v. As required under the provisions of SEBI LODR Regulations, a certificate on the non-

disqualification of the Directors by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such 

statutory authority obtained from M/s Kota & Associates, Company Secretaries is a 

part of the Corporate Governance report. 

vi. Details in relation to the Whistle Blower Policy form a part of the Board Report and no 

personnel was denied access to the audit committee. 
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vii. Details in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 form a part of the Board Report. Please refer to 

Point 27 of the Board Report. 

 

I. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

 

Financial Results and other Communications 

Quarterly and Annual Results are published in prominent daily newspaper viz. The Financial 

Express. The results are also posted on the Company’s website www.ltmetro.in 

 

Website 

The Company’s website www.ltmetro.in provides comprehensive information about nature 

of activities and business. Section on “Investors” serves to inform and service the security 

holders allowing them to access information at their convenience. The entire Annual Report 

including Accounts of the Company is available on our Company’s website in downloadable 

formats. The entire Annual Report including Accounts of the Company would also be made 

available on the websites of BSE Limited. 

 

Filing with Stock Exchanges 

Information to Stock Exchanges is filed online on BSE Listing portal. 

 

Annual Report and Annual General Meeting 

Annual Report is circulated to all the members and all others like auditors, debenture trustees 

etc. The Annual Report is e-mailed to all members who have registered their email ids with 

the Company/ Depository Participant. The Annual Report would also be made available on 

the website of the Company. The Chairman suitably responds to the queries raised by the 

Members during the AGM. 

 

SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES) 

Investor complaints are processed at SEBI in a centralized web-based complaints redress 

system. The salient features of this system are centralised database of all complaints, online 

upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by concerned companies and online viewing by 

investors of actions taken on the complaints and their status. The Company did not receive 

any complaint on SCORES during FY 2024-25. 
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Listing Fees to Stock Exchanges: 

The Company has paid the all the Listing Fees for non-convertible debentures and 

commercial papers for the year 2024-25 to BSE Ltd. 

 

Custodial Fees to Depositories: 

The fees to National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services 

(India) Limited (CDSL) has been paid for the year 2024-25. 

 

J. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION 

 

a) Annual General Meeting: 

The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be convened at any time before/ during 

the month of September 2025 at the registered office address. 

 
b) Financial calendar: 

1. Annual results of 2024-25 21st April 2025 

2. E-mailing of Annual Reports Before first week of September 2025 

3. Annual General Meeting During or before end September 2025 

4. First quarter results During second week of July 2025* 

5. Second quarter results During second week of October 2025* 

6. Third quarter results During second week of January 2026* 

* Tentative 
 

c) Listing of debentures and commercial papers on Stock Exchange: 

The debentures and commercial papers of the Company are listed on BSE Limited 

(BSE). 

 

d) Registrar and Transfer Agents (RTA): 

NSDL Database Management Limited 4th Floor, Trade World A Wing, Kamala Mills 

Compound, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai – 400 013. 

 

Credit Rating: 

The Company has obtained rating from CRISIL Limited and India Ratings and Research 

Private Limited (India Ratings) for NCDs and CPs during the financial year 2024-25. The 

NCDs and CPs are rated AAA(CE) and A1+ respectively by both the agencies. 
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e) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March 2025: 
 

Sr. No Name of the share holder  No. of Equity 
shares held  

1.  
 
Larsen and Toubro Limited 
 

741,29,99,994 

2.  

 
Venkata Nagendra Prasad Koganti jointly with Larsen 
And Toubro Limited 
 

1 

3.  

 
Sudhir Chiplunkar jointly with Larsen And Toubro 
Limited 
 

1 

4.  

 
Pullela Ravishankar jointly with Larsen And Toubro 
Limited 
 

 
1 

5.  
 
Rahul Nilosey jointly with Larsen And Toubro Limited 
 

1 

6.  

 
Chandrachud Durlabh Paliwal jointly with Larsen And 
Toubro Limited 
 

1 

7.  
 
Government of Telangana, Secretariat, Hyderabad 
 

1 

 Total 
 

741,30,00,000 
 

  

 There are no outstanding convertible securities of the Company. 

 

f) Dematerialization of shares & Liquidity: 

The Company’s Shares are required to be in dematerialized form.  

 

The number of shares held in dematerialized and physical mode as on 31st March 2025 is 
as under: 

 No. of shares % of total capital 
issued 

Held in dematerialized form in NSDL 741,29,99,999 99.9999 

Physical 1 0.0001 

Total 741,30,00,000 100.00 
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The physical share (Golden Share) is held by the Government of Telangana State (GoTS). 

As per the shareholders agreement executed between the Company and GoTS, GoTS 

shall not be entitled to transfer the Golden Share except for the instance mentioned in the 

Shareholders Agreement. 

 

K. DEBENTURE TRUSTEE 

M/s SBICAP Trustee Company Limited, having their office at 202, Marker Tower, ‘E’, Cuffe 

Parade, Colaba, Mumbai - 400005 are continuing as the Debenture Trustee for Tranche I, II 

and III Unsecured Debentures amounting to Rs.49.10 crore. 

 

Axis Trustee Services Limited, having their office at The Ruby, 2nd Floor, SW 29, Senapati 

Bapat Marg, Dadar West, Maharashtra – 400028 are continuing as Debenture Trustee for 

Senior, Listed, Rated, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures amounting to Rs.8,616 

crore. 

 
 

L. ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDANCE 

Hyderabad Metro Rail Administrative Building, 

Uppal Main Road, Nagole, 

Hyderabad- 500 039, Telangana, India. 

Debenture holders’ correspondence may be directed to the Company’s Registrar and Share 

Transfer Agent, whose address is given below: 

 

NSDL Database Management Limited 

4th Floor, A Wing, Trade World , 

Kamala Mills Compound, Senapati Bapat Marg, 

Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400013.  

Tel : (022) 4914 2700 

Email: info_ndml@nsdl.co.in 

Website: www.nsdl.co.in 

 

a) Investor Grievances: 

The investors may register their complaints, if any on chandrachud.paliwal@ltmetro.com. 
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b) Secretarial Audit as per Companies Act, 2013: 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s. Kota & 

Associates, Company Secretaries, conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of 

applicable statutory provisions and the adherence of good corporate practices by the 

Company. 

 

Pursuant to the SEBI circular no. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated 8th February 2019, the 

Company has obtained annual secretarial compliance report for FY 2023-24 from M/s. 

Kota & Associates, Company Secretaries and has submitted the same to BSE Ltd. on 23rd  

May 2024. The Company shall submit the annual secretarial compliance report for FY 

2024-25 within the prescribed timelines. 
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         Annexure III 

 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 
 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

 

In terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder 

and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations 2015, and amendments thereof, this Nomination and Remuneration (NRC) 

Policy has been formulated to act as a guideline for determining, inter-alia, 

qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director, matters relating to 

the remuneration, appointment, removal and evaluation of performance of the 

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Senior Management. 

 

2. OBJECTIVE 

 

The Key Objectives of the Policy are: 

 
2.1. To lay down criteria and terms and conditions with regard to identifying 

persons who are qualified to become Directors and persons who may be 

appointed in Senior Management, KMP positions and to determine their 

remuneration. 

2.2. That the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to 

attract, retain and motivate directors, KMPs and Senior Management. 

2.3. To determine remuneration based on the Company’s size and financial position. 

2.4. To specify the manner for evaluation of the performance of Board, its Committees 

and Directors individually by NRC or an external independent agency. 

 
In the context of the aforesaid criteria the following policy has been formulated by the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

 

3. DEFINITIONS 

 
3.1. “Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, as 

amended from time to time. 
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3.2. “Listing Regulation” means SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements), Regulations 2015 and amendments thereof. 

3.3. “Board of Directors” or “Board”, in relation to the Company, means the collective 

body of the directors of the Company. 

3.4. “Nomination and Remuneration Committee” shall mean a Committee of Board of 

Directors of the Company, constituted in accordance with the provisions of 

Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements, Regulations 2015 ('LODR Regulations’) 

3.5. “Company” means L&T Metro Rail (Hyderabad) Limited. 

3.6. “Directors” mean Directors of the Company including Independent Director 

referred  in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Nominee Director 

(Section 149(7) of Companies Act, 2013) on behalf of Government of Telangana 

State. 

3.7. “Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) means 

(a). Chief Executive Officer and/or the Managing Director or the Manager; 

 (b). Whole-time director; 

(c). Chief Financial Officer;  

(d). Company Secretary; and 

(e). such other officer as may be prescribed. 

3.8. “Senior Management” means Senior Management means personnel of the 

company who are members of its core management team excluding the Board of 

Directors including Functional/Vertical Heads. 

 

Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and not 

defined herein but defined in the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations as may 

be amended from time to time shall have the meaning respectively assigned to them 

therein. 

 

4. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

 

4.1. The Policy envisages the constitution of Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee, roles and responsibilities of Independent Directors, term of 

appointment, remuneration and evaluation of Directors. 

4.2. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will consist of three or more non- 
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executive directors, out of which at least two-thirds shall be independent 

director(s), provided that Chairperson of the Company may be appointed as a 

member of this Committee but shall not chair such Committee. 

4.3. Chairperson of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be an 

Independent Director. 

4.4. The Board shall reconstitute the Committee as and when required to comply with 

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Listing Regulations and the Rules 

made thereunder. 

4.5. The Committee shall meet at least once in a year and at such regular intervals as 

may be required to carry out the objectives set out in the Policy. The Committee 

members may attend the meeting physically or through video conference or 

through permitted audio –visual mode, subject to the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder. 

4.6. Quorum for the meeting shall be 2 members or 1/3rd of the members of the 

committee, whichever is greater, with atleast 1 independent director present. 

4.7. Matters arising for determination at Committee meetings shall be decided by a 

majority      of votes of Members present and voting and any such decision shall 

for all purposes be deemed a decision of the Committee. 

4.8. In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting 
vote. 

4.9. A member of the Committee is not entitled to take part in the proceedings 

of such   business in which he/she is interested or concerned. 

4.10. The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be 

present   at the meetings of the Committee. 

4.11. The Company Secretary shall act as Secretary to the Committee. 

 

5. ROLE AND POWERS OF THE COMMITTEE: 

 

5.1. The Role and Powers of the Committee shall be as under: 
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(a). Identify persons who are qualified to become Director and persons who may 

be appointed in KMPs in accordance with the criteria laid down in this policy. 

(b). To formulate the criteria for determining the qualifications, positive attributes 

and independence of a director. 

(c). To formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors, Chairman, 

Board and the Board Committees. 

(d). Recommend to the Board, appointment and removal of Director and KMP. 

(e). The Chairperson of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or, in his 

absence, any other member of the Committee authorised by him, shall be 

present at the General meetings of the Company, to answer the 

shareholders queries, if any. 

(f). The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall set up a mechanism, if 

required, to carry out its functions and is further authorized to delegate any 

/ all of its powers to any of the Directors and /or Officers of the Company, as 

deemed necessary for proper and expeditious execution. 

(g). Evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and 

on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and 

capabilities required of an independent director. The person recommended 

shall have the capabilities identified in such description. 

(h). Devise a policy on Diversity of Board of Directors. 

(i). Extension or continuation of the term of appointment of the independent 

director on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent 

directors. 

 

6. APPOINTMENT CRITERIA AND QUALIFICATIONS 

 

6.1 The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and 

experience of the person for appointment as Director or KMP and recommend to 

the Board his / her appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether 

qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person is sufficient / 

satisfactory for the concerned position. 

6.2 Appointment and remuneration of person at Senior Management level to be 

decided in accordance with qualification, expertise and experience and the position 

requirement by the HR department with the approval of the Managing Director of 

the Company. 
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6.3 The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as 

Whole- time Director/Managing Director who has attained the age of seventy 

years. Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be extended 

beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a 

special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for 

such motion indicating the justification for extension of appointment beyond 

seventy years. 

6.4  Appointment of Independent Directors is also subject to compliance of provisions 

of section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Schedule IV and rules 

thereunder and SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 and amendments thereof. 

 

7. TERM / TENURE 

 

7.1. Managing Director/Whole-time Director: 

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person Managing Director or 

Whole-time Director for a term not exceeding three years in case of 

nil/inadequate profits and five years in other cases. No re-appointment shall 

be made earlier than one year before  the expiry of term. 

7.2. Independent Director: 

An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years 

on the Board of the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing 

of a special resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in 

the Board's report. 

7.3. No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, 

but such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of 

three years of ceasing to become an Independent Director. 

7.4. Retirement 

(a). The Director, KMP and Senior Management shall retire as per the applicable 

provisions of the Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. 

(b). The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior 

Management in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise even after attaining 
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the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company. 

 

8. REMUNERATION OF MANAGING DIRECTOR/ WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR, KMP 

AND  SENIOR MANAGEMENT: 

 
8.1 The remuneration/ compensation/ commission etc. to the Managing Director/ 

Whole- time Director will be determined by the Committee and recommended to 

the Board for approval. The remuneration/ compensation / commission etc. shall 

be subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company and Central 

Government, wherever required. 

8.2 Managing Director/Whole-time Director shall be eligible for a monthly 

remuneration as may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the 

Committee in accordance with the statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013, and the rules made thereunder for the time being in force. 

8.3 If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, 

the Company shall pay remuneration to its Managing Director/Whole-time 

Director in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 

2013 and if it is not able to comply with such provisions, with the prior approval 

of the Central Government. 

8.4 If any Managing Director/ Whole-time Director draws or receives, directly or 

indirectly by way of remuneration any such sums in excess of the limits 

prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 or without the prior sanction of the 

Central Government, where required, he / she shall refund such sums to the 

Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. 

8.5 Increments to the existing remuneration/ compensation structure may be 

recommended by the Committee to the Board which should be within the slabs 

approved by the Shareholders in the case of Managing Director/ Whole-time 

Director. 

8.6 Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Managing 

Director/ Whole-time Director, KMP and Senior Management for indemnifying 

them against any liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be 

treated as part of the remuneration payable to any such personnel. Provided that 

if such person is proved to be guilty, the premium paid on such insurance shall 

be treated as part of the remuneration. 

8.7 Remuneration or performance evaluation of other KMP or person at Senior 
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Management level shall be as per Company policy based on the prevailing grade 

structure in the Company.  

 

9. REMUNERATION TO NON- EXECUTIVE/ INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR: 

9.1 Remuneration / Profit Linked Commission: 

The remuneration / profit linked commission, if payable, shall be in accordance 

with the statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made 

thereunder for the time being in force. 

9.2 Sitting Fees: 

The Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of 

fees for attending meetings of the Board or any Committee of the Board.  

 

10. MONITORING, EVALUATION AND REMOVAL: 

10.1 Evaluation 

The Committee shall itself or through Board or through an independent agency 

carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, Committee(s), Board and 

Chairman on yearly basis. 

 

10.2 Removal 

The Committee may recommend to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, 

removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management subject to the provisions of 

Companies Act, 2013, and all other applicable Acts, Rules and Regulations, if 

any. 

 

11. AMENDMENT TO THE POLICY: 

 

11.1 The Board of Directors on its own and / or as per the recommendations of 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee can amend this Policy, as and when 

deemed fit. 

11.2 In case of any amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc. issued by the relevant 

authorities, not being consistent with the provisions laid down under this Policy, then 

such amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc. shall prevail upon the provisions 
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hereunder and this Policy shall stand amended accordingly from the effective date 

as laid down under such amendment(s), Clarification, circular(s) etc. 

 

12. DISCLOSURE 

 
The details of this Policy and the evaluation criteria as applicable shall be disclosed 

in the Annual Report as part of Board’s Report therein. 
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CS Kota Srinivas, MBA, Fcs 

Company Secretary 

OS KOTA &. ASSOClATIES 
Company Secretaries 

Plot No.27, Flat No.102, Maple House,l't Floor, 
Road No.5, Chandrfapuri Colony, L.B.Nagar 

Hyderabad-500074 
Ph: 9493101245; Email:cs.kotasrinivas@gmail.com 

ANNEXURE TO CORPORATE GOVERANANCE REPORT 
CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant to clause C of Schedule V of the SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirement) Regulations, 2015 read with regulation 34(3) of the said Listing Regulations). 

To, 
The Members, 
Mjs. L&T METRO RAIL (HYDERABAD) LIMITED 
CIN:U45300TG2010PLC070121 
5th Floor, Hyderabad Metro Rail Administrative Building, 
Uppal Main Road, Nagole, Hyderabad - 500 039 

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms and disclosures received from the directors 
of L&T METRO RAIL (HYDERABAD) LIMITED ( CJN U45300TG2010PLC070121) haVing its 
registered office at 5th Floor, Hyderabad Metro Rail Administrative Building, Uppal Main Road, 
Nagole, Hyderabad-500039, Telangana, India (hereinafter referred to as " the Company") , 
produced before me by the Company for the purpose ofissuingthis Certificate in accordance with 
Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V , Para-e of Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the Verifications (including 
Director Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal 'www.mca.gov.in' as considered 
necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company and its officers, I hereby certify that 
none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the financial year ending 
31st March, 2025 has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 
Directors of Company by the Securities Exchange Board of India, Minisb-y of Corporate Affairs or 
any such other Statutory authority. 

SNO. NAME OF DIRECTOR DIN DATE OF 
APPOINTMENT IN 
COMPANY 

1 VTJAYABHASKARA REDDY KALAKOTA 01683467 24/01/2018 
2 PRASANNA RANGACH.ARYA MYSORE 00010264 18}02/2016 
3 RAMAMURTHI SHANKAR RAMAN 00019798 08/12/2015 
4 VENKATSATYANARAYAN REDDY 01414254 31/03/2012 

NALLAM!LLI 
5 ARABANDI VENU PRASAD 01054227 11/01/2025 
6 SEKHARIPURAM NARAYANAN 02255382 08/12/2015 

SUBRAHMANYAN 
7 VLJAYALAKSHMI TYER 05242960 12/05/2020 
8 SUJIT KUMAR VARMA 09075212 25/04/2022 
9 DIP KISHORE 03554707 09/01/2023 
10 DEEP A GOP ALAN WADHWA 07862942 27/03/2023 1\ - JL-(9) 
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CS Kota Srinivas, MBA, Fcs 

Company Secretary 

OS KOTA &. ASSOClAT£5 
Company Secretaries 

Plot No.27, Flat No. l02, Maple House,1" Floor, 
Road No.5, Chandrfapuri Colony, L.B.Nagar 

Hyderabad-500074 
Ph: 9493101245; Email:cs.kotasrinivas@gmail.com 

Ensuring eligibility of for appointment ;continuity of every director on the Board is the 
responsibil ity of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability 
of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
t he affairs of the Company. 

For KOT A & ASSOCIATES, 
Campa y Secretaries, 

Peer ReviewCe rtNo.1736j2022 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 18-04-2025 

UDIN:F010597G000143873 
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CS Kota Srinivas, MBA, Fcs 

Company Secretary 

OS KOTA &. ASSOClAT£5 
Company Secretaries 

Plot No,27, Flat No.l02, Maple House,l't Floor, 
Road No.5, Chandrfapuri Colony,, L.B.Nagar 

Hyderabad-500074 
Ph: 9493101245; Email:cs.kotasrinivas@gmail.com 

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE REGULATIONS OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE 

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF 
L&T METRO RAIL (HYDERABAD) LIMITED 

1. 1., Kola Srinivas, Company Secretary in Practice, the Secretarial Auditor of' L&T Metro 
Rail (Hyderabad) Limited ("the Company"), have examined the compliance of conditions 
of Corporate Governance by the Company, fo1· the year ended on 31st. March 2025, as 
stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and dauses (b) to (i) of regulation 4()(2) and paras C and 
D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulalions, 201.5 and amendments from Lime to timo(the "l..,isting Regulations"). 

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY 

2. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of' the 
Management. This responsibility i.ndudes the design, implement(;ltiOn and maintenance 
of in t.emal control and procedures to ensure compliance with the condi.t.ions of the 
Corporate Governance stipulated in the Lis ting Regulations. 

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY 

3. My respons ibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof 
adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate 
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements 
of the Company. 

4. 1 have examined the relevant. records and documents maintained by the Company for 
the purposes of providing reasonable assmance on the compliance with Corporate 
Governance requirBments by the Company. 

OPINION 

5. Based on my examjnation of' the relevant. records and according to the information and 
explanations provided to me and the r<~presentations provided by the Management1 I 
certify that the Company has complied with t he conditions or Corporate Govemance as 
stiptuated in regulations 17 to 27 and clause:; (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and paras C and 
D of Schedule V of tho Listing Regulations during the year ended 31 sl March 2025. 
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CS Kota Srinivas, MBA, Fcs 

Company Secretary 

OS KOTA &. ASSOClAT£5 
Company Secretaries 

Plot No.27, Flat No. l02, Maple House,1" Floor, 
Road No.5, Chandrfapuri Colony, L.B.Nagar 

Hyderabad-500074 
Ph: 9493101245; Email:cs.kotasrinivas@gmail.com 

However, the Company has received an email communication from BSE for the 'delayed 
submission' of the Intimation about Board meeting under Regulation 50(1) of SEBl 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 which has been addressing by the company and the matter is 
s t ill pending for closure. 

6. 1 state that such compliance is ne ither an ass"L~rance as to the fu.tme viab il ity of the 
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with whieh the Management has conducted 
the aO'airs ol'the Company Report.ingofintcrnal audit.m· directly to the Audit Committee. 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 18.01.2025 
UDIN:F010597G000141827 

l1'or- KO'T'A & ASSOCIA'T'l~S, 

C~t.arics 

L ~ 
Kota Srinivas 

M.No.Fl0597;CP No.l4300 
Peer Review CertNo. 1736/2022 
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To 

®\_ 
L&TMetroRail r== 

Hyderabad 

The Board ()f Directors, 

L& T Metro Rail (Hyderabad) Limited 

CEO/ CFO Certificate -Compliance Certificate 

In our capacity as Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of 

L& T Metro Rail (Hyderabad) Limited ("the Company"), we hereby certify to the best of our 

knowledge that the Company has: 

1 . Reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31 st 

March 2025 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 

material fact or contain statements that might be misleading; 

ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs 

and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and 

regulations. 

2. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 

Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's 

code of conduct. 

3. Accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 

reporting and have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the 

Company pertaining to financial reporting and have disclosed to the auditors and the 

audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, 

of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these 

deficiencies. 

4. Indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee 

i. sign ificant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

ii . sign ificant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have 

been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 

Registered Office: 
L&T Metro Rail (Hyderabad) Limited 
Hyderabad Metro Rail Administrative Building, Uppal Main Road, Nagole, Hyderabad-500039, Telangana, India 
Tel: +91 40 22080000-01, Fax: +91 40 22080771, Web: www.ltmetro.in 
CIN : U45300TG2010PLC070121 
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L&TMetroRail® r == 
Hyderabad 

iii. instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement 

therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the 

Company's internal control system over financial reporting. 

This certificate is given with full knowledge that, on its faith and strength, full reliance can be 

placed by the Board of Directors of the Company. 

Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer 

(DIN: 01683467) 

Date : 181h April 2025 

Place : Hyderabad 

Registered Office: 
L& T M etro Rail (Hyderabad) Limited 

AVRS Sharma 

Chief Financial Officer 

Hyderabad Metro Rail Administrative Building, Uppal Main Road, Nagole, Hyderabad-500039, Telangana, India 
Tel: +91 40 22080000-07, Fax: +91 40 22080771, Web: www.ltmetro.in 
C/N : U45300TG2010PLC070127 
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KOTA &. A_5SOCLATES 

CS Kota Srinivas, MsA,Fcs 
OS Company Secretaries 

Plot No.27, Flat No.l02, Maple House,l" Floor, 
Road No.5, Chandrfapuri Colony, LB. Nagar 

Hyderabad-500074 

Ph: 9493101245; Email:cs.kotasrfnlvas@gmail.com 

Comparw Seqet;;~ry 

To, 

FORM NO. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 5 r MARCH, 2025 
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

The Members, 
M/s. L&T METRO RAIL (HYDERABAD) LIMITED, 
CIN: U45300TG2010PLC070121 
5th Floor, Hyderabad Metro Rail Administrative Building, 
Uppal Main Road, Nagele, 
Hyderabad- 500 039. 

1, I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliances of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. L& T METRO RAIL (HYDERABAD) 
LIMITED (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner 
that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory 
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

2. Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the Company which was made available to us and 
also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, 
the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 3151 March, 
2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 
has proper board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the 
manner and subject. to the reporting made hereinafter. 

I have examined the books, papers, minutes' book, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31 51 March, 2025 according to the 
provisions of: 

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 
ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made 

thereunder; 
iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
iv) The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India Act, 1992 (SEBI Act) viz:-

Page:1/3 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and listing of debt securities) 
Regulations, 2008; 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 
transfer agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing 
with client; ~ 
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KOTA &. A__5SOCLATES 

CS Kota Sr'inivas, MsA,Fcs 
OS Company Secretaries 

Plot No.27, Flat No.l02, Maple House, 1st Floor, 
Road No.5, Chandrfapuri Colony, L.B.Nagar 

Hyderabad-500074 

Ph~ 9493101245; Email:cs.kotasrTnfvas@gmail.com 

Comparw Seqet;;~ry 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of fnsider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015; 

v) The laws that are specifically applicable to the Company are listed in Annexure 8 : 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with 
respect to board and general meetings. 

ii) Listing agreement entered into with SSE Limited, Mumbai, for listing of Debt Securities. 

Further, it has been informed to us that, in the opinion of the management of the Company, all 
the related party transactions entered by the Company during the period under review have 
been entered on Arm's length basis and in the ordinary course of business and therefore, 
compliance of provisions of Companies Act, 2013 in respect of any of these transactions do not 
arise. However, all the related party transactions have been approved by the Audit Committee 
from time to time. 

I further report that the related documents that we have come across depict that: 

The Company has received an email from SSE offic1al email dated 251h June 2024 seeking 
clarification on the 'delayed submission' of the Intimation about Board meeting under Regulation 
50(1) if SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The Company has been duly addressing this issue 
with SSE by giving the factual incidents and the technical glitch experienced during filing that 
lead to the delay in submission in this regard. The SSE has levied a nominal penalty of 
Rs.5,000/- and the Company has paid the same. 

Further, the Company has sufficient Independent directors as required i.e. Regulation 15 to 27 
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) and in 
compliance thereof for High Value Debt Listed entities before the prescribed time i.e. March, 
2025, which was the audit query during last year audit i.e. 2023-24. 

The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period 
under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act and SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 requirements. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and the Company has obtained the 
consent of the board members for short notice wherever applicable. A system exists for seeking 
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and 
for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Page:2/3 
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CS Kota Srinivas, MaA, Fcs 

Comparw Seqet"ry 

OS KOTA &. A__5SOCLAT£S 
Company Secretaries 

Plot No.27, Flat No.l02, Maple House, 1st Floor, 
Road No.5, Chandrfapuri Colony, LB. Nagar 

Hyderabad-500074 

Ph: 9493101245; Email:cs.kotasrfnlvas@gmail.com 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views, if any, are captured 
and recorded as part of the minutes. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance 
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

I further report that during the audit period there have been enlisted major actions or events 
undertaken by the Company which may have a major bearing on the Company's affairs jn 
pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, standards, etc. 

-There is no alteration of Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association during the 
year under review. 
-No change in the capital structure i.e. Authorized share capital or Paid up capital of the 
company. 

Further; 

-The Structured Digital Database is being duly maintained internally and the audit trail is being 
maintained. 

-The Company is a High Value Debt listed entity and its Equity share are not listed. 

I further report that the audit was conducted as per the CSAS standards prescribed. 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 21.04.2025. 
UDIN: F010597G000158426 ~:-:---

Kota Srilltvas 
Company Secretary in Practice 

FCS 10597 
CP No.14300 

Peer Review Cert.No,1736/2022 

Th(s Report is to be read with our letter of even date wh{ch Is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of 
this report. 
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Annexure A 
To 
The Members 
L& T METRO RAIL (HYDERABAD) LIMITED, 
CIN: U45300TG2010PLC070121 
5th Floor, Hyderabad Metro Rail Administrative Building, 
Uppal Main Road, Nagole, 
Hyderabad- 500 039. 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based 
on our audit 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes that were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. 
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices we followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and 
Books of Accounts of the Company. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained Management representation about the compliance 
of laws, rules and regulations and happenings of events etc., 

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules and 
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited 
to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the Company. 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 21.04.2025. 
UDIN: F01 0597G000158426 

' KO_fa..Srlnlvas 
mpaAY"'Secretary in Practice 

FCS 10597 
CP No.14300 

Peer Review Cert.No,1736/2022 
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List of Applicable Acts 

KOTA &. A_5SOClATES 
Compa11y Secretaries 

Plot No.27, Flat No.l02, Maple House,1" Floor, 
Road No.5, Chandrfapuri Colony, LB. Nagar 

Hyderabad-500074 

Ph: 9493101245; Email:cs.kotasrfnlvas@gmail.com 

Annexure B 

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder; 

2. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and bye-laws framed thereunder; 

3. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and listing of Debt securities) 

Regulations, 2008, SEBI (I LNCS) Regulations, 2021 , SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

4. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share transfer 

agents) Regulations, 1993. 

5. The Metro Railways (Operation & Maintenance) Act, 2002 and the Rules made thereunder. 

6. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder. 

7 . The Minimum Wages Act, 1948 read with the Telangana Minimum Wages Rules, 1960; 

8. The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 read with the Payment of Gratuity (Central) Rules, 1972; 

9. The Employees' Provident Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952; 

10. The Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act, 1970 read with the Contract Labour 

(Regulation and Abolition) Rules, 1971; 
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11 . 1ncomeTaxAct, 1961 read with Income Tax Rules; 

KOTA &. A_5SOCLATES 
Company Secretaries 

Plot No.27, Flat No.l02, Maple House,1•1 Floor, 
Road No.5, Chandrfapuri Colony, L.B.Nagar 

Hyderabad-500074 

Ph ~ 9493101245; Email:cs.kotasrinlvas@gmail.com 

12. The Central Sales Tax Act, 1956 read with the Central Sales Tax (Registration & Turnover) 

Rules, 1957; 

13. Service Tax Provisions under Finance Act, 1994 read with the Service Tax Rules, 1994 and 
the Service Tax (Registration of Special Category of Persons) Rules, 2005 and the Cenvat 
Credit Rules, 2004; 

14. The Personal Injuries (Compensation) Insurance Act, 1963; 

15. The Information Technology Act , 2000 (as amended by Information Technology Amendment 
Act, 2008); 

16. The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961; 

17. The Indian Telegraph Act, 1885 & the Indian Telegraph Rules, 1951 ; 

18. The Indian Wireless Telegraphy Act, 1933; 

19. The Registration Act, 1908; 

20. Indian Stamp Act, 1899; 

21 . Motor Vehicles Act, 1988; 

22. The BUilding & Other Construction Workers (Regulation of Employment and Conditions of 

Service) Central Rules, 1998; 

23. The Building and Construction Workers Welfare Cess Act, 1996 and the Building and 

Construction Workers Welfare Cess Rules, 1998; 

~ 
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24. Multi-Storeyed Buildings Regulations, 1981 ; 

KOTA &. A__5SOCLAT£S 
Company Secretaries 

Plot No.27, Flat No.l02, Maple House,l'l Floor, 
Road No.5, Chandrfapuri Colony, LB. Nagar 

Hyderabad-500074 

Ph ~ 9493101245; Email:cs.kotasrfnlvas@gmail.com 

25. The Telangana Rules for Construction and Regulation of Multiplex Complexes, 2007; 

26. The Telangana Building Rules, 2012; 

27. Telangana Fire Services Act, 1999 and the Andhra Pradesh Fire and Emergency Operations 
and Levy of Fee Rules, 2006; 

28. The Greater Hyderabad Municipal Corporations Act, 1955; 

29. The Telangana Motor Vehicles Rules, 1989; 

30. The Telangana Motor Vehicles Taxation Act, 1963 and the Rules made thereunder; 

31 . The Telangana Tax on Professions, Trades, Callings and Employments Act, 1987 and the 
Rules made thereunder; 

32. The Telangana Shops and Establishments Act, 1988; 

33. T he Telangana State Electricity Board (Recovery of Dues) Act, 1984 and the Telangana 

State Electricity Board (Recovery of Debts) Rules, 1985; 

34. The Telangana Compulsory Gratuity Insurance Rules, 2011 ; 

35. The Telangana Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Rules, 1971; 

36. Telangana Value Added Tax Act, 2005 and the Rules made thereunder; 

37. The Hyderabad Metropolitan Water Supply and Sewerage Act, 1989 and the Rules made 
thereunder; 

38. T elangana Water, Land and Trees Act, 2002 and Andhra Pradesh Water. Land and Trees 

Rules, 2004; ~/-1<;~ 
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M. BHASKARA RAO & CO 
CHARTER ED ACCOUNTANT S 
PHONE S : 23311245, 23393900 

FAX ; 040-23399248 

Independent Auditor 's Report 

To the Members of 

L&T Metro Rail (H ydcrabad) L imited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statemen ts 

Opinion 

5-D . FIFTH FLOOR, "KAUTILYA" . 
6-3-652, SOMAJIGUDA. 

HYDERABAD-500 082. INDIA. 

e-mail : mbr co@mbrc.co.m 

We have audited the accompanying Financial Sta1cments of L&T Metro Rail (ll ydcrabad) Limited (''the 

Company"), which comprise the Balru1ce Sheet as at 31 March 2025, the Sta1emen t of Profit ru1d Loss 

(including Other Comprehensive Jncome), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash 

Flows for the year ended on that date and notes to the financial statements. including a sw11mary of the 
material accounting policies and other explanatory infom1ation (here after refe1Ted to as "the financial 

statements"). 

1n our opinion and to the best of our infonnation and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
fmancial statements give the infom1ation required by the Companies Act, 2013 (''the Act'') in the manner so 

required and give a tTue and fair view in confonnity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescJibed u11der 

section 133 of the Act read with the Compan ies ( Indian Accounting Stru1dards) Rules, 2015, as amended, 
("lnd AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company 

as at 31 MaTch 2025, its Joss and total comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the 

year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the fmancial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) 

specified u11der section 143(1 0) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 

in the "Auditor 's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section of our report. We are 

independent of the Company in accordance with the '·Code of Ethics" issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India ("ICA I'') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 

financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled 

our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the lCAI's Code of Ethics. We 

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approp1iate to provide a basis for our 

opinion. 

Key Audit Mattet·s 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our 

audit of the financial statements for the year ended on 31 March 2025. These mat1ers were addressed in the 

context of our audit of tl1e financial statements as a whole, aod in fanning our opinion thereon, and we do 

not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have dctem1ined the matters described below to be the 

key audit matters to be communicated in our repo11. 
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Key Aud it Matte1·s 

Impairment Assessment of Intangible 
assets - Metro(Note 5: Rs.I4,749.69 
Cr·ores) 
The operation and maintenance of the 

Metro Rail System involves a long 

COJH.:ession period. The project 

commissioning was delayed as against 

the 01iginally estimated completion 

date as mentioned in the concession 

agreement resulting in cosl overrun. 

Further, the passenger tTaffic is lower 

than the initial projections, resulting in 

lesser fare revenues as compared to 

estimation made. 

It is therefore necessary to test the 

intangible assets fm impainnenl to 

ensure thar the carrying value of the 

assets does not exceed their recoverable 

amount. The recoverable value of 

intangible <~ssets is detennined on the 
basis of projections which involve 

technical estimations and management 

judgements. Therefore, impainnent 

assessment is necessary at least on an 

annual basis to ensure that ilie carrying 

value of the assets is fairly stated. 

CONTINUATION SttEET __ _ 

Auditor 's Response 

Designed and perfonued following audit 

procedures with respect to impa innent 

assessment by the management including the 

assumptions and estimates used in evaluation of 

can·ying value of intangible assets where there is 

an indication ofimpainnent: 

• Understanding the process followed by the 

Company 10 respecr of the impaim1en1 

<1ssessmen1 canied out on annual basis for 
intangible assets. 

• Evaluating the design and implementatjon 

and testing the operating effectiveness of 

key intemal conb·ols relaled to the 

Company's process relating to rev iew of the 

annual impainnent assessment, including 

conlrols over detennination of cliscoill1t rate, 

near and long-term revenue growth rate. 

• Reviewing the reasonableness of the 

assumptions, particulru·ly estimalion of 

passenger traffic based on our knowledge of 

the Company. Assessing histolical accuracy 

by compating past forecasts to actual results 

achieved. We had discussions with tl1e 

management of the Corupany to understand 

the driving factors which l1ave been I should 

have been considered for the impainnent 

analysis. 

• Enquiries with the management for 

understanding of various strategic i11itiatives 

taken by tbe company to improve its capital 
structure. 

• Evaluating the impainnent model used and 

assumptions (includ ing discount rate and 
long-tem1 sales growth rate applied by the 

Company). 

• Reviewing tl1e sensitivity analysis to 

evaluate the impact of change 1n key 

assumptions individually or collectively to 
the recoverable value. 

Information O ther than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The other 

the infom1ation included u1 the Board's Report i11cluding annexures to Bo<~rd's 
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Report, but does not include the financial statements and oUJ· auditor's report thereon. 

Oul" opinion on the financial s tatements does not cover the other infonnation and we do not express any form 

of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our respo11S1bility is to read the otJ1er infonnation 

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 

statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit, or orJ1erwise appears to be materially 

misstated. 

If, based on the work we have pe1fonned, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to reporl in this regard. 

Management's Responsibiuty for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act, with 

respect to the prcparatio11 of these financial sta tements thai gjve a tme and fair view of the financial position, 

fu1ancial perfmmance (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of tl1e 
Company in accordance with the accotmting p1inciples generally accepted in India, including the Indian 

Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Rules issued thereunder. Thjs 

responsibiHty also includes maintenance of adequate accow1ting records in accordance with the provisions 

of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventi11g and detecting fra uds and other 

irregu larities; selection and application of approp1iate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 

that are reasonable and prudent: and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financ ial 

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

records, Tel evant to the preparation and presentation of the fiJ1ancial statemen ts that give a true and fair view 

and are free from materia] misstatement., wllether due Lo fraud or error. 

ln preparing the financia l statements, management and the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing 

the Company's ability to conti11ue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 

concem and using the going concern basis of accounting Wliess management either intends to liquidate the 

Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Boa1·d of Directors are also responsible for overseeing tl1e Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor 's Responsibilities for t.hc A udit of the F inancial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assw-ance about whether the financial statements as a \Vhole are free 

Ji·om material misstatement, whether due to fraud or en·or, and to issue an auditor's report tha t includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with SAs will always detect a materia] misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise fi·om 

fraud or en·or and are considered material if: individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on tJ1e basis of these financial statements. 

As pari of an audit in accordmce with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout t·he audit. We also: 
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or en-or. design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fi·aud is higher than for one resulting from enor, as fi·aud may involve 
colh1sion, forgery, intentional omissions. mit::representations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the auclit in order to design audit procedures 
that arc appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3 )(i) of the Act, we arc also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• EvaJuatc the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accouming 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the approptiatencss of management ·s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material unccttainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Comprmy's ability to continue as a going concem. 
1 f we conclude that a material UJJcertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor ·s 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or. if such disclosures arc inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtail1ed upto the date of our 
auditor·s report. However, furore evems or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 

as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financia.J statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other mailers, the planned scopl.! 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings , including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independeoce, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the maners communicated with those charged with governance, we detennjne those matters that were 

of most significant in the audi t of financial statements for the year t:ndcd 31 March 2025 and are therefore 
the key audit malters. We desctibe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation preclude 
public disclosure about the mailers or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we detennine that a mal1er 
should nol be communicated in ourreport because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 

be expected to outweigh !he public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 {"the Order'") issued by the Central 
Government oflndia in tern1s of sub-section ( ll ) of section 143 of the Act , we give in the 'Anne.;-:ure 
A', a statement on the matters specified in paragrapl1s 3 <md 4 of the Order. 
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:1. \\ c have sought and obtained all the infonnation and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necesscuy for the purposes of our audit; 

b. in our opinion proper books of account as required by law hnve been kept by the Company so 

far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

c. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, 

the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt w ith by this Report 

a re in agreement with the books of account~ 

d. in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the 1ndian Accounting Standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the tules issued thereunder; 

e . on the basis of wrirten Tepresentations received fi·om the directors as on 3 I March 2025, and 

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 3 1 March 

2025. from being appointed as a director in term!. of Section 164 ('2) of the Act: 

1~ with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial contTOis with reference to financial 

statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 

separate report in 'Annexure B ·; and 

2B.With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance w ith Rule II of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the best ofourinfom1ation 

and according to the ex plaJ1ations given to us: 

i. the Company has disclosed the impact of all pending litigations on its financiaJ position in its financial 

statements -Refer note 17 to the financia l statements: 

ii. t11e Company has made provision, as required under the applicable accounting stru1dards, towards 

major maintenance and overhaul expenditure obligation arising out of concession agreement (refer 

note 16 to the financial statements). The Company does not have any derivate contTac ts as on 31 

March 2025; and 

iii. there are no amounts which were required to be b·ausfen·ed to the Investor Education and Protection 

Fund during the year ended 3 I March 2025. 

iv. (i) the management has represented that, to the best of its kJJowledge and belief, no funds (which 

are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either 

from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or 

in any other person or enrity, including foreign entity ("lntennediaries''), with the understanding. 

whether recorded in writing or othenvise. thai the Intem1edimy shall, whether. directly or indirectly 

lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

~1pany (' 'Ultimate B eneficia1ies") or provide ru1y guarantee, sccmity or tJ1e like on behalf of the 

. ~·~ H,.:IIJ ® 1ate Beneficiaries; '" ~ ,,-.. " y * {; :xJ - .. .:t. 
~ . 

0 .. .. b 
S' 0~ 
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(ii) the management has represented, that. to the b~st of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which 
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the company from any 

person or entity. including foreign entities ("'runding P<uiies"). with the understanding, whether 
recorded in w1iting or otherwise, that the company shall, whetJJer, directly or indirectly, lend or invest 
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(''Ultimate Beneficialies'') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries~ and 

(iii) Based on audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumsl.clnces, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule II (e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above, 
contain any material mis-statement. 

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. 

vi. Based on our examination \Yhich included test checks, the Company has used an accotmting 
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) 
facility and the same has opemted throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the 
software. further. during the course or our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail 
fean1re beiJlg tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory 
requirements for n.:cord retention 

2C. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197( 16) of the Act, as amended: 

In our opinion and ro the best of our infonnation and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid I payable by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with rhe 
provisions of Sectjon 197 or the Act. 

Jlyderabad, 21 April2025 

for M. Bhaskar a Rao 8.:. Co., 
Chartered Accountants 

Finn's Registration No.000459S 

(L_wu(i; , 
M V R amana Murthy 

Partner 
Membership No.206439 

UDIN: 25206439BMKRAC6668 
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report 

(Refened to in paragraph I under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of ow· 

report of even date to the members ofL&T Metro Rail (Hyderabad) Limited ) 

To the best of our infom1ation and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the 

books of account and records examined by us in the nom1al course of audit. we state that: 

(i) (u) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing f11ll par6cu1Rrs. including 

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details 

of Investment Property. 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full pm1iculars of intangible 

assets. 

{b) The property, p lant and equipment have been physically verified during the year by tl1e 

Management in accordance with a pbased programme of verification, which, in our opinion. 

provides for physical verification of all the property, plant and equipment at reasonable 
intervals having regard to the size of the Company and rhe nature of their assets. The 

discrepancies noticed on such verification were not material.. 

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties (otl1er than buildings and land lease rights under 

lnvestment Properties) are held in the name of the Company. 

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipmem or intangible assets during 
the year and accordingly, paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Compru1y as at 31 March 2025 
for holding any ben ami property under 1J1e Prohibition of Benami Prope11y Transactions Act. 

1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. 

(ii) (a) The inventories were physically verified during the ycnr by the management at reasonable 

intervals. In our opinion, the coverage and procedures of' such verification are appropriate and 

reasonable considering the size of the Company and nature of its business and no material 

discrepancies of I 0% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on 

physical verification between physical stock and book records. 

(b) As disclosed in note 12.4 to the fmancial statements, the Company has been sanctioned 

working capital limits in excess of Rs.S crore during the year. However, there is no requirement 

of submission of statements to respective banks; hence reporting under this paragraph is not 

applicable at present. 

(iii) The Company has not made any investments, provided any guarantee or secunty or granted any loans 
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(iv) The Company has not granted any loans, nor made any investments or given nny guarantees or 
secuti ties during the year to any ofthe parties specified in the Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and accordingly paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits to which 
the directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India and provisions of Section 73 to Section 76 or any 
other relevant provision of the Act and the Rules made there under, wl1cre applicable. Further no order 
has been passed by Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of 
India or any court or any other !Jibunal and accordingly paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 
at present. 

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by tl1e Central Gove111mcnt under sub-section 
(1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities can·ied out by the Company. 
Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(vii) In respect of statutory dues: 

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and 
services tax, provident fund, income tax, sales tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value 
added tax,ccss and any other material statutory dues applicable to it wi th the appropriate 
authorities during the year; 

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of goods and services tax, provident 
fund, income tax, sales tax, service tax. customs duty, excise duty. value added tax and cess 
which were in an·ears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date 
they became payable; and 

(b) According to the infonnation and explanation given to us, no dues of goods and service tax, 
income tax, sales tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and any other 
statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of dispute. 

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been sun·endered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 196 I. 

(ix) (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment oftenn loans and other bo1Towings or in payment 
of interest thereon to banks, financial institutions or any other lenders. There arc no dues to 
debenture holders at lhe year end. 

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
govenunent or any govenunent auU10lity. 

(c) The Company has not availed any tenn loans during the year and reporting under paragraph 
3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(d) 

tatements. 
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(c) The Company does not have any subsidiaries , associates or joint , ·entures. accordingly the 

reporting under paragraph 3(ix) (e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable. 

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any monies by way of initial public ofTcr or funher public oiTer 

(including debt instruments) during the year and hence rep011ing under parngraph 3(x}(a) of 

the Order is not applicable. 

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or pnvatc placement of shares or fully 

parlly or optionally convertible debentures during the year. 

(xi) (a) No fi·aud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported 

during the year. 

(b) No repo1t under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been ftled in Fonn 

ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the 

Central Govemment, during the year and up!o the date of this report. 

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by 

the Company du1ing the year. 

(xii) The Company is nor a Nidhi Company; accordingly, paragraph 3(xi i) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) ln our opinion the Company is in compliance witi1 Sections 177 and 188 of the Act with respect of 

applicable t1·ansactions with related pa1ties and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the 

financial statements as required by the applicable accmmting standards. 

(xiv) (a) In our opinion, the Company bas an internal audit system commensurate with the size and 

nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company 

during the year and till date, in detennining the nature, timing and extent of our audit 

procedures. 

(xv) The Company has not entered into non-casl1 transactions with directors or persons connected with 

directors and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Act, are not applicable. 

(.xvi) (a) ln our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve 

Bank oflndia Act 1934. 

(b) ]n our opinion, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financ1al or Housi11g 

Finance activities. 

(c) Jn our opinion, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (C!C) as defined in the 

regulations made by rhe Reserve Bank of lndia. 
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(xvii) Tbe Company has inctHTed cash losses ofRs.269.94 Crores in the current financial year and Rs.l99.04 

Crores in the preceding fmruJcial yeru·. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. 

(xix) On the basis of the fu1ancial ratios, ageing and expected dates ofrealisation offinancial assets and 

payment of financial liabilities, other infonnation accompanying the f1nancial statements, our 

knowledge oftl1e Board of Directors and management plans, the Company's i11itialives as detailed in 

Note 25.11 to the financial statements, ~we are oflhe opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on 

the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities ex1sting at the date 

of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year Jl·om the balance sheet date. 

We, however, state that tbis is not an assurance as to the furure viability of tl1c Company. We further 

state that o~ll' reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any 

guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance 

sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fa ll due. 

(xx) In our opinion, the Company is not required to spend amount on corporate social responsibility 

activities as provisions of section J 35 of the Act are not applicable at p resent. 

(xxi) The Company does not have subsidiaries, accordingly paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable. 

Hyderabad, 21 April 2025 

forM. Bhaskara Rao & Co., 

Chartered Accountants 
Finn Registration No. 000459S 

M V Ramana Murthy 

Partner 
Membership No.206439 

UDJN: 25206439BMKRAC6668 
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Anvexu•·e B to t he Independent Auditor's Report 

(RefetTed to in paragraph 2(!) under ·Report on Other Legal and ReguiMory Requirements' section of our 

report of even date to the members ofL&T Metro Rail (Hyde•·abad) Limited) 

Repor t on the In ternal F ina ncial Contr ols with reference to financia l stait•mcn ts under Clause (i) of 
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act:, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited !he internal financial controls with reference to finm1cial staternents of L&T Metro Rail 
(1Iydera bnd) Limited ("the Company") as of3 l March 2025. in conjunct ion with our audit of I he financial 

statements of d1e Company for the year ended on that dale. 

Management's ResponsibjJily for Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 

The Company ·s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining 1ntemal financia l controls with 

reference to financial statements based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 

the Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 

of Internal Financial ContTols over Financial Repmting issued by the Institute of Char1ered Accountants of 

India (''ICAI" ). These responsibilities include the design., implemelltat1on and maintenance of adequate 

intemal fi nancial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring lhe orderly and efficient conduct of 

its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of th~ accounting records, and the timely 

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Resp onsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 

Note on A udit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (tl1e "Guidance Note") issued by 

lCAJ and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143 (10) oftheCompanies Act,2013, to the 

ex tent applicable to an audit of intemal financial controls with reference to firi.ancia l statements. Those 

Standards and the Guidance Note require that \¥e comply with ethica l requirements and plan and perfonn 

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 

respects. 

Our audit involves perfonni11g procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Om audit 

of jntemal financial contTols with refere nce to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of 

internal 'financial con11·ols with reference to financial s tatements, assessing the Ji sk that a mate1ial weakness 

exists, ru1d testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 

assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgmen t, including the assessment of the 

1isks of materia l misstatement of the financia l statements, whether due to fraud or enor. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

aucUt opinion on the Company's internaJ financia l con t1·ols system with reference to financial statements. 
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Meaning of Intcmal Financial Contr·ols witl1 reference to financial statements 

A company's intemal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to lJrovide 

reasonable assurance regarding !he reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financiaJ 

statements for external pmposes in accordru1ce with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's 

internal fUlancia l control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that 

(I) pertain to tbe maintenance of records tJ1at, in reasonable detail, accurately and fa irly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets oft he company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 

are recorded as necessary to penn it preparation of financia l statements in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance 

with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 

regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 

assets that could have a material effect on tJJe frnancial st·atements. 

Inherent Limitations of Jnternal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal fUlancial controls with reference to financial statements. 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, matetial misstatements 

due to enor or fi·aud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluati011 of the internal 

iinancial controls with reference to financial statements to future pe1iods are subject to t11e risk that the 

internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of cl1anges 

in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

ln our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company 

has, in all material respects, aD adequflte internal financial controls system with reference to finaJJcial 

statements and such internal financial conh·ols with reference ro fu1ancial statements were operating 

erfecrively as at 31 March 2025, based on the intemal control over financial reporting crite1ia established by 

the Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 

oflntemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the JCAL 

Hyderabad. 21 April 2025 

.forM. Bhaskara Rao & Co 
Chartered Accountants 

Finn Registration No.000459S 

U . 
M V Ramana M urthy 

Partner 
Membership No. 206439 

UDJN: 25206439BMKRAC6668 
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L&T Metro Rail (llyderabad) Limited 
Statement of Profit and loss for the year l'ndcd March 3 1,2.025 

INCOME 

Rc,·cml~ from ~1pcrations 
l onstructiun rcv\'ll llc 

Dlhcr incQmc 

Total Income 

EXPENSES 
Construction expenses 
Opcmting e-.pcnses 
l~mplo) ce hcnclit cxpcn~~ 
t\tlmlnistralion <lnd oth.:r c.\pt'nSt'~ 

l:i rl ~l J We costs 
D~::prt!c i;~tiun and amortisation 

Total Expenses 

Prntit/( lnss) before ta~ for the yea r 

I l l.\ l ~xpt.:nse: 

Current lu~ 

/\djust111ents relating to earlier ycnrs 
Deferred l<J,\ 

Profit/(loss) after tax for the yeur 

Other Comprehensiv~ Income 
I tem~ that will not nc retlassilied to Pro lit or Loss 

Gain/( loss) on r~mMsurenu.:rH of de lined bt:ndit plans 

Tota l Co m1>rehcnsivc l.ncome for the yea r 

Earnings per equity shar~ 
[3asic & Diluted 
race value per equity share 

Noles form ing part of the Financial St:Ht:nit:nb 
Material accounting policy info rmation 
As per our audit report attached 
for M.Bhaskara Rno & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 
Finn regisu-ation number: 000459.$.-

~1\RA 1' 
~- -10 

( :r: -'"""•J 1\ 
cC ~- ·"•"I' ., C"o IJ 

M.V. Rarnann Murthy 
/;r o0 

Pt1rtncr -:';; 

Membership No.206439 

Place: llyderahad 
Date : 2 I .04.2025 

)9 

20 

2 1 
22 
2] 

24 
3. 1 

25.8 

I to 25 
26 

202+-25 

1.0%.0 1 
11.12 

12.53 

1, 11 2.66 

-1 . 12 
421.74 
JIU5 
3 1.4\) 

9•10.03 
302.8-1 

1.738.57 

(625.9 1) 

(0.03) 

(0.03) 

(625.88) 

(0.27) 

(626. 15) 

(0.84) 
10.00 

2023-24 

t Crore 

1 .. 189. 111 
fUO 

10. 17 

1.407.8 1 

8.50 
400.0{1 
J5.R5 
J6.0:l 

1.1 73. 11 
J09.30 

1,962.8S 

(5 55.04) 

(555.04) 

0.05 

(554.99) 

( I. I I) 

10.00 

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
L&T VJetro Rail (Hydcrabad) Limited 

CIN: IJ45300TG20 I OPLC070 121 

~.~ ~ 
I Managing 1Jirt:tt1lr & l Direcwr I 
Ch id l ~xcculivc Ollic..:rJ 
DI N:O I6X3467 DI'\J:OI -1 1-1 25-1 

~ c,??~----
A. V. R. Srinivasa Sharma 
JChid' F in ~o~rfit.:.:rJ 

on\L (H Yo 1'> 

~ g)) 
4 v 

Chandrachud 0 Paliwal 
[C 'ompan: SecretarvJ 
:Vkmbcr~hip '-o: 1·5577 
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7 .~ 1.30,00.000 ".~IJ.OO 

-
7.~ I.J!I.OO.OOO 7,-11.1.011 

~ (turc 
f(c,cn·c< 11111l Suo·ulu) 

Othc•· 
llchculul't' 

~~~IICIIljllillo Rc.IU\'C 

lXl 

-
-

2.82 
. 
. 

2.112 

llt•t11illl'tl ('Jll'll ilt J!,.'\ 
comprchcnshc 

inconw 

('i.l271ili) !147 
li5H1•1) -

. (I 05 

IS.982.71l) (1.52 
(6~5 1!8) -

. cum 
(6,60H.!III) 11.25 

ro,·untl on brhnlf of the flonnl of Directors of 
1.& I \lrtn• l~nil (ll)llernb•hl) Umitl'<l 

Tow I 

(5.42·1 171 
( "5 11·11 

(I 05 

(5.97'1.36) 

It>!' 881 
(11271 

(6,6115.511 

'"'' "'"""'~~~ 
I '\. \ .s. Rcdtly 

f'-l:tnii!!HIJ! llorc~tot N. Uucl ID•rectorf 
J '<'CIIIl\ ~ Onic~r l 

""~2~~--
\. \'. 1!. Sl'iuivns:o !;;h:o i'OI:J 

fl'htcl Fm:utctnl 01 lie~• I 
Ch:JndnJchull 0 Pt~liwul 

IC<llllllAil)' Secr'ctary J 
Mcmhcrslup No: F55 77 



87

.. 



88

!I. ..... ~ 

,! r. 

l 
i . 

......,._....! 
= ~ 

:: ~ 

T ' 1 ~ ~ • l!. ;;: . . 
~ 

1 ~ ~- ~ ~ 
~ fi e . ,, f 

~ :rJ~- < 
!1~ 3 

-~ $ ~ -
" 

i .. 
~ - i : = 

,_.__ __,_ 
; 

~,~ - " ~ ' :; 
- ~ 7. ; • - ~ ~ r. ; " ' .. 

> ~ 
~ ~ • • ~ y, -

~ ~, ~ 
': 'I 

:; ~ , .; 
,2 ; 
:. < .s 

! 
~ ~· 

a § ' "' 1 E _;; 
~ ~ ~ i ~ 
3 ~ 

j 
~I { ~ ;; 

~ 
~ !4 • 

~ l 
4 

I 1 
' = ! , 

" 
';I 

I ! 1 ~ ~ 
,! 

,.. ! -

~ 

~ 
a ~ ;; 
g ~ 
€ 

, 

! ! 
~ 

i ~ . 
~ 

. 
' 0. s ~ 
! 

i ~. j !:1 e.,! 
~ = ,, 

" 



89

.• 
~ i :; ;; ~ 
; 

~ ~ 
.. 

i g ~ 

~ 
l 

:j_ < t ., 
1-

~ - f' ;! . - • 
~:; 

•. 
-£ 

~ 

" 
1 
~ 

" ~ 
0 

; 
~ 

1 

~ !1 ~ ;; ~ :> 

~ f: . F. ~ ~ < < f .. 
! i 
~ ~ I 

I 
I• 

3r--+--- 3 . 
~ ~ . ~ ~ 

~ 
- : ii ~ ~ ~ ~ 

=~ 
~ 

<. 

~ 
1 f-~2 

~ . ~ :O P.~ 

~i 
i .. 

~ 
'~ 
! 
~ { 
I ~ 

1 
• i ' 
E ·~ 
~ £. 

\ ~,. -
/ 



90

L&T Metro llnil (ll)dcrauad) Limited 
Notes forming part of the fi nancial latcmcnts 

~ Intangib le Asllcts under de' clopmcnt ~ Crore 

Particu lars 
Up to 

Addition~ 
A!> at March 3 1, 

April 0 I, 2024 2025 
/· Cll'e cull eel iun riy,lus 
Con~truct ion work in progrc~'> 13.0<12.10 4.13 13,046.1:! 
Salaries and wage~ 209 38 - 20Q.38 
Sran· we llllre and other c>-pcnses 17.93 - 17.93 
Managerial Remunerat ion 11,()0 - 11.90 
Concession fees 0.00 - 0.00 
I ravel ling & conveyance 19.6-1 - 19.64 
htl'ility nHtnagcment, communicati on and other 

125.3 1 125.3 1 -
expenses 
Interest expenses 4.50<l.66 - 4.509.66 
Deprecimion/ amot'li/<llion expenses 17.54 - 27.54 
Other expenses 1-1.98 - 14.98 
Total 17,978.44 4. 13 17,982.56 
l.ess: 

Transt~r w Intangible asset ( 1628-1.25) (-1.58) ( 16288.82) 
Transfer to Investment property capital work in 

(-189.5-1) 0.00 (-189.5-1) 
progn:~s 

Viability Gap f·und ( 12U-L20) 0.00 (120-UO) 
Total 0.45 (0.45) -

.u Ageing of CWIP - Inta ngible assets as on 3 l.03.25 
~ Crore 

Particula rs 
Amoun t in CWIP fo r H period of Tota l 

Less thnn 1 yea r 1-2 yea rs 2-3 )'CHI'S Mo re tha n 3 yea rs 

Projects in progress - - - - -
Tota l - - - - -

Ageing or CW IP - l rttnngihlc assets as ou 3 1.03.24 
~ Crore 

Amount in CWIP for !I period of Total 
Particula rs 

Less than I yr. 1-2 yrs. 2-3 yrs. More than 3 yrs. 
Projects in progress 0.45 - - - 0.45 

Total 0.45 - - - 0.45 

5 Other tina ncia I assets { Crore 

Partic uhlr~ 
As at March 31,2025 As at March 31.2024 

Current Non-curTeut Current Non-current 

Security deposits 1.05 16.4 1 2.14 15.R7 
Other receivables () .00 20.00 324.96 20.00 
Financial Guarantee Contracts I 6.35 8.55 25 . 13 24.90 

Other~ I.R-1 0.25 1.62 0.25 

;;:::;: . ~- -

Total II~.-. r '· \ I ~J.2-I 45.21 353.85 61.02 

(( , ~ (A -=-
\'-\\. tH YO 

0~ (('~ 
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J ,t I \h·llo Rail ( I1~Jcr:1had) l mtitt'U 

't•lrJ furminc llnrt ur t l a(' Vinruu~i;& l ~IAIC'tiU'ttb 

Pnrtil:ub•-~ 

~~~~----------------------------------------~r---~'~'~"~r•~·~·•--~r-~~~·o~u~n~or~•·•~·~"--r---c~··~~r~l·~··~·•~-1-­
•\dvztth.;t>\ 

lopotol '\J,moccs 
tithers 

\,1, ,m\7~ fl!ro\'tr.lble uthtr thOlll an -.:~ .. h 
Prcp3rd lixrt-th~ 
Oth<t> 

1:-"''tnii:L"l'(IOC't) 

l ot:tl 

ln\ t nlotit.$ 

Pnrcicul"rs 

Su.lrt.~ Jnll sp.trrs 
' l otnl 

r l 'llllt r rcti\;4bles 

l 11~('\ltN Cons1JcrcJ ~"0\.,J 
Lt'\io ·\1k>\\31l~ tbr t\~~h:d cttJ•I "•$~ 

fot :tf 

707 
19: 

A s 1U ;\l11rr h Jl. 

!Ill~ 

Jo •Jo 

J O.% 

I~~~ 

I :1 

{ (rore 
\ ~ nt \hl rr h Jl. 

2014 

1'1 09 
19.119 

, , •U \l .trfh J l . l02S 

f'urrcru ' on C'urnRI 

JJ.!l 

I 'I 

II 17 

, -.116 

---- (~ 
A~ nl \b rch J l , 10.!-4 

Cutnnl \ unCurnn l 

11 )I• 

17.16 

~~~ '"'de or other n.'Ct.'l\ l.t~l4.'$ nu: Juc lit'lm 'hn.•cLors on•lhC"r ollicers of the comp3n\· t1thc1 \t\tl.lllv or tmmlv '"llh ;m\' 01htr l>ers~"'O nur •UI\- trtlit'"• ,,, rthet 
lt~l!'li.Oit'l le ;are due r10m linn;, \.If pn\'iilC C:(IOirAIIIC51C"SrccuwiV In 1.\hlch hO)' date'i:1dl l!lo d jUHtl\~1 'l \htC(Iilr or D member 

I · tll ne ei t:tbles ~ o J I OJ 2~ ~. c '· • :1. " . . - -
Outsttuu.lin~ rot· follloniri$:Jh'f'iOs rrom clue d:tle or-p:t~ lilt' Ill 

l'1u licul.u·< 1 ts~ thnn 6 6 mon1s.-1 "I n1 ul 

mnntll~ ve.ar 
1·2} f'$, 2-J ~ n-. 1\ I on~ I han J yn . 

-
1~ ll 'nJ1sputeJ Tr;sdc: Rcttl\o:lble;, • C,•ll~tJcrr,l 

l:'"''J 
I•JI; lll IJ • a« ~~ 11 

t'''' nJISputcd Tndc RC«"I\ilblcs- \\h ... h h.l\f! 
.. ,~milan\ mcrca.st m treJu n...: - I 

t••••llnJ~sputcd Trctk RttCI\Dl'IN .. cr~J•t 
•mr.un.'d 

f h )Oi~puttJ l'r:tdt: Rl.'i.rt\,,l,h~!> • c('ln~niC"h.'~i VA~J - Ut~t . 01:! u .11 

(\ 11Jnbo1JeJ du<> I 31 - 1n 
'lotul 11.~7 1.11 11.111. - u.J1 13.96 

Lt.:SS J\II0 \\1'\0a\! for CXP\:Ch:d crCdil lt.l$:. \) 75 
'J Otnl JJ.2J 

.. 
Oulstandin2 ror roUio" inil; perio,h from du.: tfillt' uf pa~IUtUI 

Potrlirulllrs I rs.s than 6 6 monts-1 1oull 

m 0 1Uhs \·t:ar 
l · ! ~ t'i. 1-J > rs. \lor't' lhnn J ~ r~. 

1• Jl'll\losputoo Trndc R~tvablr- · CuiiStJ<r<J 
J5 2q 018 ·' - J'il9 

)11>0J 
lntl,;nJosput<J Toad< Roctovabl.,. - -.tu.:h hl\c 
su~mficam u1crease- 111 crf'dn nsl - - -
(ut)l nJuptne-J Tnllt~ Rtctl\:lt'alt~ ('ICdll -1mpa1h.•J - - -
(1\ID"I'"'"d lmdc Rocmabl<•> con!;l\lcrccJ ~ouJ - I I 013 0 l·l 

I • IUnlulkJ dues IH ~ 
J'utal 16.6J 0.18 O.U! - O.JJ 17.16 
I es~ AII0\\30Ce roJ i!'\:'pteti:d trt.:'oltt lu)) ..... , _!2:.!! 

C·uh nntl 0 :1nk U:da ntts 

P:t rlicul :•~ \~ oil \htrrhJ I. 20!$ A' n t ~h\rth J l. lO.!-l 
-

f u ( a\b •nd c~-h t't:;mulrm., 

a I Cash oo IJ.sn.J ul 
II:! 

b) Bl1:ancts "-lh Wnls 10 c.uw:ul i&CC'C'Unb 1 ,- 1'191 

<I Chequosand dr41l M hand 1.:!'-B . 
.:1) Dt'(k"lSt~ \'-Ill! tnJIUtll\ uf tlSS. dt.ut th:cc ttmnth~ 111CiuJ1n~ •• ~1 12U7 
•mere~! .arc rued thereon • Ill 77 IJ 10 

1111 O!l•er b:tnk bnlnnoc> 
I 

flnlam:es \-I. till blink~ lttltl il\ tllltiUIIt UIOIIC\' tl~pOliti.S. I 00 - - -l otol l i t. 71 \ ''"'j]' "''' '·'" ~ """"""., ""c-~., "'~· ~,,,. ,_ ,.,,,.. ,.,, ,, •«" """' oo •• "'"'"' 

~ " ·...: ,.. 

~~ g~) 
4 ,!? 
I' " 

<1>7 * ·O"' 
-=-
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1..1< I' " ''I I'll lluil (l l)rlcr·ub:ul) UouhNI 

\utl'\ furmin~o: p:tt't ur the Huuu,·inl Stlltl'ml'llh 

I 0 I •Juit~ 'h:rrd apil•l 

, \5 111 \Iorch Jl. 202~ 
r--

\ 5 01 \ Iorch J I. 20~~ 

Poutituhars ;\o, or •hart'S ~ Cron· ' •· or sh•rrs ~ ( ·rure 

.\uthorbNJ: 
h11111\' slutu.:b ,;1 l 111 cnch 1.~ 1.10,00.000 ~ 11.1 l~l 7. 11 ,.111,01J,UIIU 1, 113 IKl 

hwl'll ( :1pitul 

I l)tlll\ shotrc><•F " IUc:ach i, lt,;liii~IUUII ; I 11 l~l 7 ·I I lO.tKI OIXI 7 ' ' ' uu 

~~~h~cri bcd and Pllid L.,, C:t llilll l 

IIJUII\ •h""'"'' l 10 c;1rh lull\ """' 7A I. 10 t"l.IHIO • ·II >lkl 1 ~I 111,1lii,IN!O 7 ~ f11NI 

7,4 1,30.011,0110 1,41J.UO 7.~ t ,JO.IIO,OOII 7,41J.ClU 

I H.! Rttcontilhuion ••fth~ numhi.'r or f'QUh) 'h3res :uul 'hare l"::phul i.s~utt.l. sub~cribtd ""'' p:1ic.J-up: 

~h:ul:1rs-
t\ S 01 Mnroh Jl. 2025 \s a1 ~lurch 31, 21124 

No. ofsh:tres ~ Cr·orc C'o. of shnrrs ~ lror•c 

Ft)tlll\ >hnrcs 111' ~ Ill c•d• 
\t the be.smnm~ ol I he~ car ' ,JI 11100.000 711.1l10 I hJ.90.0Hli!IO :; 7)'lll(t 

lhuc:d dunnt: the )C.lr (rtfcr th-ttc hdt,w) 2.17.~0.0U.OOO 3,65100 

\tlhc end or lhc } COl 7,41,JO,Oil,O()I) 7.413.011 7.~1.30.00,000 7,~1 3.1)0 

\l,,h.· PtH)lUIIliiO appto\af by thC' Slum.:: h\lldth n11h~1r exunonJut:trj geucral mt:t1tn1,4 dunng du:~ pt\!\lnu-. liuan~u'l yc:.-r. the f'outp:tn} wcr'---ased It> 

\UIIIUihtd Cariral ll• 7 11 .JO,()(t,Oou <har<S ur R~ 10 • a~~tej!~lln~ "' R< ·~ 13 ltOI<> Funhel rlk t mpJO) had '""cd 271 ~0.0(1,11(1(1 <!JIIll) iharc\ 
<'fln't.: ,,,hat or Rs IU. each nn 11chu: h~\IS to lhc C\1(1111~ shareholder~ 

fquil} ~hnres 

at n1c l'nmp3ny ho;.lnl) unc class of cquu\ <haJt M\ltl~ ~liM "lillie or 1 10 p<t ,h.t.: 
h 1 I hr ( ump:my hAs uut 1))1 t~:J nn) 'ftC:Ctu t iiCS thll ing lhc yr:u "ith the n~htloption 10 com·ctt the ;tUih; lllh" t'( j \111~ sh:u e~ 1U u Jatc.r dtlle 
"') rhc: ( mnp;:nt} hns t10lt't<tCt'\ed nn) .. hatt:~ lnr tssuc uud~,.•t opt inns und contraccs..'cornmilnu:nts fm lh~ );tie: _,f siHarc\ 'dtStm cstmcnt 
J1 'I he h~thlernrdtc <•lUll) sh~res i• cnlllkd 111 di\lllcnd n!'lrl ami \Oln<~ fl£hl in the "'me Jlffil'<'lll<'" a' <hccapriAI paul upon suth C<ltlll} shat<.> bcnr< 

to rh~ 1•'1~1 ,,~i•l UJI cqutt) >br< <apH•I of 1h~ t•''"l'·'"l In rhc ., tul nr frquJ.tlll•\11 ,,f lhc ( l>mpan} rhc hold,.,., of rquil} shdro ••• ennlkd •~ 
n~ccl\·t lht ltlt131J111i~ dSit'ts C'f the C'HOIJlfiOy m the Ml111C prop01t1011 ft5o 1hl• CRp1t81 J)ald·up on lht ~'-JUII\ ,hMt'.$ held h)· lht:111 bClll.l> to the tl'1t111h11ti·Uil 

Cl)tlll} <ltnr< Cllprinlof' the rornpany 

e • rhc ( tunpany ht15 allullcd nne uon·lrztn,kmble equH)· sh.ul" flhc Golden Sha~) 10 the (i," ctlltl\~111 \•f lc:l.u1~1n:1 (Go' cnunent) ha' 1nt n I nee utluc nt 
~ II•"' I)III>II:UlCC or lhc ~harehohkt> \j!t<'<.'niCnl CIIICt<d IIIlO """ lh< Gl\lcmmenl all<l orher; In l<fllh ,,r ~~· !hltd ~~~ft.'\!lnClll, the G.l\l'flllll<tll sh•ll 
be cnwl~d '" OPIJ"IIIl A nomine<' dn,-..rur on 1bc ik'l11d t.tl Dtr<'<lor> or the compan) and ;o '""!! R> rl~<: C•o>tmmcnr hold> the (ioldrn Shon:. hn 
al\lniiiiii\C \010 or ih~ (;n\eiTIIOCIII Ul the dlletlur li)II>OIIltl•d b) the gO\cmmcnt \hAll he f<(!UII'I:<I ICtl ~3S>III~ of h) the J,\CIICIUI IIICCiillj,! 11f the 
Cl)IIIJinny nr •ht' lnL'l'tiltJ' or flo:ud ol l)m .. '(:tor~ thct~vf u!t th'-' en we mn, IJe., any tt~flhlh('Yfl \10 .rll the res~1 \'t'c.l uumcrs ns speetfi'-·ct iu tht .;utd 
agrcc1m:nl 
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I u..t lh'tails uf ~lmn·s hclil hy llulclin~ cum1•:myll llim:~tc ll nltlin~ cotupnnytit> ~uhsitli:1rics ur usso(·i:~ccs : 

.\ H I ~l nrch J 1, 1025 
l"oarliculor.s: '\'o. of s har<·s f Cr~rc 

I arst·n nml 1\mbro Lumtt•tl hnduding rhc CtiiiH) 7.11."?9.99,()<)9 7 II JOO 
;;h~c.l held JtHntl~ witl1 ,,thet5) 

Totu l 7.~ 1. 29.99,999 7,413.1111 

LU . .S 0\.•Ui ib of Shuteholdcn: holding more tha1l S'-!4. sh:ltC"~ in the- t'f/IH)h1H~: 

;\ s at ,\1:trd1 Jl , 2025 

llUSCII and r11UbN l. umtcd iindudlng, fiH· '-'qUit~ 

, lmred held i01mh \\tlh Olht:rs) 

IO.h Sl I ld b 1nres 1r ' ' JrOriiOtCS fll ( lC Cll( 0 r 1 1 1e vcnr 

P•·omoter' s ~llme 

:'\n. of sh:n·c~'i 

7.<11,2Y.~.?'J') 

l 1tr5~n-nnd TI)Hb~ Ltmlh:d (mcludmg lhe-~qulty ,h:.u~d hdi.! I IHJitl~ with 
uthersl 

Total 

Sl I I J b . wrts 1e < v )rumolc..< at llt en d f I 0 tIt vear 

l'romo1r r's N:unl:" 

L1H,l1l U11d rnuhru I ium~d (lllChtding thr <qUI I) shnred hold J\'11111) with 
othco·s) 

Tutnl 

No. ofshu t·~s 

7.41.29'/'I.'J'N 

1.~ 1 ,2,,9•1,99~ 

:\o. nf sh:tr~s 

7,·11 ,29,99,99'1 

7.~ I 19,99,999 

As :tt \lArch Jl. 202~ 
:-lo. of!hn rcs ~ Cror" 

7.11.2'1.9<),<19'1 - . lL1 1111 

1.~1.19,99,999 7.413.00 

,\ s al ~ luch 31 , !024 

,'Jo. uf sha nos 

As n1 M:wch J I. !025 
•x, of slw r(!~ 'X• Chungc tJurin~ the 

rt':tr 

9'J.l)1J'-r; '<d 

As at ~lord1 J 1. 102~ 

•x, nr.~h;lr('S •x, Chun~e durin~ Lhe 
Yt:ar 

99 9<)<)• .• N1l 

10.7 \ggl~g;ue numbe1 of b\'ltlUS shares issued. ;h~res j;...;;ued n't c.onsidC"r;liiOII otlu.·r th:m rush or .dum:, hnuglu h3tk durmg th~ pcnod ttf the yc:.tr:. 
immediately prcc\!tling fimmcial ye;1r ended \larch "! \,202 '\ \:1! ( flr~viUus period of 'innndn1) cnr ended Mnrch ; I. 1<l1·1· Nil) 

I I Oth<•r loquily 

Reserves & Sur l lus 

P~trliculurs 
Oeh('nturt: Ot htr r.••mprchensh•c 

l{et.Jcmplion Rl'l~&ined c:t rnin~s ifiCOilh.' 

[h-oscrvc 

B:<luncc as at ,\la rch J I.201J 2.8.1. ('.~27 66) ()~7 

tl olSS) fnr the )e•t . 1555.114\ -
(1runl(loss) nn rt!mca3urc1ncnt ofddjncd h~ncfiL ptan_, . . UU5 

llolo ncc as nl ~lnrch 31.202~ 2.81 (5.982.70) 0.52 

1 Loss) for the ye3r . ((,25 88) . 
Gninf( lo.s.s) on re.mt!asurement of defined l1tn~lttpl:u1:~ . (027) 

llnlnnre :os at ~Iorch 31,!025 2.82 (6,608.58) 0.25 

rot:d 

t>.H~ 371 
155504) 

IJOS 

(5,97!/.JG) 
(1115 SS) 

(11.27) 

(6.605.51) 

Deb~nturt r.:dcmptinn rescno (DRR ): The \linistry oflorvooatc \mms l'iue notification dated Augnsl II>. !019. ;unended the Companies (Sh:ore CRflllal and Dehentnn:) 
Rules 201 4 by '' hu.·h thl· <'ompan~ IS no longt.:r fl'l(Uirtll (0 crC1\(C ORR lO\Vai(IS the th:bcnltlr(.'!t iSMll'i..l, taJtitr (0 th is am~ndmem. lhC rompitl\) \\8.:t- n.:()tl1rt,i hl tn3intnin il 
I)N;R, Clf 25\~(1 t\ r the vnlu(' of debentures Issued. ..:.nh~r b~ :J pull he 1ssul"" or on ., p11v:s1c pl~lctment basis a.ud 1hc amounts nedited 10 llH~· ORR ''as not to bt> uult:ied IJ} tiiC' 

l onopany c'cep1 10 ' edeeon debentures. The abo' c nmoum rl'pr<;rnts the ORR crentcJ uut uf rNiit< vf !he (' ompnn)' pnono the satd n~tifieati~n. 
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I.&T <\l rln< rl;til (11)<1<-nt had) I imih•tl 
'\o le> fornling 11:11'1 uf lilt• fluanci:tl ~ ln lemell l> 

12 UnrrO\\ in us 
~ 

P:u·ticul:ti''S 
\,ul ~larthJ I . Wl~ \ s "' \l:H'ch 3 1, 202~ 

( tw•·enl ~1011 CLII'f'Cil( Curn·ut :\011 CUITt!lll 

"\tl'llt~d hlt~Hmlngs 

S~n'''' ll$trd. Rnl<'~. Redeemable "'"' 'i IX \IX s.~" 11 < 111 Ill ~.o l \1 ~5 

(\Jill clllhle Dchemures l Refer '"''' I.! II 
l tlrTCI11 malltrilltS or lung 1Cr111 hon·O\\ 111!-!t\ 2.S71 111 il.H7 1 '1>) 

(Refer ~ole I~ II 

I H$~\:un.~d ()4.)n\l\\lllth 

I 11111111crdnl paper (Reier 1\me 12 21 _; ,(,(1; lli - •.'hi 0'1 

llslcd. Rmcd. Rcdccm;lt>lc l'<nn I 't•mcruble urn ll\.~11 

l>elleumres I Refer No1c t 2 '1 
C"UIT~IIt Uli-Hllr!IICS ofiOilt! lerm hC.llltl\\'tllg$ 19 7 1 -
\1 nrkm~ t 'ap•lnl ncmmlcl I nan I Rei(" Null' . -
12 II 
fnh.:r\!'SI lfcc lunu li'om Gu\crrinlt:tU (lJ' .1 11 II .11 X O'J 
I 1.\lungmml Reier Nole I 2 ' I 

To1al 7.0~3.71 6.082.71 ~.1181.12 s.n7.7~ 

fl.! '>tni(ll' I b led RtllNl ltcdecm:lblc 1\lm ( a1ntrtihlc Ochc.nrurc~ -
SL·ric.•s '\ (o of' IJcbcntures 

Face \ 'aluc uf Each 
l)ah' ul' \ llulmenl ( uupon Rntr rcrmS Of l~\'(liiYill CIIC 

Dcbcu lure (~) 

SERIES..\ \oupon '~tc 15 R~dcemahlc m Face l'alne nn 
28,7111 10.00.1100 1fl·l1ec-! I (> 37"o l'.a. pa)Uhlc ~0-04-201' 

1\L I!~\ IIJ801o0 Annually 
$ERifS II Coupon rme 1> Rcdreuwhlc u1 I· ace 'aluc 011 

~8.7111 IU,00,110() '"·Dec-ll b 58~o P~a pnynblc J0.04-~111il 
1'-EilS\lOX(I78 Annual!)•. 
SFRIES ( f'oupuu raw 1s Rcdcemnhknl I· ace 1nluc 1111 

2~.7211 111.00.1100 .<O-IX~·2 1 6.()8°" P.a payable )IJ.O I-21127 
I~U18.\108086 :\nuually. 

Scrul'iry for eni01·, Li>letl. f~nfc<l , Hcdccmaule 1\'un C'onverliblc Debentures: 
rh~sc debentures are unsecured 111 lerms uf'Compomcs i\cl nml SEBI !,'llidchncs. However 1hc l ompa111 has pro' idcd additiou(l] comloll In 1hc h1vcs•o•s of Iiies( 

deh~111uros '" ""> o t'follo"ing sccUiil\ 

;ul'hare-< 1>111hc l'lllllllillly's 1angll•le mtwcnblc asse1s. 1ncludm~ lllll\Ca!Jie pl~n1 antlmadiiiiCl) 111achmc~ ;p;!fes tools and accessories. fi1nuturc. ti,xlllre;. \eh1cl~s. ••II 
nthol 1\11\\Ulolc as>et> and currem ~~~et,, bmh lll'escl\1 a11d futw·.:. saw and except the rruJCCI \s;e1s .mel righl> nnd nsscl> of the C'ompan) in n:lming 10 Real Es1mc 
P~1~1t•pmcm seg111c111 of1he rn~cct. 

lo ) ( 'lmrgo till the C't!llljllllly's t'SCI'OW UCCOUill' Hnd pcmnllcd illWSIIIU!IIIS. 

,. I Char~c 1111 nghls. nllCrCSllllldCrilll rC.II)C<t nr (lr'OJCCI dOCUll\elll>. approl'als. lllSurnnce C(Hllracls 111111 eS<ltl\\ lii'<UUnls lo lhc cxleul rcnlllllcd lo '"" lcuders lllllkr 
cscrn" ngrccmen1 h>gt!theJ \\'1111 pcnnmcd irl\cstments ere and 

tll f'lmr~e '"' Bll ri~hl>. title. imcres1s, hcnclils. cla11n; and demm1tls of the rom pan) in. to and und<r !Ill' Projcc1 r\!lltclllCI\1' 
c) 1 he holding company Larsen & Toubro I imiled has prov1ded linnncml gunmntee agamstlhc sen<s .\.13 & C 1'\CD's 1ssucd by 1he Company 

12.1.1 Pmm:ular, of NC'Ds held by I arscu & Toubro 1.111111ed (hold111g ClllliJ)all) )' 

As at ,\larch 31, 2025 \s al ~lurrh .11, 202~ 

Srd cs 
Quantity .\mount Qu:ullil) A moun I 

'>fl~lf:S 1\ 
7.50U 750 00 

1:>.1· 11S~IOS06(1 ( Rs I 0,00.000 en ell) 

Sr-RIF~ B 
I'.'FI ?S,III0~07g ( Rs, 10,00.000 cnch) -
~t::RIUil 

1 no 171011 ~.110 112 ()() 
1'1. l· 118~ 10808o ( Rs IU.OU,U(JO each I 

T<Ha l 9,1211 922.011 ~.no ~22.110 

lntc:n:st Hcc:rucd there on ; .j )h 15 '}5 

I ~ .2 Cunuucrt'iuiiHII)CI'S 

i he l'Pmpany has t>UISimtdmg com111e"'''' papers ot ''aryn•g " '"""'""" aggregaung mRs JMO I ,.,,,~, 1 <I rn 21114 R< "}7 C'r<11<!SI mmuril) value. The Coiiii>Hn) 
"'i'''Cl> Ill COIIIII\UC 10 rolf (1\CI the Wliiiiii~ICI~) j)ll()CIS 011 IUUllllll) fl<)<>lld lh< ougnmitCI!tl r Hv\\d~r ~<epmg lh< 1<1101 <lf I he livclllllt~ll>, lilt:><.: hu\ e hc.!l1 clttSSifkd 
!l!d llrCS~III<'llas CUI lent The hnldmg ('lll\lj1;111)' lilt> r>rovidcd l CIICI nl I 0 11\1(11 l!Uiu•ltkrs of c,>llllll~rclltl )l;tper> 
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11..3 I i"'t«!d. H!ltfd ~ Rrdt'L'Itl!thlt' '\uu C unH·•-tiltlr lklwnlun.'"' 

~cru:, \o of I),;Jwnhuc' 
I an· \11lnrofl arh 

lld>fnlun· ('() 
rll•h· of \llolmrnl I IIUflllll llul< I et ms ul lh•1111) nt•·nt 

-
'l ~l~'upt1 

'1111"·.1<'<1 \IIUH han'"· ~o; < hit 111111),01)11 I XIII huiC ]oil.; 
p~h tlhl~.: s~nn 

\nuunlh unullht! -l(euccnMl>k .ot I ;~<c 'ulnc oil 
llllllllllt\ dfth.' the end o t 1o.lth \cool lllllnlhc· 

Dal~ ol \llc•lm<nl 
9 Rl ''op n '·l'ul k Call opllllll ;0\,nl.ohlf h• 

<l~l"ol ,~·1 \IIUII '\mcmbco ll'-'' I ii lllflft,HHII 
.2m1 \:4.1\CIIlhCI fl.l\ o1blc >~1111 D.!hclliUIC ll(lfdl'h ,I; 

~015 \mouall~ un111 the l'r\mj'lan~ rc."'J~CIIn·l\ «'It 
matunl~ olatc ""lou~ of l!nh ,\ I -lth Yr oo 

!Silo '' R~•.pa. tfmn tht: D.tlc ot nll,•tm",ll 

'Itt<• ol A; I \I Rill Jrtnna" liHb "' IU,IHI,ClCIO J,mu.u\ , JXI'a~le,c:~no 

!Clll• 
\nnualh unlllthe 

llllllllnl\ 001~ 

~\J Tf1~ f\'1111\tlll) h:t\ ~· I H"U 1 \!purch~bc otrer dunng I h..: pri..'\IPU .. )~1f h' thl." \CD h•'Mcr .. nn._t the Ri.!ptu..:h~hl! ll~tlhtlcllnu ''a~ c.:onclud..xl nu 2nd \Ia:\ 1111; llu: ,,u .. ·.­
gr"en h) th~ ( 'mnp:ul\ "n> a~~Cf>l<.-d h) holder> 70(N I lcl•clllllr6 ·•~·"'''illic 1<11111 7'00 fJd><.1\ltor<-

hi llidrt.lld ing ~UIIIfl< lll) I ,usru & I uul>to I oonn~d loas funo"loccltiiiHIItOitO" >iollfllllllllhlcrtnl-uig 111li11111 <Ill\ •l'lll~'ll >hvn f. til f.>l ~'~' Y ~''"~"''" pcnod ''"'""'I h.: lctolll<' 
\If ~nn (\111\ crllhle l)cb~nturc' 

1 2.~ \\'co,.kiool! C:opit:rl O•·uonnol l.chln 

.t) I h.: Cu1111•nn~ ha-s b...~n ...oiiiL-'11<-mcc.t l n~'\.'urc-d \\ tnkuh! < ··'I'U:II llen~m\11 ,,au fit(lht} h\ a 3:c.:ht"'duJe-d t:ununcrl:a.tl h;mk amountmg 10 R< ;n()u Cr'"'rc') 

hJ I h~.· hnlllmg c.:omp.1n~ l.u~rl~o.\. Toubru hmllt."<f lt-a$pnH.J•klll ill eth.~ "'' Cc,mhwt tm .n:uhn~ tlu~ llloht\ 

125 lnlt(r$1 frcrlonn from (, Q\CflllliNII oflrlan~au:o 

lltlt.'1t$l f•ee- fumnc.:1rtl a., ... unucc li"um the (1\)\c.."flmh!l\1 t1l 1-:lang.uu.t, m 1Ct11b ul ugrccu1.:11l. aggreg.au1tg 10 l(s I.JOU ( ·rru~\ I'J r'-·f'IJ} able on 16th AIIIU\~f~<U) ttntll the: 

dtuc nl' reCCIJII I he ::.ntrl linnnc.:•al .l~l:t tnncc b 1llCOUnt~d m n..:c~'ntancc \\llh 1 ... fiCcll\l" luu:resr rate method 
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1 &T \1( 1rn ll ~il(l l)lle•'tiiJIIII imih·•l 
\oct .. (Hr'lllill1! tlllrl ur lhr I in:lllci:JI ~l:tll't1U'III ... 

13 01ht'l' llmlltl'l:tl liahilitic·s 

Pnrcicuhu" ' ' at " ""'" 31. llll~ ' '"' \la rchJ I, lOH I--
( nrn·nt \nn tU f'f'l'OI { Url'<'lt1 'on <:urrcnt 

a l S.:~unt\ J.:I"'J~II' "9 tl~ IOU.; I \1 'IX IS •! 
hJ Pr~mnun f'O'~·•bk <'ll F1u.m""1"1 ~·mu.mh.·c ~-uHir:lc..h /1 J ' ll <I Hp 'I ·~I 

C) Oth<'l lml>tltUe' 

r 1 ('r"hinr' li>r ""1"'''1 "'l'l'hc' kdnle<lt""'"' -;(181 7 ,;2 ~7 
Ill t l ~dl101'\ 101 t"IIJUI;.ti.;UJ~phe~·t'llll~f,' IS 11 h? 2U 
l fl )ll ~ll'llll\111 111011<') 1 21~ I ' X I 

r.uul ~X6.97 111.~7 1173.02 ~o.JT 

•The p1111CIJ>al 3111<'11111 ,,f UUI>t.tndtllj! tht6 to \hero. '>111311 ""'' fllet.htnn Cllletj1rt><'> und<r \IS\ II [) ''I 1110(• "' .11 q \lardr 111l ~ '' \rlf P \ Rs \ tl -I auolthe 
nunt..'>II'J';shle tl•cr..""'" \tlti'Y \til 

Ptlrliculur" 
·\ :< ll( .\larch 3 1. l02S ·\~ "' '""""" 31 , 202~ 

Currcnr 'Jon CUI'I'CfH ( urn.\rlt ;'\'ou tul'•·rnl 

l)uc Ill mtcm eut~r)1rt5<> .mel •mnll cntcrprhn l II• - ' IV -
Duch.>Otltch t.t 85 - '~1M 

Total 66.01 - 1111.?7 -
•Th~ prllr.tJl.,l •tllhlttlllt>f uul;tamlin)! •Inc\ hl ~ lt<ro, ,mall and'"''"""" ont~'l'l'l>~' undt'f \ IS~ II () .\tt !OOb :a:, a1 31 \I Melt ~1115 "/\II 1 I'Y R; ;\tl -1 ~ntl 1 h~ 

1111crcs1Jl3V•tblc th<r<'l.lll t< \tl (11\ Nil I 

~~-' rrade P:ty:tblc' "' '"' 3 1.03.25 
f)Jtrlicul:t~ Ou tstanding fot· rollo\\ ing periods from du< tlu1c <t f pa~ meo1 Tot:tl 

\ 1111luc Less th;an I 1-2 ~I"S- 2-3 )~. \l ore than J ~ ~-

It 1\IS~If II nth;pntedl ~ 16 - 2. 16 

Cnl Other-. il nd.,puiL-d 1 ~0 J_; 12 58 ogc, It 10 nUS 6J.R~ 

lllt )Dt ~IHHCd Jues-\IS\11 - - - - -
!IVIDispttlod thto>-llthcl> - -
1 vll'tlbllkd due~ - - - -
Toi:J I 52. 2~ IUS II.SC. 0.211 11.011 66.0 1 

rmdc l'·n•thle\ 'I> on 31 tl3 )~ ·-
l>urticulurs Out>l:tndin • for fullo\1 inl! lttriods from dur tl .uc or ,,a, m<nt T o13l 

' ot Ouc Less Ut;tn I 1-2 Y"'· 2-J) "· \J ure lh:trt 3) r<. 

H. 

I t 1\IS~I[ (l ndt>pul~dl 1 19 - - 2.19 
lti) Oihcrs II ndt<Jiuletl1 5718 I 2M II 11 (!I)•) IIIII 5X.7R 
1111 )Dt>pttl<e.l dncs-\.IS\ II· - -
tiviDispulod ducs-Oiher< -
lv)\Cnbillcd tlucs - - -
rota I 5~A1 1.28 0.11 tl.09 0.01 60.!>7 

IS Other lia biliti•·• 

l'arliculnr"'ii 
,\>:tl \lardJJI ,lUl~ \ s :I I \IHrth 31. 201~ 

Current '\on cut·renl C urrent .\'on ('urr·c.ne 

Sla!UIOI)' pa~ ublc, (• II no -
Pro ' '' sti'tl foremnt••)<< bo.'nelits n 5.1 - 1127 -
Comruct L mbthll<">- \J\~ttce li-.un ( tbltlttlcrs t n -~ 0 Sll 11171 liR 

Go\Crumcm Grnm 1 Rd~r '"'" 11 51 5<S 5? 5KI ')I 
'I o lal 1~9.38 559A5 IJUI 58J.09 

t 6 Pro' bion; 
~ C rorc 

P;a rticulnr·.,. 
,\ s at ~larchJI, 2025 . ,, .. \l:tt't'h J '· 202 ~ 

Current ;\On CUI'I'CUt Curnnl i~on curn·nl 
Provbtofl 1\lrctuplme< hcrldits 1?9 I 1>1 -
Pro\hiOil t\,r nt.ll'-'r lni.tut!cnancc aJuJ U\l.."l luwl c.\pCns<s • 1111 '14 nsw 
ror:al 1.99 llll .~J I U>J 238Atl 

• The ('omp.m~ h. n:,1wretlro OJ't."'alc aud m.UIHi1111 the Project :1~~t:o. IU ·* ~r\>accnt.lc '-"nn<hlron "luch rc..~uarei J"-"'11\\J:~JJ rc:pt;;,·cmcnt .md uH·rlmul of t'fftaul 

Ci'Unf"li\CIIh rl!-.'' '!lpi!U\ has C!C~01ihl1}!1~ fL"C't't'IIISed ft. f'lhl\lt.,hlllltl h."'loJlCl..' ufllus ohh~ll('ll I he 111~3 .... 11h."tth:nt , .. ·!"·s rr )\'l~hiH CUII~Ith.:r:\.lhc t..":illlllat~ nl 

fialur~ r~ploh.::em~rt 1'\Cthaul I h~~ ""''~lilt' ha\e h~cn discumued h• rrc~nl vnluc SJnce the l1111e \Blue f) I 11K'""":0 b '1' \tt"rlul 



97

17 C ontin~t:nt I i~tbilill4'" 

' < 'lr'~r' 

l•u rcicul :••~ '';II \l;u ·rh .ll. 2112~ \< at \fQn:h 31. !II!J 

UJ llmns ''!!'Hn~l tht: t:Hmp.am IIi II i.h.:lucn\ l~dgL"<i as c.l\!bh -
(u t l~t~hlht~ tfn Uuth!!!o f\~ .. ~ lind l:t\-:' tiMt nHt\ an:oe in re5p~d '\l'tlhiiiC''" 111 UJIP'-'tll llll<kr <h>pulc II 'II I<• II> 

I nln l I ~ .711 Hl.~h 

'\oil"< 
1 llw (\>mpan) •''I'~• I' rctmbur.cmcm• .. n I ,Ill < '"rc. 111 rc~pcct ul al~nc mnllnccnt hab>hllcs a~ ou .\ I.UJ !ll!~ ill 111 ~II ~.1 ~ I 91 l'IW~I 

~ li t~ rhll rrn~trcnbll~ to c~lnllillt..' the ummg of cash outlhl\\S. 11' an~ 111 h ...... ~k!'~l ,,t th\.' ah"" c nu·utcrs 

\ < 

1•n r1 icu l;t rs ,, • • \l;tn:h .ll, 2112~ \ < a1 \lno-ch 31. 202~ 

FCitlllli\IC'tl Ollt101llll ort'C'11IIOU.:h h!ut:umn~ to b.: e\«tlted on capuai3Ct:l1UJ11tl1 ... '1 ,,, o't~huuccs) 

(a, Esumated amuum nfct.uur.u.:h 1...-mammy In he 1!\C:CUI~d on JutiJI1}:!1hl"· \"1-!t-. II ~~ JO 65 
( 11 t b ll 111.11t.•d :.tl1hltll\1 t'l l ..:\'~HU\,~b r("tlltlllllllg tO be C.\CC\Ih .. -d '-lll Ill\ ~..,tiHCI\1 l•lt\J)CII' s 71> 3111~ 

l'!llll l 17.1H 63.~') 
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t '-\ t \lt•ltu lluil (ll~dt•t·:• lmtfl I ituilrd 

'\IHC'\ Jnr-n•ine. fH1rl of 1ht H"Rnr inl :"ool:tiNnt•nh 

'""'"'-'lt'\\•nt.)( 

R~. .. nn. tr'l\.·•'flte 
\J\\..,.11.-n~IC\\."f\U..:' 

I t..1ruult,t'lC"\ anJ tra•mng 

h~e,unt I net) on uan,fct nt rt!.11 "' tAh un h.·u.akm • 
(Itt-it.~ h..'\1.'11U-:•• 

l tlltll 

I l0l ..... l5 

I:'~= ~ 

II• s·= 
IQ' ;~ 

OUI 

187-U 

"" ~~ 
l.OQ6.01 

l!o.,.,· 
2023-2-1_ 

:0,1\ 

II I' 

'1'16 
I~ 

"'' ,1 
X~-., 

1..18~. 14 

· Rcvre~m~ uu:\lm\! lntt) <'fl tr ,1JlJt~r ol tc.a1 ei.l:Ue urtJl!n.tkm~ on <~tlump salt basb M p.!n ofthi.' em·1 ttl -. 

mhc:n:nl hu:-.me, ... rnlH.Itl 

Rc~o.enu<." Ill r~t of...-,•nnmt•tiiiC,\ 1111\lltlctuutc:'-" wt\u:t.'S.11Hi r~:nubun.."'l1CIH ofuuht\ ,h.UJ.!C'' 

lH (Hhl'l" inNHth' 

hth:h:!\t tncomc 
lm:•1mc fwm \ lmual f'und& 1 rt..'.th!>~o:;l) 
l'rt~Ht,,I,I\-<;J ,,ri.;IIC"t-'tl'tupc:th·.phlul ,\ cctulrrm:rtl 

\hscctlnnt·ou!' tllt"\111\( 

1 Ollll 

1 ...... .,~, ,_.,.,ti(ul:u"' 

Opcra:unn\ and n1.11nh.'1Wltt' 

\l.ljur m1mltf\1Ul~ athf C'\~thJu; 

I Ooher> 

To1:ol 

~ {)7 
{1 7: 

llllX•l 
':!() 

J2.5J 

.!Ol-4-.!5 

"' 7< 
~7.1 J~ 

... -; th 

lSI 

.. ~ .. - 6 

\ l rur"" 

11<1 

Ill. II 

t ll ft' "'--'-

102.1-~~ 

-
'10 >6 

:!_<••CJJ 

Jh71 
;l)!i 

~00.06 

"'tlhuu.•;:, and \'-RS:CS 
Pnrliculnn..;.... _________ +--":"'Ol:..~:...-;:;2>:..- ,...,~---'::..:0;.:2:..3-..::'-'~..,....,.,.-. 

-q 55 l~ 7:"' 
( ~lf\lllbUUOn hJ flrO\ l~ll.'tU ;111J ~ltlh:r rurUJ$ 
'1olfl \\etf:lrc C\f~n~c., 

T01nl 

.23 A•hninhu·:uion nucl tJiht•t• i.' \fhnl "''t·~ 

r--

f):•• ·tk11l:1n; 

\th entst"lncnt mu.J Jmhhc:H' 
I 'I:J;Ihm~;r 1.1.Jtn lv~s (net) 

Ottic~ m:-unh~IMncc and mht.-t: "''Pl.,t\t'~ 
\ IIO\\;tntt f<'f e•f«ICJ to<dlllo« 
tnsurance 
~\udn Fee:. • 

Ttnnl 

-\uJittH.., rC1nunc:t:\llon (t..~clc.Ju mt <J~ 1 j 

I l•nniotl:a~ 

I .tl A~ i.tJIJIII.)r 

I1J fur1•l~"f '-t"f'\tC'CS 

l l ol:ol 

2J 1- in:tnl"t" t'O\h 

Pttrlit•t•l:tr\ 

Jnlcn.'Sl C\(')t:n~c~ 

U1hrr lwurowmtL ~f\M 

Tlll:ol 

1 .3<"' I ~~ 
~ Jl I •ls 

38.35 35.85 

~ t n I •• 
202.& .. 2$ 1023-24 

!1~1 0 1~ 
0 ,. 05'1 

:J (1.1 ~' 1~ 
<J'r'< 
~ 7~ I t ~t.! 

0 ·~ 01~ 

JJ50 36.0J 

~ ( luu: 

20!.t-!5J 2023-14 

~ .. ;I Ill,./ 

llo)1 

0.10 O.ll 

{ ( nll"t-· 

202-t-1 ~ .!UlJ~l~ 

~"1~.1 l 110·11'1 
75 JH nlot92 

940.03 1, 173. 11 
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I ._I(. I \ h' II'U Hail (l l)tlcrnhad) L imilctl 
'\uh'' funning purl tof lht· l • inunci~l ' l:kH• mt· nh 

25. 1 
25. 1.1 

IJi , dOU\UI'c in pur,u:tnl 10 lnd .\ S 107- Financia ll •~>truntt•nt': 

I inam·ial Hisl. \lnnn~cmcnt 

I he t omp:llt) ·) llti\Jnc~~ ucti' nic, c\posc it 111 a' anct~ ,,1 linanc1.11 ns~~. muncl) httllttht~ nst... m;trkcl nsk~ 
and ned II risl. I he l'ump:my's scn10r mana gemelli ha' 01 ~rail r~'l'•111\ihiln) ti1r thl' c~tahh~hmc111 and 
t1Ycr"ght ,,r lh~ Ct>lllp<lll) ·~ n;k nwnagt:nlent tramc\\ork f ho: l..t') n'~~ and lllll1gatmg uctiun~ arc alsn placed 
hdi1rl' lhl' 1\mht C'on•milll'c uf the lontpMy I h.: l ·,unpnn) \ ,."~ nm11ugc111Cill puli~:i~s me ~swblbht'd to 
tdcnttl\ and anlii)'C the ri'k~ ll•ct:d b~ the Company. 111 't:t iiPPfllPfHitt· n'l.. Inuit> illllll'lllltmls :utd tumonitor 
1isl.~ a11d udhc1cm·c tulinu ts. l< •sk management pulk•c~ ancl')'tl!lll' arc rc1 io:11c!f rcgularlv lti iCikrt dta11gc, 
111 nwrkt·tt'\111 dlllllll\ umltl~~: Ct11111HII1.\"S m:I Jvitics. 

I he actill lliCl> or l·innncc. rrcU,t.lry & lll Vl!SI IllCill ( llil1 1111lll!l! "' I he t\11111\a n ~ Hrc tlc~l!lilcd tu. 
lll'lllt:ct the \ ompany'~ protil/ loss from material :~dvcr>t: JliUVl'll1Cnts ~nd undesired volati li1 y du.: tu inh:~st 

1'atC .: l umgc~. li1rCI!;Il cxchlll\gc rml' chilllg<!S 
-protc.:t rclurm •. whik exploriug opportuu iti~:s 10 OJlhllliiC rcturns/in lcrc~l .:nsl thrllltgh ,lructunng. •'PJlmpriate 
•lcnl'al 11 ~ Ul'olrunlCIH' ami prwu.:!ivc hetlging: untl 
-protc.:t !h.: romp:UI) from liquid it) risks anti act·urdingl) manage, 11> linanccs 

lim not~: c\plmn~ lhc suurccs nr risl. 11hich the entny IS t:\1111\Cd 111 .md 111111 lhl' emil) 1nanagc~ the rr,t- in the 
lin:lllCl~l \IUtl'll\Cill'o 

l(ist. t::xposurc arisin)! from \ lc:tsun•mcut \l:tii:J!!l' lll (' ll l 
r·r.:dn R''" Cash and cash c'l"i~alcnh. J\gcing anuh sis Dllcl"iifit:aliun uf 

trade rccc11 abks.linon.-Jal ( rcdn rnlill~ot hunt.. lkpo>iiJ.. t-redit 
asseb ml'ru.urctl .n alll•lrl hC\1 lnlllh :mil h:Ucr::. t•f 
cost credit• bani. 

guanmtec> 

I ll)llldil' R"t. Borro" ing> (Inti u!hcr lwh!lllic-; Rulhnl! ca>h 1\Htilnbi l it~ ol' 
llo11 forc~asts cummiuctl cr.:dit 

l 1n~s ami hnrrm1 ing 
I)H:i liues 

Ma J ~cl 1 is~ furc1gn C.\changc Fuwrc comnlercJaltrtlii'UCtiun~ C.\1sh llow Furward loreign 
Recognised tin an~·~lu~'Ch and fi)rccU'illllg e.xdwn!!c ~llllt nlcl$ 
linbil itics not dC'IlOIIHII:lil.'<l in Scnsitivi ly I oreign currency 
Indian rupc~: ( 11-:R I nnu l y~is opti1111> and 

Currcnc~· and 
lnlcr~st r111c swaps 

Mnrkct ri>k - inlcn:st rdt.: rdlnnncing Long-t.:nn borro\\ 1 n_g~ Scns11 1vit) Refinancing options 
Ol li:JI)~IS 

( rcdi t risk 
J ht: rump:m~ ~~ c"IXISCd Ill credit risk_ 1\hi,·h i~ the mJ.. thm •)11~ flllrt) 1\1 u linancml mstrumenl '"" cnus~ u 
linancial lo>~ fur the nthcr pan) hy failing to d1scharge :lll ••hiJgauun ('rcdll 11>1- un,~ from cash and cash 
<'<Jtm alt:nts. nn cslim:nls carrit:d at amortised cost or lim 'ahll: tlm•ugh tlrnfil & loss :tnd dcp<hJts wtth hant..s 
tUJd financial llblitutilln!t. :b 111!11 as cr.:tln .:\po,urc:, 1,1 traJI! ll<lJHradc cll>l<)nu!r, llh:ludmg llUL'>tantlmg 
rcccl\ ahlcs 

I · ,·~dil J'i<;f. mftn:lgcnccnt 
t rcclit nsl. IS managed dl'pcndmg 1111 the pohc) •urmundmg t:~thl "'" management I ur mvc~tments illh.J 
11111lual lulllb on I) high rated fund~ and inll1 fhed Jep'"'" unl~ "11h 'oCh.:tlulctl hullk> un: Clllblllt:rcd. The 
( ll1l1Jlilll} ;111al}>t:!> and manages the cn:dit rist.. for each ,, I thm 11~11 d 1cnts b..:lorc swndarll pn) mcnt und 
tiel rver) tcnm a111.J condlliPn:. art' t•fti:n.:d For othl'r tinan..:1al ,,\,Ch. the l umpnny ao;st''iSI.'\ und l llilllag~.:s credit 
n'ik ha-.eu on the n>>ulnptiun,. 1nput> anJ !'actor, ,p .. ~lli, t'' th,· dn.,, o l linnnc•al "''c'' 
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1.& r \ Jlotro Rail ( ll ~ · dcr:tbad ) Limited 
\ n(t'!. formin g parllll' lhr Financial SlalcnJcnl ~ 

2:\.1.1 Finand:IIIU~I\ i\ lana ~o:cmcnt r ontd .. .. .. . 

lontr::u:1Ual mtttur itics o r finnneial liab ili tics inc luding cst inllllCU interest J1ll)lllt!IIIS on bol'l'<nl ing~ 

~ lmre 
.\ s al M:1rch J l, 2!125 A~ at \larrh J I. 20H 

l'adicul:lf!i Less than 12 \lo1·r than 12 Less than 12 \ lo rt !han 12 
Vlunths \lonths ;\lonths l\ lunths 

~on- clcrinttil'l' liabilities: 
BotTowings(l·cJi:: r ntllC bclm1) 6.727..1-1 1··122.::7 383 1.10 '1133. 70 
I radc pnynblcs 66.0 1 - ()(),1)7 -
Cred itors fi1 r ~:ap illll supplies 7'JI.6() - !iJJ.? I -
Other llnanciul liab ili ties 95.37 I S.:'i7 15lJ, Il 10.31 

Total 7680..42 6~~0.9~ ~865.09 92H.02 
\lot~ : Interest on conHncrcml pupers 111cludcclto the borro" mgs ar~ bas~d on cstuH!IieS l'f l'utmc rollnvl·r~ .. -\mounts Jll!l) 
vary based on artuals. 

C'u ~ h lluw nntl l':lir value interest rate risl; 

J he Company's main interest r<:~le ri$k arises ti·om short-term borr011 ing;; with l·ariabk !'lites. which cxll\1>1: till! rompan~ 11• 

interest rate risk. 
l'he Cumpuny's lixeu mte borrowings an: carried nt amortised cost. riH:) ure therefore not subject to intcr<:.-,t rate risk u~ 
defined in lnd /\S t 07. sinc.:c ilt'itlier the l:luT) ing, amount nor th~ rutur~ ca~h llm1s will lluctuate because ora change in 
111arke t in terest rules. However variat ion in marke t interes t rates 111>t) impnt'l ruturc <."USIJ now~ ut lh<' time nt' 
ro lluvcr/rclinancing l>l'thc fixed I'Hle bnn'0 \1 ings oft he lompun) . 

I ntcrcs t rate rbl< c~posurc 

I he exposure of the C11111pun~ ·s bon\"' ing Ill inte rest rate changes ut tilt: end ufthe reporting period are as lollows: 
~ Cr(>rc 

Paniculars 
r\s at !\•larch 3 1. As at JVLJrch J l , 

2025 2024 

Variable rate borrowings - -

l' ixed rat~ borrowings 12260.\IG 1220 1.67 
Tota l !2260.% 12201.67 

Scnsiti1 it)' 

Since lhc Company's borrowings carry il fixed rate of interest. the prolil/los~ is not impacted 1>11 ac.:~.:ount of interst rate 
chnnges. 
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L& r '\ktru Rail (ll )llcrahad) Limill'd 
.\ ntcs fnnninj! pat·t of the Finan cial Stutcnu·nh 

2:'.1.2 Capital ~lanagem~nl 

The C'<'mpan) considers the folluwing components ol'its Balance 'ilwl!ttn manage capital: 

I) I nial t::4 uity - rdaim:cl profit. g.:neralrescrves and other rescnes. shun: cnpil::tl. 'iability gap fund. Me:t:Line runds and 
ptllll)OICI'$ 1\mtlillg. 

2) Bomm ings. Senior Nl)t\-l:omenihit' dcbt'nturt.':; and ComnH.:rcial l'apcrs. 
I he l'ompany manages il> capita l 50 :1~ to safeguard its <.th il it) to 1.!\Hllinue us a going. concern unll to 11plimisc l"l!liiiW• to our 
shareholders. The capital ~t ruct u re or the Conipan; is ha~cJ lllllllanagcnH:nt's jmlgcment ol' thc appropriate balatll'L' n l' kc~ 

dement.~ in order to meet its slrutegic <Jnd clny-to-d~•Y 11ecds. Thl! Compan) considers the amount or c;Lpit:t l in prtlportion to 

risk und m:tnages the capital stru.:lltr<: in case ufchung<::l> in c:~:nnomit! cCJnditions and the risk t.:haruct~ri sti~;s ,,rthl' 
underlying ~ssets. 

I he ('nmpan) wi ll take appropriatt ~lcps in order In maintain. or ir nt'cc~sary mljust. its capital structure. 
{ Crwe 

Par·ticulars 
As at ~larch 31, As at \-lurch 3 1, 

2025 2024 
TOI'al Debt 13,635.28 13,59 1.11-1 
total equity 807.49 1.433./\4 

Add Non ~:onvcrtihlc dcbentur~ - 49.73 

Acltl Viabi lity Gap l·und 1.204.20 1.204.20 
Tota l 2,011.69 2,687.57 

Debi-to-adjusted captUll 6.78 5.06 
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1.&'1 ~ l cro·u l{nil l ll~ol ~rnhaol) limited 
\ntr~ fonuiu~ p:trl uf tlw Finanri:ll Stnh'llll'lll~ 

25. I.J 

lin: t OIHIUHIV op.:nHes 10 a bu.s111ess 1hm ~\poses attu tiJn:1gn t.·M.:Iuulgc nsl.. anSnlg. fru11l tOt('JgH <"uncnq trml~itt.:ltuU.S, pnu1ndl} \\'l lh lt',)Jli.'CI cu the L:st> and 
l·unt l·ore1_gn C\Chauge risk arises fmm fut1are commcrcmllrmll'!i\'ltnn) Hud rcctlg.msc~t .,s~ct:, nnd lnliH1allc3 d(.'ttuliHU:\h.'tlm ;, \:llrn.:m.) thut tS-IHtt the ( ·wnpm~ ~ 
liuoetounal runcncy O'IR) I' he ris~ os oncn>wcu lhrmoglo a lhrcca<l 11l'hog]Jiy pr~>llHhl~ li.rc1gn currciiC) rn>lo II'"" I he <lhJcCIII c ufthd 'uonpllll} IS lo numon11;c 
1i1c "'lalilu~ of the l>lR cash llo"s ufhigl1h probnhlc lorecastlrnllsactoons 
I he ( onlpitm tu\denukes lu~d,gtn)! olus fhrc•,g.n currt:nC\ cxposun:s from ltmC tu tunc has.:d on ummg. .md \'l~lhllit) ol c~pnl'lltl.' 111 .tn:nrtinncc \\llh 113 d\J.. 
cn:um~cc nctu polccy 

1 he C~J>USW<' 10 torco~n currcnc) nsk at the end of the rcponm~ p<·rulol c•prcsscd on I \JR. 111 c II< lollc111> 

Fun;J~n ( HITc.n(·)' (":\ llfJ~ur't un-hll lnn cl' shtet t.•XIWSUI'l' und rclaltd hi..'dgt..•s: 

.\s :ol ~ lurch 31.2025 As :ot ~ l:oo·ch 31 , 202~ 

Fin:s ndllll .iuh11itil·.s: 

Payuhl~- C1\.'.d11ors on accouac1 of 
C'~1"111l t:xpcuuiiUr~ 

l.cs~ · Dcm uliv~s taken In hcdg(• the 
ilho' c E:\pusur~ 

C'11n """' aud lt~tcrestl<atc ~wap~ 
Fuf\' ard Conu-..cts 
Optoulls Culllr.lCtS 
,-;cl Exposure 

Scnsilivity 

l 'SD 

5.62 

Euro Totnl l'SI> 

IJi•! 

9.61 15.2~ 

r)lc scnsili111y c)J prc1li1 or loss to change. in thec.,dwtlgc rates arises IIHtmly from lordgn curr~tl'' d<'ll\llllin~tt'd l'Oillrtl\:tS 

f Cron.: 
Impact on oth\'1' COIItJIOUL'IItS ur 

Particulnn 
equity 

\ ;nl \larch 3 1. \ 5 Il l ~ 1 3 1'Ch 3 1, 
1025 201~ 

l SO ~'icmsit ivil y 

I '-:R LISD ·lncrc;lsc by 5" o (3 1 .M;orch 2025-S"·•) () 71> 117•1 
I '\:I\ CSL> -f)~(!fl'ase by ;•• o (~I ~larch 20254 5°..,) II 71• fl . 7~ 

r.nro 

9.21 

l Crorc 

Tojltl 

11 70 

IUO 
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1,<: I \ h•1111 ll:~il tll~llcrnh:ul) llmitNI 
\orcs foo oooiooc p.oo·t of lhr FihJnd:ol \t;oh•mt·nts 

lS. IA 

l'urticul~ rs 

Finnnd:tl :h:H~l~ 
Itt\ l..':itlnt~ms 

- o\·hll olilllioii~S 

Sccullt\ tkl""'"'lt" 
fttl.tih.:I~IJ (itt.lr.tniC:'-! \~o;\..:b 

Othc·h 
Uth<'f R<"-<1\Jhki 
\it'"h ollhllaSh ~t.f\11\l:llt:Ut~ 

Balan~~~ " ''" fl;mks hdtl a> onotgm 
UIOih,!' dl..'ltthi iS 

Trow I linnndal as~ct> 
Finanfinllinhilitil's 
Ek'IT(t\\ In~~ 

Other 11a~.ohlcs 
Socullt) dcp<><n; 

I rotdc f'a1 ;ohks 
CWdnot> lot cnpotul «vcoodnouc 
'f'ot:o l rinancia l linl>iliti•·~ 

~ .. 

(,.((Q·Jl~ 
C .• ~ I 
' '/ I } 

\slit \ larch J 1.1Ul5 

l \ 11'1. F\ 10( I 

. . . 

. 
. 

-
- . 

. . 

. 
-
. . 
-
-
. . 

' 
\s ~• :\lart'h 31.202~ 

\moni~ell tO> I F\ 11'1. FYfOC'I \rnor·rist'tf ro'il 

. . -
17 ,,, IXUI 
11'111 . <on; 
2 f)ll . I ~i 

\ ~ 21 '1·1 12 
171 71 n to 

Ill!) 

2~~.H . ~69.13 

t:\ ,111• ~' . 11 II>~ Slo 
2·1 ~'I . - <0 0.1 

8? ()~ - . 14'J 111 
(1(1111 . AO'Ji 

7111 60 - !liJ \I I 
1 ~,097.'lll . . 14.133.1 7 
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I.&T i\ lctro Rail (llyllL•rahud) Lim itl'd 
'\;tHe~ forming part uf the Financial SL:ltrmcnt' 

2:\.J . .J Fair vn lul' m easu rement.~ cuntd ...... 

(b) Fuir vnluc hicra t·chy 
l'hb ~cction c.\pluins thcjullgenwnts anti cstinmh:s mudc in determining thtl t'a ir \a l uc~ ot'thc finnm:ial instrumenl5 thnl 
are (a) t'Ct;<J!llliscd :md mcasut·cd :11 litir value and (h) mensured al nnwrt ised cost and lhr \\'hil'h litir v:.t lucs nrc llisl!losed 
in tht• llna111:ia l >tatements. -Ill J)nl\ itle ~~~ind i cation ubout the reliabi lity nf the inpu t~ used itt dct~.:nllin ing fair vnlue_ the 
comp~lll) has cl assili~t! its finuneial instnnllimts into the three level~ pt·escribcd undl'r ti t<: Ht:t;vuntlng. ~tanllard. t\n 
Cl\('lnt111tillll of' c~ch level lo llows uudcrneath the tub h.:. 

Lc\ cl I: I L·\l'l I h icrurd1~ includes fimmtial instl'ltl l1C11l~ mea~urcJ using quoted priL'C'- l'hi5 im: l ude~ muLUal rumb that 
have: a quotl'd price. The fair value l'r all equity instrun1t:11ls 11 hid1 flrt: Lratlet.l in thl' :;L11.:k ndmngc~ i~ 'alued using U1t: 
dosing. priL•t! as <1l the report ing period. The nnttu~l li tnds ~ re valu~:d using the closing l\ \ V. 

l .t• vcl 2: The fair l'aluc of' financial instruments that an: not tmdcd in un aetiw marke t ( f\lr l'X:Implc ovcr-thl:·<:Uuntcr 
derivatives) is c.lctcnnined us ing valtmt ion techniques which maximise the usc of ohscrvahlc nwrket data ~nd re ly ns HulL 
as possible on enti ty-spcci lie est imatC!. . If' all signi fic~nt inputs required to fi1 ir \'a luc an instnnnc11 t arc observable. the 
in5trumcnt i~ inducted in lcl'cl 2. 

Lc"c l J: fl'\•ne or mure of the signilic<lllt inpttts is not based 0 11 ohscrvnhlc market c.lutu. the instrument is illcludccl ill 
level J. Thl.~ is the t:<~se IC.lr tmlisted cquit) securities \\ hich at·c included ill lc ,·eiJ. 

(t') Fair value nl' fi nnncia l as~ c t s and linhi litics mcasund a t amortised Clls t: 
~ Crorc 

As at \la rch J I, 2025 .\s al •\lur ch 31, 102~ 
Parti c ular~ C <t l'l')' ing 

Fair va lue 
Can·yinK 

Fair v:tluc 
a mount amount 

Fina ncia l assets: 
Security Jcposi t~ 17A6 17.46 IX, OJ 18.01 
Fimmcial Ciuarantcc t\ss~:t~ 24.90 2-1.90 50.03 50.03 
Others 2.()'J 1.09 un Ul7 
Other Receivables 3J,2 1 33.2 1 J62, 12 3(12.12 
Cash and cash equivalents 171.77 171.77 3.1.10 33. 10 
Balances wtth flanks held as 111argin 

0.00 0.00 1(10 4.00 
money t!c:pusi ts 
f inancia I lilt bili tics : 
J30ITO\\ ingS 13 126.'13 13 126..13 1305&.R6 13058,86 
"ieeuriLy deposits S9.05 89.05 149.-10 1119.40 
Trade Payablcs 66.01 66.0 1 60.lJ7 60.97 
Crediwrs l(lr capital expenditure 816.49 79 1.60 86.>.94 813,91 

-I he carr~·mg :1mounts of trade recetvables. trade payables. advances recetvablc 111 ~:ash. short term secunty depnstts. 1 he 
fair V<llttes of non-current borrowings are bast:d 011 discountt:cl cash nows using. a currc11t borrowing rate. They nre 
cl as~ i ficd <b level 3 f'l tir values ill t it~: fui r value hienm:hy due to the use or unobser,·able inputs. including ()Wn credi! 
risl-. 

( tl ) -\sscts pledged ns scrurit~· 

The cnrt') ing amounts of assets pledged as securil) for ~.:urren t and nun-current bom1\1 ing_' are: 
{ Cmrc 

Particula rs 
. \~ at \1 a•·ch 31. i\s al i\ larrh J I , 

21)25 21124 
\nn-turrcnl 
Frr.~l clrurge 

I r~:chold lanJ -
Rcl.'dvables 13.2 1 17.16 

Tnta l assets plcducd as security 13.21 17.1 6 
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L&T Metro Rail (Hydcrabad) Limited 
'iotl'S forming part or the Financial SbllC111CI\!~ 

25.2 Disclosure pursuant w lnd <\S 108 - Segment' information 

(::~) Information a hout rcportai.Jic segment 
l'hc Lnmpan~ operates in two Uu~ine~s Segment~ numel\ l·.1re collection Ri)!hh (l\1ldro Rai l "l) 'lcm) antl Nhcr~. 

HtJsim:ss scgm..:m~ have been identi fied as n.:portabl~:scgmcnts based on ho11 the Chief Operating Dcci ~ i on .tvla"cr 
(l'OJ)M) l'\aJllim:s th( (.'nmpan) 's perlhrllllllll'l' on ~crvicc perspecti'vt:. Segment a~:counting policies arc in lim: 
with the a.:cnuntillJ! policies (ll'the Compuny, 

Particulars 2024-25 202J-24 
l{ eVl' IIU C 

Metro RoilS) ~tem 627.11 6 11 .41! 

Others 473,02 7S6. 16 

Totnl 1100.1 3 1397.64 

Other income 12.SJ 10. 17 

Expend iture 
Metro Rail Syslclll 610.72 (•22.'17 
Other') lll7.82 167.1? 

Tota l 798.5·1 789.74 

Operating Profit (PBIT) 
1vletro lbil 'l) stern 16 .. W -IO.Y9 
Othn s 285.20 6 18.89 

Total 301.59 (107.90 

Interest expense 
Metro Rail S\St..:m gss.oo 1116.58 
Others 55.03 56.53 

PBT 
Metro Rail System -1!6~.b::? -11 27.57 

Others 230. 1!( 562.36 

(b) Segment Assets 

Segment llsseb are measured in the same \\ny as in the finan cial statements. I hesc assets art a llo~::.~tcd bast:d nn th~: 
Operations o(' the segment and the physical i(lCUI ion of the asset. 

~ Crorc 
As at March 31, 2025 ,\ s at March 3 1,2024 

Particu lars 
Additions to 

Additions to non-
Segment Assets non-current Segment Assets 

assets 
current assets 

\tletro Rnil S) ~tcm 14.803.32 4. 13 15.HJI.36 R.50 
Others 945.14 42.54 1.383.61/ 46.55 
Total segment assets 15,748.46 46.67 16.485.05 55.05 

I 'nal/ncated: 
Delerred tux assets - - - -
I n,e,llnents - - -

Cash ami cash equivaknls 171.77 - 33. 10 -
Other bonJ... bulance.s - - ~.00 -

Total HSsets as per the balance sheet 
15,920.23 41) .67 16,522.15 55.05 
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L&T Metro Rail (H)dcrahad ) Limited 
~otes fo rming part of 1 hl' Financial Statement' 

25.2 Disc lo\urc pursu:wt tv lnd A~ 108- Segment information cuntcl. .. 

(c) Segment li:lbilitie!> 
Segmcnlliahi litics arc measured in the same wa) as in the financial 
'\Wtcmcnb. I hc'c liabilities are nllt1Cated based on the operations of the 

~ Crorc 

As at March 31, As at March 31, 
2025 2024 

Particuhn:-
Segment Segment 

Lia bili tics Liabil ities 

Metro Rail ~ystem 14.252.01 1-1.1 06.-IS 

Others 860.72 982.03 
Total segment liabilit ies 15,112.74 15,088.51 

UJw!locatccl: 
Deferred to\ liabilities - . 

Current ta:-. liabilities - -
Tota l liabilities as per the balance 

15.1 12.74 15,088.5 1 
sheet 

(d) Re\enuc contributed b) any 5ingle customer in any or the operating 
segmenh. '' hether reportable ol' otherwise, doesnot exceed ten pet"Cl'l1t of 
Comparl) ·, total revenue 

(e) Basis of' idcntil'ying operating segments, reportable segments. segment 
pro lit and deli nit ion of each reportable segment; 

( i ) Basis of idenri fying operati ng segments: 
Operating segments arc idcnti fied as those components of the Company 
(a) that engage in business activities to earn revenues and incur expenses t 

including trnnc;actions with any of the Company's otht:r components) 
(b) \\'hose operating results arc regularly reviewed by CODM to make 
decisions about the resource allocation and performance assessment. 
(c) Por "hich discrete financial information is available 

( i i) Rcponabl~ segments : 
An opcrming c;cgmcnt is classified as reportable segment if reponed rc,cnuc 
or absolute amount of result or assets exceed I 0° o or more of the combined 
total of all the operating segemcnts 

(iii) Segment profit: 
Performam:e of a scgnH!nt is measured based on s~::gmeJH protit ( lx~fore 

interest ~1ncl tax) . as included in the internal management reports that arc 

f0~)y thl! Company CODM 

~~"- ' ~/ 
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L&T MctTO Rail (llyderilha<l) Limited 
:'llotes formin g part of the Financial Statement~ 

25.3 Disclosure L ntl 1.1 r Append ix 0 lu lnd AS 11 5 

Oescdption of the Significant terms of the arrangement 
arr;lngcmcnt 

Period of' the Concession 60 years fi·om the Appointed Date. Considered ftu1hcr extension 
of ini tial concession period by 7 years in terms c>f Art icle 29 of 
Concession Agreement 

Remuner3tion F:trc collection Rights from th~ users of' the Metro Rail System, 
license to usc land providod by the government for constructing 
tlepots and lo r tnmsit orien t~d development and earn lease rent~ I 
income on such development and grant of viability gap fund. 

Conditions of Pricing -
Investment Grant from grantor Provision of' Viability Gap Pund of Rs. 1458 Crores 
Infrastructure return at the end of' Being IJBFOT project. the Project Assets have to be trausferred 
the w ncession period at the end of concession period 
l erminat ion Termination or the Concession Agreement can either he Jue to a) 

rorce M<~j ew·e b) Non Political event c) Indirect political evcm d) 
Politkal t:vent. On occurrence of ::my of the above events, lhe 
obligations, dispute resolution. termination payments etc are as 
detailed in the Concession Agreement. 

Construction. Rights & Obligations Mnjor obligations ol'thc concessionaire are a) obligat ion~ relat ing 

operation and to project agreements b) obligation relating to change in 

maintenance of the ownership c) obligation relat ing to issuance of Golden Share to 

Metro Rail System on the Government d) Obligation relat ing 10 maintaining aesthetic 

Design. Build. qua li ty or the Rail System e) Obligation to operate and maintain 

Finance , opet·ate <Uld the rolling stock ;md equipment ne\:essary and sullicicnt t·or 

Transfer basis handling Users equivalent to ll 0°/r, o!' the Average Pl lPD'I etc. 
Ml:\ior obligat ions of the Government are a) providing required 
constructible right of way for construction of rai l system and land 
required lor t:onsu·uction of depots and tnmsit oriented 
development. bl providing reilSonable suppon and assiswnce in 
procuring applicable permiL' required for constructi(m c) 
providing t·easonable assi~t:mce in obtu1nlng at: cess to all 
necessary infrastructure facili ties and util it ies d) oblig:llions 
rel11ting to competing facilities c) obligations rcl<lling to supply of 
electricity etc 

Changes in the arrangement Any clumges in the arrangement like change in the Shareholding 
occurriug during the period etc needs approval from the Government. 
Classifica1ion of'Servic~ The service arran gem en t has been classified as a Service 
Am1ngemeni Concession Arrangement for a PPP project as per Appendix C to 

lnd AS II 5- Revenue from contn1cts wi th customers. 
Accordingly construction revenues and expenses are acc<lunted 
during construction phase and intangible asset is recognised 
towards rights to charge the users of the: system. 

Particulars As at l\ larch 31,202.5 As at l\ larch 31 , 202-t 

Construction revenue 4. 12 S.50 
Profi t 0.00 0.00 
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L&T Metro Rnil (Hyderabml) Limited 
"'otes forming pat·t of tile FiJwncial Statements 

25.4 Oisclosurr ndcr lnd AS 12-lncome Ta xes 
i) Reclmcilation or tax expense anJ the accounting. pro lit multiplied by Indian domestic tax rate lor the year ended 

M::m.;h 3 1.2025 and Man.:h 3 I .2024 

As ;H March As at 
Particulai·s 3 1,1025 March 31, 

2024 

Profit before tax (PBT) (625.9 1) (555.04) 

Applicable t(lx roll! '25. 17% 25.17% 

PBT *A pplicable Tax rate ( 157.53) ( 139.69) 

Tax Effect nf loss of current year on which no delen·eJ tax bene lit i~ 
( 157.53) ( 139.69) 

recognised 

ii) CompOntJnl of deferred Lax (asset)/liability recognised in the Balance Sheet and Statement or Profit and Loss account: 

~ Crorc 

Pa rticula t·s 
Balance Sheet Profit & Loss 

3 1.03.2025 3 1.03.2024 2024-25 2023-24 

Difference in book depreciation and income 3.090.92 2,9 13.35 177.56 246.72 

tax deprc(;iation (tax amount) 
Carried forward tax losses (tax amount) 
Unabsorbed depreciation (tax amount) (3,090.92) (2,9 13.35) ( 177.56) (246.72) 

Net dcfen•cd tax (assets)lliabil ities - - - -

iii) Ullused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset ( DTA) is recognised in Balance Shct!t 

~ Crorc 

Particulars 
31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

Arno11ut Expir y year Amount Expiry yea r 
Tax losses (Business loss and unabsorbed 

5.921.39 5,799.70 
dcprcciatic;lll) 

- -

/\ mount of' losses having expit·y (Base 
4.167.29 

2025-26 LO 
4,286.00 

2025-26 lO 

amount) 2032-33 2031-32 

/\mount of losses having no e.,-;piry (base 
1.754.10 - 1,5 13.70 

amount) 
-

iv) Deferred tax asset on unabsorbed depreciation has been recngn is~d to the extent the same can be set ofT against 
dt:ferrecl tux liabil ity arising on timing difference between book clcprcciation and lox dcprccialit)n. 

v) Other deterred ta" assets haw not been recognised consideri ng the concept or reusonable certainty or future taxable 
ii1 C(li11C. 
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1 .~~ r ~ h-1 ro lluil ( ll~·dcr~bad) Limilcd 
\otr< ftll'llli u~ part of the f.iuaurinl $ 1ntemcnl~ 

25.5 Disclosut·c pu rsuant to lncl i\S llfi." l.••ascs" 

n) As~cts htl<cn on sho•·t term ll•ascs 
I he Compan) has not entered 11110 nny !inane.: lease. The Comp:ln) I1.IS taken 1 ehtdes under cancellable opcrmmg k·a~•·s for short lenn. These 
lease 3gr.:t:mt:ltts arc uormall~ rcn.:11CU lllr a penod or one yea1 up011 <'\pu) There arc no cx.:<!ptimwl/r.:Mnctl\'1.' cuwnauts 111 th~ lease 
agr.:cmeut£. The lt:a._~c l'\IJCn~~s Ill r~-sp.:ct or th.:se opcnmng lea~es ha1c t>l.'.:n mduddd in Ollicc nmmt~nance and o1hcr expenses Currem \ .:ar 
~ 0.57 Crmcs (Prc\lou> Year~ II 45 CrQrt:s) 

h) t\s~cts given under uprrnting t•·n~r 
I he C1>mpany has cnh;:rcd mto ,\grccmcurs 11 uh ns customers for g1• m~ I he ~pace on lease related 10 I rans1t Oncntcd Dc1 clopmcnL Stnuot\ 
Re1ail und Naming Rt~hts 

The ~.:ompany has g1vcn lis propcntcs umlt:r nnn - cancellable operat ing 1~:~~~. rlw li1ture mmimum le;~sc pll}'m~n•~ ll!~c• valllc i11 respect vf 1\lllch 
11rc as to llnws. 

t Crorc 

As !If ,\1 arch 
As n1 

'I no l'urticul:t rs 
Jl. 2025 

\larch 31, 

202-1 
I Rcccl\able no1 later than I year 1066 25 ~I 

2 Rccctvable la1cr I han I ) ear and nm later than 2 \cars J :!2 I 134 

3 ReceiVable la1cr rhan 2 )Cars and not later than J ,·cars 0 16 H7 
4 Receivable la1er rhan 3 years and no1 later than -1 1 ~at~ 000 0.06 
5 Rec.:1vablc lawr than 4 vears and nm later I hun 5 vcars 0 00 0.00 
6 l(we•vuble ln1cr than 5 years 0.00 0.00 

Tota l t I+ 2+3+-1+.5+6) 14.()5 40.48 

25.6 Disclosure pursu:lnl lo lml AS 1 'J - l·: mploycc benefits 

i) Deli ned conltihulion plun: 
An amount oft I 3'.1 Crorcs ( Prcvmu~ Year · ~ I IS Crores) ~111g .:onln l>uuon made to recognised provicknt fund as recogms~d as expense. 

il) Drfined benefit plans: 
a) I he Compan) np.:rmes graHIII~ plan 1hrough a triiSI "herl!tn c'~" ~mployee ts e111i1led LO thl' benefit ~qUivalentlo tiltccn da}S sala~ last 

drdwn for each comple1cd )~ar of serv1ce The 5am.: IS pa) able 011 h:nntnullon of s.:r. ice or rc1ir~mcm whichever IS earltcr The benefit 
vest~ afler fivtl ye-ars of conllnuous service The fund is mnnogetl b) LIC 

b) The plan cxpos~;s !he ~omp;my 10 aCiltri:~l risks sud1 as mvcs11ncm nsk, 1ntcrc~1 rnterisk, salary nsk and lnngcllvlly mk 

lnvcslment Risk The prcscm vnlt1e of the defined benefi t plan lanbthiY IS c:alcula1cd using a discoum rare 
whtch tS dclcnnmed by reterence to mark~t) 1clds at lh( end of th~ reporting p.znnd on 
govemmenr bonds 

lnrcrcsr Rate A decre:~se 111 the hand interest rate 11111 mcreasc the plan habthty: however. tlu~ w1ll be 
Rtsk partmlly onset by an mcrease in the return on 1he plan's debt mvestmcnts 
Longc1 it) Rtsl,. The prescnl value of he ddined benefll plan hab1ht) is calculated hy reference to the 

best csllmatc of the mortality of plan parttCtpants An mcrease mlhe lifecxpeclancy of 
thl! plan paniCtpants will increase the plan's I tab> Ill} 

Salary risk The prescnr value of 1he defined benefit plan hab1ht) I) calcularcd by rcli:rencc to the 
l\1ture s:~lnncs of plan partlctpnnls. As such. ;In lllCII.:USt: m rile salary of the plan 
participants will increase lhe plan's liabi lity 
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L~I::T Metro Rail (Hyderallud) Limited 
Notes fo rming part of the Fin:~~t cial Statements 

25.fi Disclosure pursuant tu lnd AS 19 -Employee b~nP fits Contd .... 

c) Amounts recogn ised in Balance Sheet arc as follows: 
~ 

z Crore 
Gratuity plan Compensated absences 

As at As at As at' i\ s at 
Particulars March31 , March 31. March 31, March31 , 

2025 2024 2025 2024 

A) Present value of de lined benefit obligation 
- Wholl) funded 3.51 2.92 - -
- Wlwlly unfunded - - 1.99 1.64 

3.5l 2.92 1.99 1.64 
Les.1· :fair value of' plan asset~ 2.98 2.66 - -

/\mount tn be recognised as liability or (asseo 0.53 0.27 1.99 1.64 
B) Amounts rcnected in the Balance Sheet 

Liabil ities 0.53 0.27 1.99 1.64 
Assets 

Net Liability I (asset) 0.53 0.27 1.99 1.64 

d) Amounts recognised in the Finuncials are as fo llows· 
~ - · 

G ratuity plan Compensated absences 

Pariiculars 
As at As at As at As at 

Ma rch 31, Mn ch 31, March 31, March31 , 
2025 2024 2025 2024 

I. Current service cost 0.41 0.34 0.21 0.28 
2. Interest on Defined benefit obligation 0.20 0 .20 0.11 0. 12 
3. lnteresl int:ome on plan assers (0.20) (0.19) 

4. Actuarial losses/(gains) 
Remeasuremenl- Due to financial assumptions (),(18 0.05 0.02 0.01 
Remem;uremcnt- Due to demographic assumptions 

Remeasurement- Due to CX(Jericncc adjustments 0. 19 (0.10) 0.34 0.46 
ToL<II (I to 4) 0.68 0.30 0.69 0.87 
r /\mount included in financia ls 0.68 0.30 0.69 ().87 
II Amount included as partof"finance costs" - - - -

Total (1 + 10 0.68 0.30 0.69 0.87 

(i) /\mount included in "Employee Benelit Expenses'' 0.4 1 0.34 
(ii) /\mounllncluded in "Finance Cost" 0.00 O.OJ 
(iii) Amount· included in "Other Comprehensive Income" 0.27 (0.05) 
Total (i+ii+iii) 0.68 0.30 

Actual return on plan assets O.lS 0.17 ·- -
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L& T MNro Rail ( llyllentba{l) Limited 
Notes forming p:trt of the Finnncia l Statements 

25.6 Disclosure pursuant to lnll AS 19 ~Employee benefits Contd ... . 

c) Changes in the pr~St: lll vnlue- or dt' lillt!d benefit obligation representing fCCOill' iliation or opening and closing balances 
thereof are as follows: 

~ Crore 
Gratuity ulan Com ocnsated absences 

As at March As nt March As at As at 
P:wticulnrs 31,2025 3 1, 2024 March J I. Ma rch31, 

2025 2024 

Opening balance ol'thc present value (1f defined benefit 
2.93 2.92 1.(14 2.38 

obligation 
Add: Current service cosl OAI 0.34 0.2 1 0.28 
A./d: Interest cost 0.20 0.20 0. 11 0.12 

!ldd: Contribution hy plan participants 
i) Employer - - - -
i[) Employee - ~ - -

A tid: Remeasurcmenls due to c~pcrienced adjustments O.l!l (0.11) 0.34 0.46 
I dslf: Benefits paid (0.28) (0.46) (0.34) ( 1.61) 
,Jdd: Rt!measuremems due to jinrmC'ialusswnplions 0.08 0.05 0.02 0.0 1 
;]t/d: Pas/ service cos/ 
Closing balance of the present value or defined benefi t 
obligat ion 3.51 2.93 1.99 1.64 

0 Changes in the fa il' value of plan as~ets representing reconciliation ol' opening nnd closing balances thereor are as lo llows: 

~ Crore 
Gratuity Jl lnn 

Particulars As at March As at Ma rch 
31, 2025 31, 202-t 

Opening bnlance of fair value of plan assets 2.66 2.69 
•ldd: Interest income on plan assets 0.20 0. 19 

Add: Remeasurcments- return on assets (U.UI) (0.02) 

Add: Contribution by employer 0.42 0.25 

Add: Contribution by plnn participunts -
Less: Adjuslmentto tlpcning balance & others 
Less: Beneftts paid (0.28) (().46) 
Closing balance or fair VA lue of plan assets 2.99 2.66 

g) Principal actuaria l assumptions at the Balance Sheet dare· 

Pnrticulars 
As at March As at March 

31 , 2025 31,2024 
I) Discount rate 6.83% 7.2 1%. 
2) Salary growth rate 6.00% 6.00% 
3) Expected rate of return 6.83% 7.2 1% 

4) Mortality 
IJ\LM 20 12- IALM 20 12-14 

1-1 Ultimate Ultimate 
5) Attrition rate 5.00% 5.00% 
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h) 1\ quuntitative st'nSitivity analysis !'or signific:lnt as~umption as at 31 Mureh 2025- Impact' on dclincd bene li t obligat ion 
(Grr~t ui ty Plan) 

~ Crorc 

Particulat·s 
Discount rate 

3 1-MH-25 J J.i\'Jar-24 
I) Change in assumptions 1.00% 1.00% 
2) Increase in assumptions 3.3 1 2.76 
3) Decrease in assumptions 3.72 J . ll 

~ Crore 

Particulars 
Salary growth rate 

31-Mar-25 3 1-Mar-24 
I ) Change in assumptions 1.00% 1.00% 
2) Increase in assumptions 3.70 3.09 
3) Decrease in assumptions 3.32 2.77 

~ Crorc 

Particulars 
Att rition rute 

J J-Mar-25 31 -Mar-24 
I) Change in assumptions 1.00% 1.00% 
2) Increase in assumptions 3.5 1 2.94 
3) Decrease in assumptions 3.50 2.91 

i) M(\jor component of plan assets as a percentage of Gratuity plan assets : 
~ Crore 

Particulars 
As at March As at Ma rch 

31, 2025 31. 2024 

Insurer managed funds 100% 100% 

j) Weighted average durat ion oft he defined henefil obl igation at the end of the reporting period: 
~ Crore 

Particula rs 
As at March As at March 

31, 2025 31, 2024 
I. Gratuil) 7.00 7.00 
2. Compensated absen~es 4.00 uo 
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L&T Metro Rail til,lcltnlhad) Limited 
\'otcs forming part nf the Financial Sta tements 

15.7 DibdOsur(! pursuant to lnd AS 2-1 -Hl"latcd party disclosures 

I) List uf ••elated part irs 11 hcrc control ~x ists 

(a) f lolding Company 
(h) Ft1 llow Subsidiaries 

I) Larson & Toubro l.i111ited 
I) LTL Mind rrcc Limited 
2) L&T TcchnolOf.!Y St>rviccs Li111it~:d 

II ) i'ianH·s ot"thc Key i\ lanagvment 1'1·r~onncl / Related Parties with whom the transactions wct·c 
carried out during the ycslr 

(a) K~:~ 1vlanugen1cnl Personnel : 

(b) Related Parties 

Ill ) Disclosure of related pat·ty lntusnctions: 

Namc/Rclatiunship/ Nn turc of transaction 
I. ll oltling Company 
Larsen & Toubrn Limited 

(u) Cosl of' Services hy 
(b) Cost ol' services to 
(c) Subscription to Equity Shat·es 
(d) Inter Corporate l)epnsit ret:eivcd 
(c) rnter Corporate Deposit rt:pnid 
(f) gcpayment ot'NCO 
(g) Interest on NCD 
(h) Security Deposit received 
(i) Construction work in progress 
(j) Interest on Inter corporate deptlsils 
(k) Corporate Financial Guarantee Charges 
(I) Intangible Assets /ConstructitJil work in progress 
(111) Overheads charged by 

2. l ~cllow Subsidiaries 
(i) LTI Mind Tree Limited (Fomcrl) lmown as L&T lnfotcch 
Limited) 

(a) Rcnl charged to 
(b) Security Deposit rct:cived 
(C) Overheads Charged lO 

(d) l'urchttse of services nnd produci.S 
(iii L&T Trl'hnology Srt·vii'CS l.imitrd 

(a) Renl charged lo 
3. Other Rclulcd Purtics 

(i) L&T (KA.'ISBAJJAL) Staft' and Workmen Provident Fund. 

(a) repayment of'NCD 
~~:ti~CSl 011 NCIJ 

lfm~, .. ~, of"'~"'· "'"'""'"• .,.,~~ 
( . . ~ * : ~· I: 

0 ' ~' 
0 ~~ 

-

I) Mr. K. V.B Reddy. Managing Oireutor and CEO 
2) Mr,Rahul t il<1~ey. Chid Flm111cial Orrlccr (upto 11-07-2024) 
3) Mr. Aluri Venkata Raina Srinivasa Sh~:~rmu, ChicfFinanl.li1:1l 
Oflicer ( w.e.f 12-07-2024) 

4) Mr. Chandrachud D Paliwal. Head- I eg;ll & Comp;lt1) 
Secretary 

I) Mr. Ajil Pnndnrnng Rangnekar. lndcpeneh!nt Oirector 
2) Mr. NV S Reddy. Independent Oiroc:lor 
3) Mr. R PmsatiiUI. Independent Oirectos· 
4) Mrs. Vljuya Lakshmi lycr, Independent Director 
5) Mr.Sujil Varm~. Independent Director 
6) Mrs. Deeps Gopalan Wadhwn, Independent Director 
7) Mr. A V Prasad, Independent Dftel!lor 

~ Crore 
2024-25 2023-2-1 

0.71 1.29 
1.62 0.76 

. 3,654.00 

. 564.00 
- 3.059.03 
- 584.00 

56.72 87.17 
O.N 0.32 
0.06 0.26 

- \90.38 
31.3<1 30.31 

0,26 0.8(, 
-1..55 4.22 

- 5.28 
- 3.94 
- 1.80 

1.59 1.67 

. 0.05 

- 0.50 
- 0.04 
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IV) I cy 1\lanagern~nt l'crsonncl l'ornpensation 
~ Crore 

Pnrlicula rs 202.j-25 2023-2.j 

Short Term Gmpk)yee Benefi ts 6.34 5.83 
Post-l: mployec fknctits 0.20 0. 17 
Sitting fees paid to Independent Directors 0.21 0.10 
Total 6.75 6.20 

\ ') Due to I frum I'Ciated parties 
'{ Crore 

N~mc 
As al ,\larch 31 , 2025 r\.s at March 31, 2t12.j 

Due to Due from Due to flue from 
Lm·sen and Toubro Limited 
Con~truction works 730.92 - 732.87 -
Nun Convertible Debentures(NCIJ) 922.00 - 422.00 -
1\ccru~::d Interest on NCD 54.56 - 25.96 -
Trade Payable& 8.53 0.0(1 9.80 0.4 1 
Sc<:urity Deposit 0.56 - - -

LTI Mind l'ree Limited 
Trade Payables 0.06 - - -

VI) Commit'lllcnt with Related Pat1ics 
~ Crore 

Capital commitment in respect of additions 1!1 Asset s As a t March As at i\ln rch 
(Ta noible & I nt:11JOible assct·s) 31,2025 31,2024 
I .arscn & Toubro Limited 0.63 0.6 1 

Note: 
I . /\lithe related party contrac ts/ anangcmcnts have been entered on arms' length basis. 
2. No (lllll)Uil t pertaining to the relalcd parties have been written orr I written back during the year 

3. The holding company Larsen & Toubro Limited hHs provided financial guarantee ag;~ i nst Rs.8.6 16 Crores debentures issued b) the 
comp<llly. 
4. The holding company Larsen & Toubro Limited has furnished promoter support undertaking to fund any coupon shortfall for cvci'Y 
~.:uupon p~riotl during the tenure of the Hs.4Y. l Cmres unsecured non t:onvcrtiblc debentures 
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L&T ~ lctru Rail (1-lydcl'llhncl) Limited 
'nics funning pari of t he Financial Statements 

1.5.8 Di.sclvsu•·c (HII'SU>l nl lo I nd AS 33 -Ea1·nings per slnuc 

P:lrticulars ~ Crord Nos 2024-15 2023-24 
Profit/( Loss) alier Tn.~ ~ Crore (625.88) (555.041 
Weighted average number of' equity shares used t1s denominutor for 

Nos 7.4 1.30.00,0(10 3.02., 18.46,995 
calculating Bas1u cPS 
WeighteJ average munber of equity shares 11srd us denominator for 

Nos 7.4130.00.000 .S.02. 18.46.9Q5 
calculating Oi luted EPS 
En rning~ l'er Share 
Basic ~ (0 lill) ( I. II ) 
Diluted ~ (0.84) ( I. 1 1) 
Nominal value per equity share ~ 10.00 1(1.00 

25.9 Disclosure pursuant to lnd AS 37 "Provisjuns, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets" 
M . I' M . i\ 1 . d I I OVCIIICIII' Ill rOVISHIIIS: . a,1t1r 1 · a111tcnance 1111 over mu expenses. 
Pal'iculars ~ Crurc 
Balance as <ll 01 .04.2024 238.40 
Additional prm·ision during thr year (including unwinding of imen:st) 81.83 
Provision u~ed during the year 16.19 
Prvosion reversed during the ye.a r -
Balance as at 31.03.2025 303.94 

25.10 E •xpcn ltUr~ Ill •orCij(ll c UITCnCy 
l'articulurs As at Ma rch As at Mu rch 31, 

31,2025 2024 
On overseas contrl'lcrs 12.04 2U4 
Professionni!Consultancy Fees 0.14 0.59 
Total 12.18 25.33 

25.11 1l1e Company is into construction, operation. and maintenanc~ of the infrastructure filcility (metro rail system) which involve> 
large capital iJl\'estmelllS and long gestation period. The project is at an early stage compared to the remaining concession period 
of about 54 years as on 31 .03.2025. The Company has be.:n incurring contimuld losst:s ~nd liS ut the year end the current 
liab ilities have exceeded the current assets. Series A of' the long tcnn horrowings in the rorm of' Non-Convertible debentures are 
due for retkmption in linilncial year 2015-26. In view of these circumstances, the management had, in earlier years take11 
various in itiatives like reduction of cost oJ' doht, refinancing the commercial papers. moneti7ing TOD assets, seeking, financial 
assiswnce fmm the state govcmmcnt etc. At the year end some of the in illatives have yielded posflive results ~nd the others arc 
being pursued hy the management. Fwther. the holding company has provided financia l guarantee to NCD holders and a letter 
of comlbrt ugainsl the commercial pap~rs. In view of these factors, the management considt:rs preparation or financial 
stmements on going concem bnsis is appropriate. 
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I if.. I ~leu·o ll:lil ( ll ) ol cr:th:ul ) l.imilrd 
'\ole;. rorming I"""' ore he Fin:tn rhol Sr:oc eonencs 

z:;. l2 Oi>ciO\IIrr \1 ilh I'C!!anl 10 chliii!!C~ in li:tbililics arising (rom tin:~ncin!! :I Cih irics :t~ rrquirrtl ~~~ Inti \ S 7 "l>r~r emeul or l~Sh 

f"lo11' '" 

t C' rore 
'iOII •CIH' I"CII I Cun•rnt Cun'{'lll marurilices 

l'nrriruhu·~ borrowings (r-.ocr hort'OII ings nr lung lfl'lll To1:1l 
12 & 15) (Nolh' IZ hon·o11ing~ 

Oalnncc "' nl April 01. 2023 '1,4:;5.73 7.733.'18 . 17.189.71 
L'lmngc~ lrmn rinancm!ll:ash ll1>ws (700 'Ill) (.1,487 22) - \.3.188 11) 
lnt~rcsl :1ccru~d !tid ufinMt:SIImidl H:! (3(15.62) - 4360 80) 
OCher chnngc~ (trnn~fcr wllhin t1ltcgun~~) S00.0\1 (!UXlOO) - . 
nniHII CC liS 11( 1\lllrrh Jl, 20H '1,561.83 4,081.12 . IJ.G~VJ:> 

Change~ lrum flmtm:rng ~::1sh lluw~ . 60.36 . bO 36 
lntcrcsl nccrucd (net nt' llll<!rC~I pn td) 2.30 ( 19.!13) - ( 17.44) 
Other changes (lm n~tcr wnhtn •~ct.ogo)Ttes) (2.9:!1. 10) 2.'.12 1. 1 (I . . 
llnlnurc as lll i\lnrch 31.2025 6,(>~3.12 7,0·H.7:; - 13.6!15.87 

i\mounl' rcpoli'H'tl in St>th·mcnc or cnsh Oll\\S under linnncing ar. rivilit·s: 

f Crort' 
l'artlcuhu·s 202~-25 2023-14 
Proceeds from non-current bomm ing.o; (refer n01e 121 - 1!0000 
Rcpnyrncnc of non-currenl bornm mgs 1 reti:r note 12) . 1700.90) 
Proceed~ '( rcpn) mcntl of currcnc ·ochcr borro'' mg.s 1 refer note 111 60 Jb (3,287 22) 
1 ocnl chnnl!~ from linanctnl! cash 0011~ 60 36 (3.188 11) 
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I &'f NlctTo Rail (llydcr·abatl) Limited 
'lintcs forming pnrt ol' the Financial Statcnrcnts 

2:'i.IJ Ratios 
The following arc analytical ratio~ fnr thc year ended March Jl, 2025 nod i\olar·ch 31, 202~ 

Particulars umerator Denominator 31-1\ l:lr-25 J J-Mnr-2.4 Variance Rcmari(S 

Current l~atio Current Assets 
Current 

0.15 0.26 --13"/c• Note- n 
Lishil ities 

Debt-Equity Ralio rota! Dehl 
Share holder';; 6.78 ~ . 06 34~~ Note- b 
J..qui ty 

Drbt Service 
Famings 

Coverage Ratio 
available ror Ddll Service 0.83 0.75 10% 

Debt ':;eNice 

Return on Equity Net Pro tits atlcr 
Average 
Shareholder's NM NM Not~- c 

Ratio ltLXeS 
Equity 

Inventory tumover Cost of g0t1Js 
Inventory 0.72 1.4~ -71% Note -d 

Ratio sale> 
Trade R.:ce ivabJes Revenue from A veragcTmdc 

18.80 11 .97 57% Notc-e 
turnover rutin Op.:rations Receivables 

Trade Payahl~ 
Purchase of 

1\ verage Trade 
services ;md 6.30 5.75 I Oo/o 

turnover ratio other expenses 
Payables 

Net capitol tumovcr Revenue from Average 
(0.77) ( [. 10) Note- a 

nllio oper·nt ions working capnal: 

Net Profit rutio Net Profit 
Revenue from (0.57) (0.40) 
operations 

Rctmn on Capital 
Eamings he tore 

Capital 
interest and t).()2 O.Otl -55'Yc• 

l":mployccJ 
taxes 

Employed 

Income Time weighted 
Return on invcstmtot gt:.nerat~::d !rom Average () 10 0 21 -51% Note - !' 

lnwstment:; investments 

Note: 

a) Current lillbilitics excludes borrowrngs (CP's, !CO's and current marurirics oflong tenn borrowings). Dccrc~se IS on accoum of 
realisations. 

b) The NCO l'orming part of promoter contribmion for the pmj~ct are ~:onsitlered as t:qu ity. lncremtmnl Debt Equity ratio is on 
Hccmmt of comp1my's inadequate <.:ashllows toliquidme the dent. 

c) Not meaningful. since average net worth is negative 
d) Being a infr·a company, this ratio is linked to maintenance cost instead of cost of goods sold. Increase in inventory resul ted in 

decrease in ratio 

e) Revenue fi'OI11 operations excludes !'are revenue, since receivables perrains to other businesses orthc company, Incremental 
percentage due to improved realisation of receivables. 

f) Excludes returns fi·om mut1ral limds. 
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L&T Metro Rail (Hyderabad) Limited 

Notes t()rmi ng pa1·t of the Accounts 

Note 26. Material Accounting Policy £nf01·matinn 

I. Corporate Information: 

L& I Metro Rail (Hydcrabad) Limited was incorporated on 24th August 20 I 0 as a Special 
Purpose Vehicle to undertake the construction. operation ancl maintenance of the Metro Rail 
System ( including T ransit Oriental Development) in Hydcrabad under Public Private 
Partnership model. 

The Company signed the Concess ion Agreement with the Government of Telangana State 
(erstwhile uni'fied state of Andhra Pradesh) on 04.09.20 I 0 which granted the exc lusive right , 
li cense and attthor ity to the Company to construct, opera te and maintAin t·he Metro Rai l System 
(The ·Concession') on three elevated corridors fron1 Miyapur to L.B.Nagar (Corridor 1), 
Jubi lee Bus Station to Falaknuma (Corrid or U) and from Nagolc to Shilparamam (Con idor 
Ill ) in I lyderabad and Transit Oriented Development (TOD) in accordance w ith the provisions 
of the Concession Agreement on Design. Build. Finance. Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) 
basis. The Government had dec lared Appointed Date for the project as 5th July 2012.The 
concession period of the project is for 60 years commenc ing rrom the Appointed Dntc plus 
any extension granted thereof in accordance '" ith the provisions of the Concession Agreement 
read with the Supplemental Concession Agreement entered into by the Company with the 
Government ofTelangana dated 22"d Jul). 2012. 

l'hc construction "ork in the three corridors of the project namely Corridor-!: M iyapur to LB 
Nagar (29.55 KM), Corridor-2: .IBS to MGBS (I 0.65 KM) and Corridor-3: Nagole to Raidurg 
(~9.00 KM) is complete and the project '"as opened for pub lic use in various stages starting 
from 29th November)O 17 to 7'h february 20::!0. 

The Company also completed construction and operationa lization or 1.80 mill ion sft space of 
TOD consisting or 4 malls at Punjagutta. Errum Man7il. I Jitcc City and Moosarambagh 
locations and office blocks at Panjagutta and Raidurg. 

II . M a tcriat Acco unting Policy Informati on: 

1. Statement of compliance 

The Company's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of 
!he Companies Act, 2013 and the Indian Accounting Standards (Tnd AS) notified under the 
Companies ( Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20 15 and amendments thereof issued by 
Ministry of Corporate Affa irs in e:-..crcisc of the powers conferred by Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 20 t 3. These financials statements have been approved for issue by the Board 
of Directors at its meeting held on April 2 t. 2025. 

2. Basis of accou nting 

l'he Com pany maintains its accounts on accrual basis following historical cost convention. 
except for certain financial instruments that nrc measured at fair value in accordance with lnd 
AS. 

Fai r VHluc measurements are categorized as be low. based on the dc:grce to which the inputs 
to the fair va lue measurements are obsen,ab lc and the sign ilicauce of the inputs to the fa ir 
va lut: measurement in it::. enlit·et) 
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L&T Metro Rail (llydcrabad) Limited 
Notes fanning par·t of t he Accounts (conld.) 
Material Accounting Policies (con tel.) 

Leve l 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and linbililics that 
the company c::tn access at measurement d<~te. 
Level 2 - [npt lts other than quoted prices included withi n Leve l I that are observable lor the 
asset or liability and: 
Level 3 - lnptJts for the assets and liubilities that are not based on observable market data 
(un observable inputs). 

Above levels of lair value hierarchy are applied consistently and generally. there are no 
tra nslers between the levels of the fair va lue hierarchy unless the circumstances change 
warranti ng such transfer. 

3. Presentation of financia l statements 

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the 
format prescribed in the Schedule lll to the Companies Ac t, 2013 ("'the Act' '). The Cash Flow 
Statement has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of !nd AS 7 .. Statement 
of Cash no ws". The disclosu re requ irements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and 
Statement of Profit and Loss, as presc ribed in the Schedule J II to the Act. are presented by 
way of notes forming pat·t of the financial statements along with the other notes required to 
be disclosed under the notiriecl Accounting Standards and the SEBT ( f ,isting Obligat ions and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015 as a111 endecl. 

Amounts in the fiiJancia l statements are presented in Indian Rupees in crore rounded off to 
two dec imal places as permitted by Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013 . Per share data 
are presented in Indian Rupees to two decimal places. 

4. Operating cycle for current and non-current classification 

An asset sha II be classi fiecl as cu rrcn t v\ hen it satisfies any of the fo llowing criteria: 
a. it is expected to be rea lized within twelve months after the reporting date; or 

b. it is cash or cash equ iva lent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle 
a liab ility for at least twelve months after the reporting elate. 

All other assets shall be class ified as non-curren t. 

A liabili ty shall be class ified as cu rrent when it sat isfies any of the fo llowing criteri a: 
a. it is due to be se ttled within twelve months after the reporting date; or 

b. the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability lor 
at least twelve months after !he reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the 
opti on of the counter party. result· in its sett lement by the issue ofequiry instruments do 
not <~ffect its classification. 

All other liabi lities sha ll be class ified as non-current. 

5. Revenue r ecognition 
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L&T Metro Rail (Hyderabad) L imited 
Notes forming part of t he Accounts (contd.) 
Mater ial Accounting Policies (contd.) 

time. For performance obligation satisfied over time. the revenue rccogn1t1 on 1s done b; 
mea~uring the progress towards complete satisfaction of performance ob i igation. 

Fat·e Reven ue 

Revenue from fare co llect i.on is recognized on the bas is of use of tokens. money value of t·he 
actuaJ usage in case o r smart cards and other direct fare collection. Non refu nd able card 
cha rges recogni zed as income immed iately on issuance of the card. 

-J op up recharge- recognized as revenue based on usage and ba lance unused amounr shal l be presented 
under "Other· Current L iability- Contract L iability''. 

Concession arrangements: 

The company has concession arrangement for construction of'Metro Rail system' t'ollovved b) 
a period in wh ich the company maintains and services the infrastructure. These concess ion 
arrangements set out r ights and ob ligations relating the infrastructure and the serv ice to be 
provided. 

For fu lfi lli ng those obligH tions. the company is entitled to rece ive from the gran tor, viability 
gap fu nd, license rights to use and commercial ly exp lore land for trans it-ori ented development 
and a cont ract ual righ t to charge the users of th e serv ice. The cons icleration rece ived or 
rece ivab le is al located by reference to the re lative fair value of the construction serv ices 
provided 

/\s set out in (9) below, the right to consideration gives rise to an intangib le asset and financial 
asset: 

Income from the concession arrangements earned under the in tangib le asset model consists of 
the fair val ue of contract revenue, which is deemed to be fa ir value of consideration transferred 
to acquire the asset and payments actually received from the users. 

Rental Jncome: 

The TOD business ac ti vities consist of va rious independent componen ts provided through 
separate joint memomnd um with the Government on license basis. Each of the 
properties/components constitute separate business act iv ities/underiakings and are being 
developed/ commerc ially exploited in phased manner independently into Retai l Malls /Office 
space/M ixed Use Commercia l, etc. after obtain ing necessary sta tutory approvals for 
cons!ruction and development including approvals for monetization. Under this business 
activity, the comp:wy ea rns renta l income from the developments which are completed and 
operati onalized. Such ren ta l incomes are recognized on accrual basis as per terms of each 
renta l arrangement with customers. Furthermore, as part of the company's inherent bus iness 
model, income (net) on u·ansfer of real estate undertaking(s) is recogn ized upon completion 
of each such transact ion as per the terms and cond ition.s as provided in the transact ion 
documents. 
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to customers. The rent~ I income from each of these arrangements is rccogniLclf on accrual 
basis as per the terms of each such rental arrangc111ent with customers. 

Advertising Income: 

Given the high visibility of the metro rail system across key parts of the city of I lydcrabad and 
also the footfalls within the trains and stations, ad\ cnisers are keen to showcase their products 
and services on the metro rail network. ' J'he compan) allows the advertisers to utilize the 
spaces earmarked in:.ide and outside trains & ~Lations and also on the piers. portals. etc for a 
fee. TI1e income from such arrangement arc rc~;ognized on accrual basis ns per the terms of 
each such advertising con tract. 

Consulting & T 1·aining I ncome: Income from Consulting & 'I rain ing is recognized as and 
when the customer rece ives the benefit o f' the company's performance and the company has 
enforceable right to payment for services rendered. 

Other revenue: 

Other operationa I re' enue represents income earned from the act i\ itics incidental to the 
business and i recognized when the performance obi igation is satisfied and the right to receive 
the income is established as per the term of tl1c contract. 

Unbillecl revenue represents va lue of services performed in accordance w tth the t.:ontract terms 
but not billed. 

Other Income 

Interest income: Interest income on investments and loans is accrued on a time basis by 
reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate including interest on 
investments classified as fair value through profit and loss account or fnir value through Other 
comprehensive in~;0m e. Interest receivable on customer dues is recognized as income in the 
Statement of prolil and loss on accrual basis provided there is no uncenainty towards its 
realization. 

Dividend income: Dividends income is accounted in the period in which the right to receive the 
payment is established. 

6. P1·operty, plant and eq uipment (PPE) 

PPE is recogn it.ed when it is probable that future economic benefits assoc iated wilh the item 
will flow to the comp~ny and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. PPE is stated at 
ori ginal cost net or tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumu lated depreciation and 
cumulative impairm ent. Cost includes pur~hase price and any cost that is directly attr ibutable 
to bringing the asset to the location and for qualifying assets. borrowing costs cap itali zed in 
accordance" ilh the Company's accounting policy. 

1\dm inistrati\ c and other general overhead expenses that are spccifica lly anri butable to 
constructi on or aequ isition of PPE or bringing the PPE to working cond ition are allocated and 
cap italized as a part ofthe cost of the PP~. 
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amount of any component accounted for as a separntc asset is derecognizcd when replaced. 
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in 
which they are incurred. 

The carry ing value was Qrigin al cost less accumtilated depreciation and cumu lative 
impairment. PPE not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disc losed 
as 'c..:apitn l work-in-progress' in the notes to the Balance Sheet. 

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to a ll ocate the cost, net of res idual 
va lues, over the est imated useful lives. Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year 
end to renee! expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in 
the asset. The assets' residual va lues and useful I ives Are rev iewed, <lf1d adjusted if appropriate, 
at the end of each repo rting period. 

The fo llowing asset category has usefu l life different from the life specified in Schedule lJ of 
th e Companies Act, 20 13 based on the managemenrs assessment 

Categor·y of Asset Useful L ife 
Furniture & Fixtures 6- l 0 years 
P lant & Machinery and Electrical Insta ll ations I 0- 12 years 
Desktops and Laptop Computers 3 years 
Vehicles 5 years 
Office Equ ipment 4-5 Years 

Where cost of a part of the asset ("asset component'·) is s ignificant to total cost of the asset 
an d useful life of that part is different from the useful life of the rema ining asset, useful life 
of that s igni ficant part is determ.ined separately and such asset component is depreciated over 
its separate usefu l life. 

Ga ins or losses arising from the retirement or disposa l of property. plant and equ ipment are 
determ ined as the difference between the estimated net disposal p roceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset and are recognized in the income statement on t he date of reti rement or 
disposal. 

7. Investment property 

The Trans it Oriented Development on the leasehold l<lllds provided by the Government under 
the Concession Agreement is a resource controlled by the company during the period of 
concession and is an asset held with the intention of being used for the purpose of earn ing 
rental income, hence recognized as an investment· property. 

In vestment properties are measured in itially at cost, including transactiot1 costs. Subsequent 
to init ial recognition, investment properties are measured in accorda nce with cost mode l and 
are stated at or igina l cost net of tax/duty credits availed. if any. less accu rnulated depreciation 
and cumulative impairment. 
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Deprec iation on Investmen t properties is calculated using the srraight- line method over the 
concess ion period. Deprec iat ion meth od is rev iewed at each financ ial year end to reflect 
expected pattcm of conswnption of the future econorn ic benefits embodied in the asset. The 
assets' res idual va llles and useful lives are rev iewed, and adj ust·ed ir appropriate, at the end of 
each reporting period 

8. Intangible assels 

Intangi ble assets are stated at original cost· net of tax/duty credits avail ed, if any, less 
accumulated amorti zat ion and cumulati ve impairment. Intangible assets are recognized when 
it is probable that the future economic benelits Lhat arc attributable to the asset wi ll now to 
the enterprise and th e cost of the asset can be measured rei iably. Pre-operative expenses 
including adminisrrari ve and other general overhead expenses that are spec ifica lly 
attributable to acqui sition of in tangible assets are a ll ocated and capi tal ized as a part of the 
cost of the intangible assets . 

The intangible assets are amortized over its ex.pected useful li fe/ over t he balance concess ion 
period available in a way that reflects the pattern in which the asset's economic benefits are 
consum ed by the entity, sta rting from the date when the right to operate starts to be used. 

Any asset carried under concess ion arrangements is derecognizecl on di sposa l or when 11 0 
future economic benefits are expected from its future use or di sposa l or when the conlrat:t ual 
rights to the fin ancial asset expire. 

Speciali zed Soft.,vare comprised within the lntanglble asse ts is amortized over a period of' 6 
years on straight line method. 

9. Concess ion in tangible and financial assets 

The company constructs in frastructure (construction services) used to prov ide a pu blic 
service and operates and main tains such infrastructure (operat ion services) fo r a specified 
period oftim e. 

These arrangements arc accou ntecl fo r based on the nature of the consideration . The intang ible 
asset model is used to the ex tent that the company receives a right to charge users o r the 
public service 

1\.n intangib le asset is measured at the fa ir va lue of consideration transferred to acq uire the 
asset, whic h is the fa ir va lue of the cons ideratio11 rece ived or rece ivable for the construction 
services delive red. Till the completion o f the project, the same is recogni zed as intangible 
assets under development. In case of part commencement of operations, the intang ible assets 
under development is capitalized based on th e relati ve revenue earning potential of th e rights. 

10. Impairmentofassets 

Assets are tested Cor impairmen t whenever events or changes in circumstances ind icate that 
the ca rrying amoun t may not be recoverable. As at each Balance Sheet date or at least 
annually, the carrying amount of assets is tested fo r impairment so as to determine: 



124

L'-~T Metro Rail (Hyderabad) Limited 
Notes forming part of the Accounts (contd.) 
Material Accounting Policies (contd.) 

Impairment loss i ~ recognized when the carryi ng amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable 
amount. Recoverab le amount is determined: 

H. in the case of an individual asset, at the higher of the net selling price and the va lue in 
usc; 

b. in the case of a cash ge nerating unit (a group of assets that generates identified, 
independent cash flows). at !he higher of the cash generating unit's net se lling prit.:e 
and the va lue in use. 

(Ynlue in use is determined as the present value of e!:'timatecl future cash flows from the 
cont inuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life). 

11. Employee benefits 

a) Short term employee benefits: 

All employee benefits fa II ing clue wholly with in twelve months of rendering the service 
are. c lassified as short term employee benefits. The benefits like sa laries. wages, short 
term compensa ted absences etc. and lhe expected cost o f bonus, ex-grati a are 
recognized in tile period in which the etnployee renders the related service. 

b) Post-employment benefits: 

1. Defined contribution plans: The stale gove rned provident fund scheme. em ployee 
state insurance scheme and employee pens ion scheme are defined contribution 
plans. The contribution paid/payable under !he schemes is recogn ized during the 
period in which the employee renders the related service. 

ii. Defined benefit plans: The em ployees' gratuity fund schemes, post-retirement 
medica l care scheme, pens ion scheme and prov ident fu nd scheme managed by trust 
are the Company 's defined benefit plans. The present value of the ob li gation under 
such defined benefit pl(lns is determined based on actuarial val uation us ing the 
Pr(.ljectecl Unit Credit Method. 

The obl igat ion is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash fiows. The 
di scount rate used for det·ermining the present va lue of the obl igation under defined 
benefit plans, is based on the market y ield on government securities of a lllaturity period 
equ ivalent to !he weighted average maturity profile of th e related obligations at· the 
Balance Sheet date. 

Remeasurement, compri sing actuari al gains and losses, the return on plan assets 
(exc luding net interest) and any change in the effect of asset ceiling (\•Vherever 
applicab le) are recognized in other comprehens ive income and is reflected immediately 
in retained earnings and is not reclass ified to prolit & loss. 

Defined benefit costs comprising current service cost, past service cost and gains or 
losses 0 11 settlements are recogn ized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as employee 
benefit expenses. interest cost implicit in defined bcndit employee cost is recognized 
in the Statement of Profit and loss under finan ce cost. Gains or losses on settlement of 



125

L&T Metro Rail (Hydera bad) Limited 
Notes forming part of the Accounts (con tel.) 
Materia] Accounting Policies (contd.) 

In the case of funded plans, the fair value of the plnn assets is reduced from the gross 
ob li gation under the defined benefit p lans to recognize the obligation on a net basis. 

c) Long term employee bcnelits: 

The presen t va lue of the obligat1on under the long term employee benefit plans such 
as compensated abse nces is determined based on actuarial va luation using the 
Projected Un it Credi t Method . 

The obligation is measured at the present va lue of the estimated futu re cash now~. The 
discou nt rate used for Jetcnn in ing the present va lue of the ob ligation under the defined 
benefit plans , is based on th e market y ield on government securiti es of a maturity 
period eq ui va lent to the weighted average matur ity profile of the related ob ligations at 
the Balance sheet date. 

Long term employee benefit costs compris ing current service cost and gains or losses 
on curtailments and sett lements, remeasmements including actuarial gains and losses 
are recogni zed in t he statement of profit a11 d loss as employee benefit expenses. Interest 
cost im plicit in long term employee benefit cost is recognized in the Stat·ement of Profit 
and loss under the Fin ance cost 

d) Employee Share Based Compensation: 

Equ ity-settled share-based payments with respect to Employees Stock Options of the 
hold ing company granted to the ent itled employees are measured at the fair value of 
the equ ity instruments of the hold ing company at the grant date. The fair vaJue of 
equity-settled share-based payment transactions are recognized in the statement of 
profit and loss with a corresponding credi t to equity, net oF reim bursements. if any 

12. Leases 

The determination of whether an agreement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance 
of the agreement at the dale or inception. 

The Company as a Lessee 

Leases are accounted as per lnd AS 116 wh ich has become mandatory frorn April I ,20 19. 

Assets taken on lease are accounted as ri gh t o f use assets and the correspond ing lease liabi li ty 
is accounted at the lease commencement date. 

Initia lly the right of use asset is measured at cost wh ich comprises the initial amount of the 
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement dale. 
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an est imate of costs to dismantle and remove the 
underlying asset or to restore the underlyi ng asset or the site on wh ich it is located, less any 
lease incentives rece ived. 
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acljusnnent is made to the carrying amount of the right of use as:>ct, or is recorded in prorit or 
loss ifthe ca rry ing amount oflhe ri ght of use asset has been reduced to zero. 

The right or use asset is measured by applying cost model i.e right of use asset at cost less 
accumulated depreciation/ impairment losses. The right of use asset is depreciated using the 
straight line method from the commencement date to th e end of the lease term or useful life 
of the underlying asset whichever is lower. Carrying amount of lease liability is increased by 
interest on lease liability and reduced by lease payments made. 

Lease payments associated with following leases are recogni?ed as expense on st raight line 
basis 

(i) Low value leases, and 
(ii) Leases which are short term. 

The Company as a lessor 

Assets given on lease are classified either as operating lease or as finance lease. A lease is 
classified as a finance lease if it transfers <;ubstantially a ll the ri sks and rewards incidental to 
ownership of an underlying asset. In itially asset held under finance lease is recogni zed in 
bala11ce sheet and presented as a rece ivable at an amount equa l to the net investment in the 
lease. f inance income is recognized ove r the lease term. based on a pattern renecting a 
constant periodic rate of retu rn on company's net investment in the lease. A lease wh ich is 
not class ified as a finance lease is an operating lease. The gro up recognizes lease payment in 
case of assets g iven on operating leases as income on a stra ight -line basis. The company 
presents underlying assets subject to operating lease in its balance sheet L111der the respect ive 
class of asset. 

13. lnventodes 

In ve ntories comprise of stores, spares and consumables. In ventories are stated at the lower of 
cost or net realizable va lue. Cost is determined us ing we ighted average b{tsis. Cost or 
inventories comprise the cost of purchase plus the cost of bringing the inventories to their 
present location and condition. Net rea liza ble value is the estimated se lling price in the 
ordinary comse of business less the estimated costs of completio11 and est imated costs 
necessary to make the sal es 

1~. Fina ncial instruments 

Financial assets and fi nancial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to 
the contractual prov isions ofi'he instruments. All financial assets arc initia lly measured at fair 
va lue pills, in case of f inancial assets not: recorded at fa ir value th rough profit or loss, 
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of rhe financ ial assets. 

1- inancia l assets in their entirety are subsequently measured either al amortized cost or fair 
val ue. Investmen ts in debt in struments that meet the fo llowing conditions are subsequent ly 
measured at amortized cost (unless the same are designated as fair va lue throllgh profit or loss 
(fVTPL)): 
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The cont ractual terms of instrum en t give r ise on specified d~:~tes to cash flows that are so lely 
payments of principal and interest on the prill{;ipa l amount outstanding. 

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequent ly measured at fair va lue 
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) (unless the same arc designated as fair va lue 
through profit or loss) 
The asset is hel'd vvithin a bus iness model whose objective is achieved both by collecting 
contractual cash flows and selling financia l assets; and 

The contractual terms of instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are so lely 
payments of principal and interest on the pr incipal amount outstanding. 

Debt instruments at FVTPL is a residua I category for debt instru ments. if any, and all changes 
are recognized in profit or loss. 

Investments in equity instruments ate classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company 
irrevocably e lects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in Other 
Comprehensive Income for equ ity instruments which ::~re not held f~o r trading. 

For financial assets that are measured at FVTOCJ. interest income. dividend income and 
exchange difference (on debt instrument) is recognized in profit or loss and other changes in 
fa ir va lue are recognized in ocr and accumulated in other equity. On disposa l of debt 
instruments measured at fYTOCL the cumulative gain or loss previo~tsly accumulated in other 
equity is l'ec lassified ro profit & loss. However, in case of equity ir'lstnunents measured at 
FYTOCI, if any, cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit & loss on disposa l of 
investments. 

A financial asset is primarily clerecognized whe n: 

1. the rights to receive cash now!> from the asset have exp ired. or 

11. !.he company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has 
ass umed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a 
third pat'ty under a pass-through arrangement: and (a) the company has transferred 
substantially all the ri sks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has 
transfe1·red control of the asset. 

Im pairment of financial assets: 

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognizing impai1ment lo~s on 
financia l assets measured at amortized cost, debt instruments measured at FVTOC!, lease 
receivables, trade receivables and other contractual rights to rece ive cash or other financial 
asset and financial guarantees not designated for measurement at FVTPL. For the purpose of 
measuring lifetime expected c1·edit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company has used 
a provis ion matrix wh ich takes into account hi stor ical cred it loss experience and adjusted for 
forwa rd look ing information as permitted under lnd AS 109. 
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Financia l liabil ities, including derivatives and embedded derivatives, which are designated for 
measurement at fa ir va lue through profit or loss (FVTPL) are subseque ntly measured at fa ir 
va lue. rinancial guarantee cont ra<.:!~ are subsequently measured at the higher of the amount. of 
loss al lowance determined as per impairment requirements of lnd AS I 09 and the amount 
recogn ized less cumul ative amor·ti.cation. All ot..her financia l liab ilities includ ing loans and 
borrowings are measured at amortized cost us ing Effective Interest Rate (ElR) method. 
tl inancia l liabil ity is derecogn izecl when the obl igation unde r the liabi lity is disclu1rged or 
cancelled or exp ires. 

Offsetting fina ncia l instr uments: 

Financial assets and liab ilities are onset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet 
where there is a legal ly enfo rceable right to offset the recognized amonnts and there is an 
intention to set.tle on a net bas is or realize the asset and sett le the liabi lity s imulta neously. The 
lega lly enforceable ri ght must not be <.:ontingent on future events and must be enforceable in 
the normal course of business and in the event of defau lt. insolvency or bankruptcy of the 
company or the counterparty. 

Deriva tives and hedge accounting 

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered 
into and are subsequently remeasu recl at the ir fair value. The method of recognizing the 
resu lting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instru ment, 
and if so. the nature of the item being hedged. The company designates cert·ain derivatives as 
either: 

(a) hedges of the fair value or recogn ized assets or liabi li ties or a finn commitment (fair 
value hedge); 

(b) hedges of a particu lar risk associated with a recognized asset or liab ility or a high ly 
probable forecast transaetion (cash flow hedge); or 

(c) hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation (net investment hedge). 

The company documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging 
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management o~jectives and strategy for 
undertaking various hedgit1g transactions. The company also documents the natme of the risk 
be ing hedged and how the Company wi ll assess whether d1e hedging relationsh ip meets the 
hedge effeetiveness requirements (includ ing its analysis of the sources of hedge 
ineffectiveness and how it determines the hedge ratio). 

The full fair va lue of a hedging derivative is c lassified as a non-current asset or liabi lity when 
the resid ual matu rity of the derivative is more than 12 months and as a current asset or liabi lity 
when the residual maturity of the der ivative is less than 12 months. 

(a) f air value hedges 

Changes in the fair value o f derivatives that are designated and qualify as fa ir va lue 
hedges are recorded in the statement of profit and loss. togethe r with any changes in the 
fai r va lue of the hedged item that are attributable to the hedged risk. 
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longer qualifies for hedge accounting. rhe lair value adjustment to the carrying amounl 
of the hedged item arising from the hedged rish. is amorti;cd to the statement of profit 
and loss from that date. 

(h) Cash f1ow hedges 

rhe effective portion of changes in the fair va lue of derivatives that are designated and 
qualify as cash flow hedges is recognized in other comprehensive income and 
accumulated under the heading cash now hedg ing rcscrvt!. fhe gain or loss relating to 
Lhc ineffective portion is recogni:;ecl immediate ly in the statement of' profit and loss and 
is inc luded in the other expense!>. 

;\mounts previously recogniLed in other comprehensive income and accumulated in 
equ ity are rec lass ified to the statement of profit and loss inlhe per iods when the hedged 
item anects the statement of profit and loss. in the same line as the recognized hedged 
item. However. when the hedged forecast transact ion result::. in the recognition of a non­
financial asset or a non-financial l iabi lity. the gains and losses previously recognized in 
other comprehensive income and accumulnted in equity are transferred from equity and 
included in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-financial 
liability. 
I ledge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold. 
terminated. or exercised. or when it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain 
or loss recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity at that 
time remains in equity and b recognized when the forecast transaction is ultimate!) 
recognized in the statement of pro !it and loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer 
expected to occur, the gain or loss accumu lated in equity is recognized immediately in 
the statement of profit and loss. 

(c) Hedges of net investments in for·cign oper·at ions 

I ledges of ner investments in foreign operations arc a~co untcd for similarly to cash flow 
hedges. A ny ga in or loss on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of 
the hedge is recognized in other comprehens ive income and accumu lated under the 
heading of foreign currency translation reserve. The ga in or loss relating to the 
inefTective portion is recogn ized immediately in the statement of profit and loss. 

Gains and losses on the hedging instrument re lating to the effec tive portion of the hedge 
accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve arc rcclassi!ied to the statement 
of profit and loss on the disposal of the foreign operation. 

15. Cash and bank balances 

Cash and bank balances also include !ixed deposits, margin money deposits. Cheques on 
hand, cftnnarked balances with banks and other bank balances which have restrictions on 
repatriation. Short term and liquid investments being not l'rec from more than insignificant 
risk of change in value. are not inc luded as part of cash and cash equiva lents. 

16. Borrowing Costs 

interest expense cct lculated using the effective interes t method. 
in respect of assets acquired on llnancc lease and 
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arising from foreign currency borrowings, to the extent they are regarded as an adjust111 ent to 
interest costs. 

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acqu iSitiOJl, construction or procluct·ion of a 
qualifying asset are capitalized as part of cost of such asset till sucll time the asset is ready 
for its intended use or sale. A quali fying asset is an asset t hat necessarily requires a substantial 
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. Al l other bonowing costs arc 
recognized in profit or loss in the period in wh ich they are incurred. 

17. Foreign currencies 

a) The functional currency of the Company is lnd ian rupee. 

b) Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition us ing the e:-..change 
rate at the dale of the tra11saction. At each Balance Sheet date. foreign currency 
monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items, carried al fair 
va lue that are denominated iu foreign cu rrencies are retrans lated at the raLes prevai ling 
at the date when the fair value was determined. Non- monetary ite111s that arc measured 
in terms of historica l cost in fo reign currency are not retranslated. Translation 
differences on assets and liabilities carried at fa ir value are reported as part ofthe fair 
va lue ga in or loss. Exchange differences that arise on settlement or monetary items or 
on reporting of monetary items at each BalaJ1ce Sheet date at the closing rate are 
recognized in profit or loss in tl1e period in which they arise except for: 

i) exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under 
construction for fulure productive use, wh ich are included in the cost of those 
assets when they are regllrdecl as an adjustment to interest costs in a foreign 
currency not translated. 

ii) exchange differences on transactions entered into 1n order to hedge ce1tain 
fore ign cu rrency ri sks. 

18. Acco unting and reporting of information for Operating Segments 

Operating segments are those components of the bus iness whose ope rat ing results are 
regu larly rev iewed by the chief operating decision making body (CODM) in the co111pany to 
make decisions for performance assessment and resource allocation. 

The repo rting of segment information is the same as provided to the management for the 
purpose of the performance assessment and resource a ll ocation to the segments. 

Segment accounting policies are in line with the accoun ti ng policies of the Company. In 
add ition. the fo ll owing specific acco unting pol icies have been fo llowed fo r segment 
reporting: 

I. 

I I. are considered for 



131

L&T Metro Rail (Hydca·abad) Limited 
Notes forming part of the Accounts (contd.) 
Material Accounting Policies (con td.) 

v. Segment assets and liabilities include 1hose directly identifiable wiLh the respective 
segments. Unallocable corporate assets and liabi I ities represent the assets and liabilities 
that relate to the Company as a whole and not all ocable 10 ai1Y segment. 

vt. Segment non~cash expenses forming part of segment expenses includes the fa ir value of 
the employee stock options wb ich is accounted as employee compensation cost and is 
allocated to the segment. 

vi i. Segment revenue resulting from transactlon5 with other business segments is accounted on 
the basis of transfer price agreed belween tJ1e segments. Such transfer prices are eithe1' 
detcrm ined to y ield a desired mRrg in or agreed on a negotiated basis 

19. Taxes on Income 

Tax on income For the current period is determined on the basis of taxable income <lnd tax 
credits computed in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act 1961. and based 
on th e expected outcome of assessme nts/appea ls. 

Deferred tax is recogn ized on temporary cl i ffcrences between the carrying amounts of assets 
and li abi lities in the Company's finRncia l statements and the corresponding tax bases used in 
computat ion of taxab le profit and quantified using the tax rates Clnd la ws enacted or 
substanti ve ly enact·ecl as on the Balance Sheet dale. 

Deferred tax assets relating to unabsorbed depreciation/business losses/losses under the head 
"capital ga ins" are recognized and carried forward to the cxte11t of ava ilable taxable 
temporary differences or where there is conv incing other evidence that sufiicient future 
taxab le income wil! be available against which such de ferred tax assets can be reali zed. 

Other deferred tax assets are recognized and carried forward to the extent it is probable that 
suffic ient future taxable income will be ava il able aga inst vvhich such deferred tax assets can 
be rea lized. 

Transacti on or event which is recognized outs ide profit or loss, either in other comprehensive 
income or in equity, is recorded along with the tax as applicable. 

Deferred tax assets and liabil ities are offset when there is a legnlly enforceable right to offset 
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax ba lances relate to the same taxation 
autho ri ty. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally 
enforceable right to o ffset and intends either to settle 011 a net bas is. or to rea li ze the asset and 
settl e; the liability s imultaneously. 

20. Provis ions, contingent Ji a biliti<'s and contingent assets 

Prov isions are recognized only when: 

l'l) the company has a present obligation ( lega l or constructive) as a result of a past event 
b) il is probable that an outflow of resources embody ing econom ic benefits will be required 

to settle the ob i igation; and 
c) a reliable estimate can be made oflhe amount of the obligation 
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Prov isions are measured at the present value of management's best est imate of the 
expenditure required to sett le the present ob ligat ion at the end of the reporting period. The 
discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market 
asscssmenrs ofthc time v<1lue of money and the risks speci fic to the liability. The un wind ing 
of the time value of money is recognized as a finance cost. 

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of 
a) a present obi igati on arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outnow of 

resources will be required to settle the obligation 
b) a present ob li gation aris ing from past events. when no reliable est imate is possible 

Contingent assets are d isclosed where an innow of economic benefits is probable. 

Provis ions. cont ingent liabilities and Contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet 
date. 

2 1. Commitmeuts 

Commitments are futu re liabi lities for contractual expenditure . Commitments are class ified 
and disclosed as follows: 

a) Estimated number of contracts remaining to be executed on capital acco unt and not 
provided for 

b) Other non-cancellab le commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered mater ial 
and relevant in the opinion of management. 

c ) Other commitments re lated to sales/procurements made in the normal course of 
business are not disc losed to avoid excessive details. 

22. Statement of Cash Flows 

Statement of cash flows is prepared segregat ing the cash flows from operating. in vest ing and 
financ ing activities. Cash tl ow from operating act ivities is reported using indirect method. 
Under the indirect metJ10cl , the r1ct profit is adjusted fo r the effects of: 

a) chang.es du rin g the period in inventories and operati ng receivables and payables 
transactions of a no n-cash nature 

b) non-cash items such as dep1·eciat ion, provisions, deferred taxes. un-rea lised fore ign 
currency gains and losses, arr d undistri buted profits of assoc iates; and 

c) ai l othe r items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows . 

Cash and cash equivalents ( inc lud ing bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash nows 
exclude items which are not available for general use as at the date of Balance Sheet. 

23. Earnings per sha re 

(i) Earn ings per share 

Basic l.!arnings per share is calculated by divid in g: 
• the profit attributable to owners of the company 
• by the weighted average nu mber of equity shares out tanding during the financia l 

year, adjusted ror bonus elements in equi ty shares issued during the year ancl 
exc luding treasury share. 

1ted ea rnings per share 
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Diluted eamings per share adj usts the figures used in the detenn inMion of basic 
eamings per share to take into account: 
• th e a rter-incotrte tax effect of interest and other fi nancing costs assoc iated with 

di lnlive potential equity shares, and 
• the we ighted average number of addit ional equity shares th at would have been 

outstanding assuming the convers ion of all di lutive potentia l equity shares. 

24. K ey sources of estimation 

The preparation of financial statement s in conform ity vvith lnd 1\S requires that the 
management of the Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the re ported 
amounts of income and ex penses of the pe riod, the reported balances of assets and li abi lit ies 
and the disclosur·es re lating to contingent liabi lit ies as of the date of the financial statements . 
The estimates and underlying assumptions are rev iewed on a11 ongo ing bas is . Rev isions to 
accounting estimates include use fu l li ves of property, plant and equipment, intang ible assets. 
a llowance for doubtful debts/ad vances, futu re obligations in respect of retirement benefit 
plans, expected cost of completion of contracts, provision for rectificati on costs, fair value 
measurement etc . Difference, if any. between the nctual resul ts and estimates is recognised 
in the period in which the results are known. 
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